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Blanca S. Bayo, Director o
Division of Records and Reporting =
Florida Public Service Commission -

101 East Gaines Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

ha €l i

Re:  Application of GE Capital Communication Services Corporation, d/b/a GE
EXCHANGE?®, d/b/a GE Residential Communications, d/b/s GE Commercial
Shopping Network and d/b/a GE Capital Commercial I'. «ci for Authority to
Provide Alternative Local Exchange Service Within the State of Florida

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed herewith is an original and six (6) copies of an Application Form for
Authority to Provide Alternative Local Exchange Service Within the State of Florida to be
filed on behalf of GE Capital Communication Services Corporation d/b/a GE EXCHANGE®,
d/b/a GE EXCHANGE®, d/b/a GE Residential Communications, d/b/a GE Commercial
Shopping Network and d/b/a GE Capital Commercial Direct. Please date-stamp the extra
copy and return it in the enclosed, self-addressed stamped envelope.

Also enclosed is a check in the amount of $250.00 made payable to the "Florida Public
Service Commission” to cover the filing fee, and a 3.5" diskette (high-density) containing the
Application in WordPerfect format for the Windows 3.1 operating system.

If you have any questions concerning this filing, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Very truly yours,
- rhma recaived with filing and

__ foowaired 1o Fiscal for dennall, KWA,W
| wart 8 oopw of cheolt a

s oof.of denanit. Margaret M, Charles
— AM e ot T ka chocde Katherine A. Rolph

Enclosures
e Meredith H. Gifford

yaoess 1R

Counsel for GE Capital Communication
Services Corporation
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. Y000 K STrisT. N W ® Suita 300 04| 2 SEP27&

WasminGToN, D.C, 20007-5116
(20204247500 ® Terex 700130 ® FACSIMILE HOJHERMECDRHSJ‘REFORTIHG




ORIGAL 17
® ¢ FILE COPY4H

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER - 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0850

APPLICATION FORM
for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

INSTRUCTIONS

: This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for
approval of sale, assignment or transfer of an existing altzrnative local
exchange certificate. In case of a sale, assignment or transfer, the
information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee.

2. Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices. If
an item is not applicable, please explain why.

3. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted
space.
4 If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission
Division of Communications, Certification & Compliance Section
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0866
(904) 413-6600

5. Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along
with a non-refundable application fee of $250 made payable to the
Florida Public Service Commission at the above address.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95) e DATE
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S, DOCUMENT NUMBER-D

|04 |2 SEP2 ]
FPSC—RECORHS!REPORIIHG



1 This is an application for (check one):
(X) Original authority (new company)

() Approval of transfer (to another certificated company)
Example, a certificated company purchases an existing company
and desires to retain the original certificate authority.

() Approval of assignment of existing certificate (to a
non-certificated company)
Example, a non-certificated company purchases an existing
company and desires to retain the certificate of authority rather
than apply for a new certificate.

() Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company)
Example, a company purchases 51% of a certificated company.
The Commission must approve the new controlling entity.

2. Name of applicant:

GE Capital Communication Services Corporation d/b/a GE EXCHANGE®
("GECCS” or "Applicant").

3. A National mailing address including street name, number, post office box,
city, state, zip code, and phone number.

GE Capital Communication Services Corporation
6540 Powers Ferry Road

Atlanta, GA 30339

(770) 644-7774

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post office box,

city, state, zip code, and phone number.
GECCS does not have a mailing address in Florida.

C. Physical address of alternative local exchange service in Florida
including street name, number, post office box, city, zip code and phone
number. GECCS does not have an office in Florida. GECCS's registered agent
in Florida is: CT Corporation

¢/o CT Corporation System

1200 South Pine Island Road

Plantation, FL. 33324

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S. -2-



() Individual () Corporation

(X) Foreign corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership
( ) General Partnership () Limited Partnership

( ) Joint Venture ( ) Other, Please explain

5. If incorporated, please provide proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the
applicant has authority to operate in Florida.
Corporate charter number(s)._F23000002049

6. Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a):
GE Capital Communication Services Corporation, d/b/a GE EXCHANGE®, d/b/a
GE Residential Communications, d/b/a GE Commercial Shopplng Network and
d/b/a GE Capital Commercial Direct

7. If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/b/a) registration.
Fidmoua name roghtratinn number: Wmﬁﬁ.‘

8. If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please give name,
title and address of each legal entity. Not Applicable.

9. State whether any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest
stockholders have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally
incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such
actions may result from pending proceedings. If so, please explain.

None of GECCS's officers, directors, nor any of its ten largest stockholders, have
previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any
felony or of any crime; nor are any such proceedings pending.

10. Please provide the name, title, address, telephone number, Internet addrass,
and facsimile number for the person serving as ongoing liaison with the
Commission, and if different, the liaison responsible for this application.

: Meredith H. Gifford, Assistant Vice President, Regulatory Affairs,

GE Capital Communication Services Corporation, 6540 Powers Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA

30339 Tel: (770) 644-7774; Fax: (770) 952-2473

: Katherine Rolph, Esq. Swidler & Berlin, Chartered, 3000

K St., Suite 300, Washington, D.C. 20007-5116 Tel: (202) 424-7500; Fax: (202) 424-7643

11.  Please list other states in which the applicant is currently providing or has
applied to provide local exchange or alternative local exchange service.

GECCS is currently in the process of applying for authority to provide local
exchange resale services in all states except Hawaii and Alaska,

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/85)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S. -3-




12.

13.

14,

15.

Has the applicant been denied certification in any other state? If so, please list
the state and reason for denial.
No.

Have penalties been imposed against the applicant in any other state? If so,
please list the state and reason for penalty.

No penalties have been imposed against GECCS; however, in a settlement with
the Florida Public Service Commission, GECCS made a contribution of $90,000
to the general revenue fund of the State of Florida, with no admission of liability

or wrongdoing, in Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 951420-TI,
Order No. PSC-96-0142-AS-T1 (February 2, 1996).

Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint wit\y your company.
GECCS can be reached for customer complaints at 1 (800) 775-4322.

Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has
the following capabilities to provide alternative local exchange service in Florida.

A. Financial capability. See Exhibit 1.
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies:

The application should contain the applicant's financial statements,

including:
1. the balance sheet
2. income statement

3. statement of retained eamnings for the most recent 3 years.

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial
statements.

If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so
stated. The unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the
applicant’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer. The signatures
should af e financial statements & -¥- :

Ne fnancigl SIaementis are ue and Cornec!
B. Managerial capability. See Exhibit 2.

C. Technical capability. See Exhibit 3.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S. -4-




AFFIDAVIT

By my signature below, |, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy
of the information contained in this application and attached documents and
that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial
capability to provide alternative local exchange service in the State of Florida.
| have read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my knowledge and
belief, the information is true and correct. | attest that | have the authority to
sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with
all applicable Commission rules and orders.

Further, | am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida
Statutes, “Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the
intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of hir official duty
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as
provided in s, 775.082 s. 775.083".

Official: féz Y/ 7y
Date
Title: _Gregg L. Haddad Telephone Number
770/ 644-1600
President

Address:  GE Capital Communication Services Corporation
6540 Powers Ferry Road
Atlanta, Georgia 30399

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95) 5

Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S. - -




EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT 1 Annual Reports on SEC Form 10-K for GECCS’s Parent Companies,
General Electric Capital Corporation and General Electric Capital
Scrvices, Inc.
EXHIBIT 2 Managerial Capability

EXHIBIT 3 Technical Capability




EXHIBIT 1

Annual Reports on SEC Form 10-K for GECCS's Parent Companies,
General Electric Capital Corporation and General Electric Capital Services, Inc.




. unifl sTATES SECURITIES AND E EI.CG”H.E COMMISSION

FORM 10-K

B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 193 [FEE REQUIRED|

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 [NO FEE REQUIRED|

For the transition period from ______ to

Commission lile number 1-6461
N General Electric Capital Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
New York 131500700
{State or other jurisdicuion of {L.R.S. Employer
INCOTPaTalion OF Organization) Identification No.)
260 Long Ridge Road, Stamford, Connecticut 06927 (203) 3574000
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) (Registrant’s ielephone number,
including arca code)
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:
Name of each
Title of cach class gachange on which registered
7 1M % Guaraniced Subordinated Notes Due December 1, 2006 New York Siock Exchange

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:

Mobe.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all repons reguired 1o be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secunuies Exchange Ao |

of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorier period that the registrant was required (o file such repons). and (2) has boen subject 10
such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes < No _

|

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant 1o liem 405 of Regulation 5-K is nol conwined herein. and will not be

contained, (o the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11 of this Form 10-K
or any amendment to this Form 10-K. B

Aggregate market value of the voung siock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant at March 25, 1996 None
Al March 25, 1996, 3,837,825 shares of common siock with a par value of $200 were outstanding
DOCUMENTS INCORFORATED BY REFERENCE

The consolidated financial statements of General Electric Company, set forth in the Annual Repon on Form 10-K of General Electne Company
for the year ended December 31, 1995 are incorporaied by reference inio Pan IV hereofl.

REGISTRANT MEETS THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTION Jil)a) AND (b) OF FORM 10-K AND IS
THEREFORE FILING THIS FORM 10-K WITH THE REDUCED DISCLOSURE FORMAT.

N
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Item 1. Business.

General Electric Capital Corporation (herein, together with its
consolidated affiliates., called *"the Corporation” or "GE Capital® unless the
context otherwise requires) was incorporated in 1943 in the State of New York
under the provisions of the New York Banking Law relating to investment
companies, as successor to General Electric Contracts Corporation, which was
formed in 1932. Until November 1987, the name of the Corporation was General
Electric Credit Corporation. All outstanding common stock of the Corporation
is owned by General Electric Capital Services, Inc. ("GE Capital Services*®),
formerly General Electric Financial Services, Inc., the common stock of which
is ir turn wholly owned by General Electric Company ("GE Company”). The
business of the Corporation originally related principally to financing the
distribution and sale of consumer and other products of GE Company. Currently,
however, the types and brands of products financed and the financial services
cffered are significantly more diversified. Very little of the financing
provided by GE Capital involves products that are manufactured by GE Company.

The Corporation operates in four financing industry segmantr and in a
specialty insurance industry segment. CE Capital's financing activities
include a full range of leasing, lending, eguipment management services and
annuities. The Corporation’'s specialty insurance activities includs providing
financial guaranty insurance, principally on municipa) “.nds and structured
finance issues, private mortgage insurance and creditor insurance covering
international customer loan repayments. The Corporation is an equity investor
:n a retail organization and certain other service and financial services
organizations. GE Capital’'s operations are subject to a variety of regulations
in their respective jurisdictions.

services of the Corporation are offered primarily in the United States,

Canada. Europe and the Pacific rim. The Corporation‘s principal executive
off.ces are located at 260 Long HRidge Road, Stamford, Connecticut 06927
(Te:epnone number (203) 357-4000). At December 31, 1995 the Corporation

erp.oyed approximately 37.000 persons.

The Corporation’'s principal assets are classified as time sales and
‘pans, investment in financing leases, equipment on operating leases and
:nvestment securities. The following table presents, by industry segment,
tnese principal financing products which, together with other assets, comp:ise
the Corporation‘'s total assets at December 31, 1995 and 1994.

b




INDUSTRY SEGHENTS ‘l’ ‘I'

The Corporation provides a wide variety of financing. asset management,
and insurance products and services which are organized into the following
indusLry segments:

* Consumer Services--private-lasbel and bank credit card loans, personal
loans, time sales and revolving credit and inventory financing for
retail merchants, auto leasing and inventory financing, mortgage
servicing and annuity and mutual fund sales.

* Specialized Financing--loans and financing leases for major capital
asseLs, including industrial facilities and eguipment, and
energy-related facilicies; commercial and residential real estate
loans and investments; and loans to and investments in management buy-
Outs. including those with high leverage, and corporate
recapitalizations.

+ Equipment Management--leases, loans and asse: management services for
portfolios of commercial and ctransportation egqguipment including
aircraft, trailers., auto fleets, modular space units, railroad rolling
stock, data processing eguipment, ocean-going conta.ners and
satellites,.

+ Mid-Market Financing--loans and leases for middle-rarket customers
including manufacturers, distributors and end users. of a variety of
commercial equipment, including data processing equipment, medical and
diagnostic equipment, and equipment  used in construction,
manufacturing, office applications and telecommunications activities.

+ Specialty Insurance--financial guaranty insurance, principally on
municipal bonds and structured finance issues; private mortgage
insurance; and creditor insurance covering international customer loan

repayments.

Refer to Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Resulis of
Gperations.” in this Form 10-X for discussion of the Corporation‘'s Portfolio
Uuasizy. A description of GE Capital‘s principal businesses by industry
segmen: follows:

CONSUMER SERVICES
GNA

GNA writes and markets tax-deferred, structured and immediate annuities,
traditional and universal life .nsurance, accident and health insurance
.nciuding long-term care insurance and sells proprietary and third party mutual
fungs through independent and captive agents and financial institutions. In
1995, OCONA acquired AMEX Life Assurance Company's long-term care insurance
ous:ness, as well as its long-term disability, corporate owned life insurance
anc accidental death insurance businesses.

GNA 18 headquartered in Seattle, Washington,
Aute Financial Services
Auto Financial Services (*AF5°) is a full service provider of automobile

financing for automobile dealers, manufacturers and their customers in North
Ameri.ca, Europe and Asia.
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Item 1. PBusiness.

General Electric Capital Corporation (herein, together with its
consolidated affiliates, called "the Corporation®” or "GE Capital®” unless the
context otherwise requires) was incorporated in 1943 in the State of New York
under the provisions of the New York Banking Law relating to investment
companies, as successor to General Electric Contracts Corporation. which was
formed in 1932. Until November 1987, the name of the Corporation was General
Electric Credit Corporation. All outstanding common stock of the Corporation
is owned by General Electric Capital Services, Inc. ("GE Capital Services”),
formerly General Electric Financial Services, Inc., the common stock of which
ig in turn wholly owned by General Electric Company ("GE Company"). The
business of the Corporation originally related principally to £financing the
distribution and sale of consumer and other products of GE Company. Currently,
however, the types and brands of products financed and the financial services
ffered are significantly more diversified. Very little of the financing
provided by GE Capital involves products that are manufactured by GE Company.

The Corporation operates in four £inancing industry segments and in a
specialty insurance industry segment, GE Capital's financi-g activities
include a full range of leasing, lending, equipment management pervices and
annuities. The Corporation’'s specialty insurance activities iuaclude providing
financial guaranty insurance, principally on municipal bond. and structured
finance issues, private mortgage insurance and creditor insurance covering
international customer loan repayments. The Corporation is an equity investor
in a retail organization and certain other service and financial services
organizations. GE Capital's operations are subject to a variety of regulations
in their respective jurisdictions.

Services of the Corporation are offered primarily in the United States,

Canada, Europe and the Pacific rim. The Corporation‘’s principal executive
off:ces are located at 260 Long Ridge Road, Stamford, Connecticut 06927
[Te.ephone number (203) 357-4000). At December 31, 1995 the Corporation

erp.oyed approximately 37.000 persons.

The Corporation‘s principal assets are classified as time sales and
loans, investment in financing leases, eguipment on operating leases and
avesiment securicies. The following table presents, by industry segment,
nese principal financing products which, together with other assets, compr:se
:ne Corporation’s total assets at December 31, 1995 and 1994.
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INDUSTRY SEGMENTS ‘I’ ‘I'

The Corporation provides a wide variety of financing., asset management,
and insurance products and services which are organized into the following
industry segments:

« Consumer Services--private-label and bank credit card loans, personal
loans, time sales and revolving credit and inventory financing for
recail merchants, auto leasing and inventory financing, mortgage
servicing and annuity and mutual fund sales.

« Specialized Financing--loans and financing leases for major capital
assets, including industrial facilities and equipment, and
energy-related facilities; commercial and residential real estate
loars and investments; and loans to and investments in management buy-
outs, ineluding those with high leverage, and corporate
recapitalizations.

+ Equipment Management--leases, loans and asset management services for
portfolios of commercial and transportation equipment including
aircraft, trailers, auto fleets, modular space units, railroad rolling
stock, data processing eguipment, ocean-going containers and
satellites.

+» Mid-Market Financing--loans and leases for middle-market customers
including manufacturers, distributors and end users, of » variety of
commercial egquipment, including data processing equipment, medical and
diagnostcic equipment, and egquipment  used in construction,
manufacturing. office applications and telecommunications activities.

+» Specialty Insurance--financial guaranty insurance, principally on
municipal bonds and structured £finance issues; private mortgage
insurance; and creditor insurance covering international customer loan
repaymencs.

Refer to Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Cperations,” in thigs Form 10-K for discussion of the Corporation's Portfolic
uaiizy. A description of GE Capital's principal businesses by industry
segmen: follows:

CONSUMER BERVICES
GNA

GNA writes and markets tax-deferred, structured and immediate annuities,
sradizional and universal 1ife insurarre, accident and health insurance
.nc.ud:ing iong-term care insurance and sells proprietary and third party mutual
‘{unas tnrough independent and captive agents and financial institutions. In
1993, CNA acqguired ANEX Life Assurance Company's long-term care insurance
pus:ness. as well as its long-term disability, corporate owned life insurance
arc accidental death insurance businesses.

GNA 185 headquartered in Seattle, Washington.
Auto Financial Services
Auto Financial Services ("AFS") is a full service provider of automobile

‘:nancing for automobile dealers, manufacturers and their customers in North
America, Europe and Asia.




In the Unito:,’:u. AFS is the leading in‘ndm: auto lessor and

provides leasing products for new automobiles and the growing used automobile
leasing market. During 1995, AFS entered the sub-prime loan financing market
through the start-up of a new business, Customized Auto Credit Services. AFS
provides the private label financing for American Isuzu Motors. Inc. and is a
joint venture partner with Volvo of North America. In addition, AFS provides
inventory financing programs and direct loans to segments of the automotive
industry, including dealers., rental car companies and leasing companie=z.

In 18995, AFS expanded its European presence through acquisitions of
Credit de 1'Est and Sovac SA in France, and Filea S.p.A in Italy. Octher
European businesses include Mercurbank (Austria), GE Capital Moter Finance
(United Kingdom), Finanzia (Spain) and Skandic-Bilfinans (Sweden).

AFS is active in the Asian automotive market through equity investments
in ASTRA Sedaya Finance (Indonesia), Taiwan Acceptance Corporation, United
Merchants Finance Private Ltd. (Singapore), United Motor Works (Malaysia), GS
Cap tal Corporation (Thailand) and through majority ownership (80%) of
Australian Guarantee Limited (Taiwan). In 1995, AFS acquired 100% of United
Merchants Finance Ltd. (Hong Kong) and continues to provide finaneing under the
name GE Capital Finance Ltd.

AFS is headquartered in Barrington, Illinois.

Retailer Financial Services

Retailer Financial Services ("RFS") provides sales f.nancing services to
distribution chains for various consumer industries. rinancing plans differ
considerably by client, but fall into two major categories: customized
private-label credit card programs with retailers and inventory financing
programs with manufacturers, distributors and ratailers.

RFS purchases consumer receivables from retailers, primarily in the
United States and Canada, most of whom sell a variety of products of various
manufacturers on a time sales basis. The terms for these financing plans
d:ffe: according to the cize of contract and credit standing of the customer.
Maximum maturities ordinarily do not exceed 40 months. RFS generally maintains

4 security interest in the merchandise financed. Financing is provided to
consumers under contractual arrangements both with and without recourse to
recta.lers. RFS* wide range of financial aservices includes application

process:ing, sales authorization, statement billings., customer services and
collecLion services.

RFS provides inventory financing for retailers primarily in the appliance
and consumer electronics industries. RFS maintains a security interest in the
inventory and, as part of the agreement, retailers are required to provide
insurance coverage for the merchandise financed,

GE Capital Credit Services ("GECCS") 1s a services venture which provides
statement printing, mailing, remittance processing, credit card embossing, and
specialized collections services tc over 75 million accounts. GECCS offers
serv.ices to the banking, utilities, telecommunications. insurance and
transportation industries.

RFS is headguartered in Stamford, Connecticut.




Global Consumer F. ce ‘l'

Global Consumer Finance ("GCFP") is a leading provider of credit services
to non-U.S. retailers and consumers. GCF provides private label credit cards
and proprietary credit services to retailers in Europe and Asia, as well as
offering a variety of direct-to-the-consumer credit programs such as consumer
loans, bankcards and credit insurance.

GCF provides financing to consumers in the United Kingdom under
contractual arrangements with retailers. GCF's wide range of proprietary
financial services includes private label credit cards, credit promotion and
accounting services, billing (in the store‘’s name) and customer credit ancd
collection services. Similar services are provided through GCF operations 1in
Japan, Scandinavia, Austria and Thailand and joint ventures in Spain, Indones.a
and India. GCF also provides consumers with MasterCard® products.

During 1995, GCF acquired operations that provide credit card services
and consumer loans in Germany, Australia and Poland. Service Bank provides
financial services to German r~onsumers through its branch offices located
inside Metro Group stores. With the acquisition of the credit card operations
of Coles Myer Ltd., GCF entered the Australian private label retail cred::
market. GCF entered the Eastern European financial services markets through
its purchase of Solidarnosc Chase D.T. Bank in Poland.

GCF is headquartered in Stamford, Connecticut,

Morcgage Servicing

GE Capital Mortgage Services, Inc. ("GECMSI®), wholly owned by GE Capital
Mortgage Corporation ("GECMC*), is engaged in the business of servicing
residential mortgage loans collateralized by one-to-four-family homes located
throughout the United States. GECMSI obtains servicing through the purchase of
mortgage loans and servicing rights. and packages the loans it purchases into
mortgage-backed securities which it sells to investors. GECMSI also originates
and services home equity loans.

GECMS: is headguartered in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.
Consumer Financial Services

Consumer Financial Services ("CFS") issues and services MasterCard® and
Visa® products originated through direct mail campaign:, private-label credi:
card conversions, telemarketing and point-of-sale applications. CF5 alsc
.ssues and services the GE Capital Corporate Card, providing pe'/ment and
information systems to help medium and large-size companies reduce trave.
costs, and the GE Capital Purchasing Card, which helps companies streamline
purcnasing and accounts payab.e processes.

CFS originates, acgqu.res and services home equity loans and lines of
credit, and services HUD-insured home .mprovement loans.

In addition to its Yieadgquarters in Mason, Chio, CFS alsc has offices 1in
Connecticut, New Jersey, Ohio and Utah.




Commercial Real Estate

Commercial Real Estate Financing and Services ("CRE") provides funds for
the acquisition, refinancing and renovation of a wide range of commercial and
residential properties located throughout the United States, and, to a lesser
extent, in Canada, Mexico and Europe. CRE also provides asset management
services to real estate investors and selected services to real estate owners.

Lending is a major portion of CRE's business in the form of
intermediate-term senior or subordinated fixed and floating-rate loans secured
by existing income-preducing commercial properties such as office buildings,
rental aparctments, shopping centers, industrial buildings, mobile home parks,
hotels and warehouses. Loans range in amount from single-property mortgages
typically greater than $5 million to multi-property portfolios of several
hundred million dollars. Approximately 90% of all loans are senior mortgages.

During 1995, CRE continued to broaden its investment base by buying or
providing restructuring financing for portfolios of real estate, mortgage
loans., limited partnerships. and tax-exempt bonds.

CRE also offers a variety of real estate management services Lo outside
investors, institutions, corporations, investment banks, and others through its

GE Capital Realty Group subsidiary. Services include acquisitions and
dispositions, strategic asset positioning, asset restructuring, facilities
management and loan servicing. CRE, through its GE Capical!-ResCom wventure,

also offers owners of multi-family housing ways to red.ce costs and enhance
value in properties by offering buying services (e.g. lighting, appliances) and
bundled telecommunications and video services.

CRE has offices located throughout the United States, as well as offices
in Canada, Mexico, Singapore, Sweden, and throughout the United Kingdom, 1in
addition to its headgquarcers in Stamford, Connecticut.

Globa! Project and Structured Finance

Global Projec:t and S:iructured Finance (*GPSF®) provides financing for
major capi:tal investments in the energy. industrial and infrastructure sectors,
historically concentrating in the United States market but more recently
conducting business in Asia, Latin America and Europe. At year-end 1995, GP5F's
portfolio included investments in energy-related [facilities, industrial
facilities and eguipment, infrasctructure projects, telecommunications
eguipment, railcars and marine vessels.

At December 31, 1995, GPSF's portfolio consisted of finance leasc= (both
direct financing and leveraged leases), operating leases, loans (both senior
and subordinacted) and equity investments (including collateralized., sinking
fund and adjustable rate preferred stock, joint ventures, and partnerships).
The portfolio is generally secured by liens on the financial assets, preferred
morigages, ascignments of earnings, insurance, guarantees, and rights to cash
flow streams.

GPSF provides syndication and private placement services for GE Capital
and GE Company t.ansactions. When such services are performed, GPSF typically
retains a portion of the transaction and places the rema:nder with one or more
other financial institutions.

In addition to its Stamford, Connecticut headquarters, GPSF has officesn
in Mexico, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong, China and India.




Commercial Finance . .

Commercial Finance (*CF*®) provides revolving and term debt financing for
working capital and capital expansion. The portfolio is diversified with
approximately 140 accounts dispersed throughout the United States and, to a
lesser degree, Canada and Europe. Loans range in amount from 55 million to
several hundred million dollars, and represent investments in the cable
television/media, retail, healthcare, manufacturing and food and beverage
industries. CF is active in the locan syndication market, selling and
occasionally purchasing participations in leveraged transactions.

CF has offices throughout the United States including its headgquarters :
Stamford, Connecticut and plans to open its European office :in the Un:ite
Kingdom.

o

Egquity Capital Group

Bquity Capital Group ("BECG*) purchases equity investments, primarily
convertible preferred and common stock investments including. in some cases,
stock warrants convertible into equity ownership. ECG's primary objective is
to realize long-term capital appreciation. Investments include the reta..,
financial services, healthcare, food and beverage, cable and broadcas:t:ing
industries.

The portfolio is geographically diversified with customers located
throughout the United States, as well as in Canada and Europe.

ECG is headquartered in Stamford, Connecticuc.
EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT
Aviation Services

GE Capital Aviation Services ("GECAS®) is a global commercial aviation
financial services business that offers a broad range of financial products to
airlines and aircraft operators, aircraft owners, lenders and investors.
¥.nanc:al products include financing leases, operating leases, tax-advantaged
ang other incentive-based f{inancing. GECAS also provides asset managemen:t,
marxezing. and technical support services to aircraft owners, lenders and
investors.

At December 31, 1995, the GECAS {leet comprised B90 owned and managed
a:rcraft on lease to 157 customers in 54 countries.

GCECAS has offices in California, Ireland and a number of other locations

wor.dwide including Great Britain, China, Hong Kong and Singapore and is
neadquartered in Stamford, Connecticut.

Fleet Services

GE Capital Fleet Services (°*GECFS") is the leading corporate {leet
management company in North America and Europe with 750,000 cars, trucks and

specialty vehicles under lease and service management, GECFS offers finance
and cperating leases to several thousand customers with an average lease term
of 33 months. The primary product in North America is a Terminal Rental

Adjustment Clause (TRAC) lease through which the customer assumes the residual
rigk--that i, risk that the book value will be greater than marke: value at
iease termination. In Europe, the primary product is a closed-end lease in
whicn GECFS assumes residual risk. In addition to the services directly




associated with the 1.. GECFS offers fleet umgn.ttwicnn designed to
reduce customers’' total fleet management costs. These services include, among
others, maintenance management programs, accident services, national account
purchasing programs, fuel programs, title and licensing services and safety
programs. GECFS* customer base is diversified with respect to industry and
geography and includes many Fortune 500 companies.

During 1995, GECFS added 13,000 vehicles to its European fleet. which now
totals 175,000 vehicles, with the purchase of Leasecontracts. plc in the United

Kingdom.

GECFS' headgquarters are located in Eden Prairie, Minnesota.

Genstar Container

Genstar Container Corporation ("Genstar®") is the world's largest lessor
of intermod:l shipping containers. Genstar maintains a fleet of over 1,300,000
TEU (‘twenty-foot equivalent units’) of dry-cargo, refrigerated and specialized
containers for global intermodal cargoc transport. Lessees are primarily
shipping lines which lease on a long-term or master lease basis.

Genstar is headguartered in San Francisco, California.

Transport International Pool

Transport International Pool (°"TIP") is the leading trailer specialist
offering diverse trailer programs and associated services. Tir's fleet of
over 100,000 dry freight, refrigerated and double vans, Llatbeds and
specialized trallers is available for rent, lease or purchas: at over 180
locations in the United States, Canada, Mexico and Europe. TIP also finances
new and used trailers, buys trailer fleets, and structures sale-leaseback
transactions. TIP's customer base comprises trucking companies, manufacturers
and retailers worldwide.

TIP i85 headguartered in Devon, Pennsylvania.
Railcar Services

General Electric Railcar Services Corporation (*GERSCO") has a fleet of
approx:mately 140,000 railcars leased to others in North America, principally

unoer operating leases. Rallcar maintenance and repair services are provided
py GCeneral Electric Railcar Repair Services Corporation, a wholly-owned
afi...ate of GERSCO, at its 15 repair centers in the United Staten and Canada.

GERSCO is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois.
Technology Management Services

GE Capital Technology Management Services (°GE Capital TM5"), is a leader
:n providing a broad spectrum of services that enable customers to utilize
information technology more efficiently by combining consulting, services and
financing options teo help businesses plan, acquire, manage and refresh
technology assets. These services and financing options include., among others,
acquisition, leasing, rental, installation, help desk network services, audio
visual rental and show services, and test eguipment rental, repair and
calibration services.




During 1995..E Capital TMS assumed r-lpo‘iliny for GE Capital's
Commercial Processing Service Center, an information technology data center and
outsourcing provider, and established the Network and Asset Management business
unit, enhancing GE Capital THMS®' information technology help desk and network
service capabilities. Also in 1995, GE Capital TMS5 acquired Andersen
Consulting‘s OM/NI Solution Center as part of an alliance formed between GE
Capital TMS5 and Andersen Consulting designed to promote full service
information technology. .

GE Capital TMS is headquartered in Norcross, Georgia. and has other
principal locations in Canada and California.

Satellite Telecommunications Services

GE American Comsunications (*GE Americom®) is a leading satellite service
supplier to a diverse array of customers, including the broadcast and cable TV
industries, broadcast radio, business information and integrated communications
services for government and commercial customers. GE Americom operates 131
communications satellites and maintains a supporting network of earth stations,

»“central terminal offices, and telemerry, tracking and control facilities. GE
Americom's GE Capital Spacenet Services business offers a full range of one-way
and two-way Very Small Aperture Terminal (VSAT) network products and services.

GE Americom is headquartered in Princeton, New Jersey.

Modular Space

GE Capital Modular Space ("GECM5*) maintains a fleet of approximately
68.000 non-residential relocatable modular structures for =~-tal, lease and
sale from over 100 facilities in North America and Europe. Markets served
include construction, education, healthcare, financial, commercial,
institutional and government. GECMS' operating leases average 12-18 months.

During 1995, GECMS acquired the fleet assets of HOB Units, N.V., in Europe
and Elder Equipment Leasing, lnc. in the U.S.

GECMS 15 headqguartered in Malvern, Pennsylvania.

MID-MARKET FINANCING
-
Commercial Equipment Financing

Commercial Equipment Financing (“CEF”) offers a broad line of financial
products including leases, loans and municipal financing to middle-market
customers including manufacturers, distributors, dealers and end-users.
Products are designad to meet customers’ financing needs and are either held
for CEF's own account or brokered to third parties,.

Generally, transactions range :in size from 5§50 thousand to $50 million,
witrh financing terms from 36 to 120 months. CEF also maintains an asset
management operation that both redeploys off-lease equipment and monitors asset
vailues.

The portfolio includes loans and leases f{or vehicles, manufacturing
equipment, corporate aircraft, construction equipment, medical diagnostic
equipment, office egquipment., telecommunications egquipment and electronics.

CEF operates from offices throughout the United States, Puerto Rico,
Canada, Mexico, Europe, India and Asia and through joint ventures in Indonesia
.and China. CEF is headquartered in Danbury, Connecticut.




Vendor Financial au'v.l .

Vendor Financial Services (*VFS*) provides captive financing services to
over 75 equipment manufacturers in 22 countries and 3,500 distributors and
dealers in seven countries. Customers include telecommunications, information
technology, healthcare, manufacturing and office equipment businesses.
Financing programs are tailored to meet the individual needs of each
manufacturer and distributor and include sales force training, u.arkecing
support and customized financing products. Funding, billing, collections and
other related services are provided by several highly automated service
operations around the world. VFS’ typical transaction size ranges from 52,000
to 5150,000, with typical terms between 36 to 60 months. Security interes:s
are generally maintained in the assets being financed.

During 1995, VFS acquired Pallas Leasing Group located :in the United
Kingdom. Pallas provides financing services to leading manufacturers, dealers
and distributors in the telecommunications, information technology and office

equipment industries.

Sales offices are located worldwide at sites that include the United
tates, Canada, the United Kingdom, Spain, Sweden, Mexico, France, Hong Kong,
India and elsewhere in Asia. VFS is headquartered in Danbury, Connecticut.

GE Capital Hawaii

GE Capital Hawaii Inc. (*GECH") operates in the s:ate of Hawaii and
territory of Guam. Through a network of 10 branch cifices, GECH offers
commercial and residential real estate loans, auto -.d equipment leasing,
inventory financing and equity lines of credit.

GECH is headguartered in Honolulu, Hawaii.
SPECIALTY INSURANCE

Financial Guaranty Insurance

FGIC Corporetion ("FGIC"), through its wholly-owned subsidiary Financial
Guaranty Insurance Company ("Financial Guaranty”), is an insurer of municipal
bonas, :including new issues and bonds traded in the secondary market and bonds
nelg :n unit investment trusts and mutual funds. Financial Guaranty also
guarantees certain structured deb:t issues in the taxable market. The
guaranteed principal, after reinsurance, amounted to approximately $99 billion
atr December 31, 1995. Approximately B87% of the business written to date by

Financ:al Guaranty has been municipal bond insurance.

Companies affiliated with Financial Guaranty offer a variety of other
services to state and local governments and agencies. These affiliates provide
liguidity facilities in wvariable-rate transactions, municipal investment
producls and cash management Services.

FGIC 1s headquartered in New York, New York.
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Mortgage Imur.lm:l. .

GE Capital Mortgage Insurance 1is engaged principally in providing
residential mortgage guaranty insurance. Operating in 25 field locations, GE
Capital Mortgage Insurance is licensed in 50 states and the District of
Columbia and, at December 31, 1995, was the primary insurance carrier for over
1,305,000 residential homes, with total insurance in force aggregating
approximacely 5160 billion and total risk in force aggregating approximately
533 billion. When a claim is received., GE Capital Mortgage Insurance proceeds
by either paying a guaranteed percentage based on the specified coverage, or
paying the mortgage and delinquent interest, taking ticle to the property and
arranging for its sale, In 1995, GE Capital Mortgage Insurance also began
providing mortgage guaranty insurance in the United Kingdom and Canada.

GE Capital Mortgage Insurance is headgquartered in Raleigh. North
Carolina. .

Credito - Insurance

Consclidated Financial Insurance ("CFI"), headquartered in Brentford,
Middlesex, England, provides creditor insurance in the European Union. The
insurance, which covers loan repayments, is sold through banks, building
societies and other lenders to retail borrowers.

Insurance Services

Heritage Insurance Group primarily comprises a Californ.a property and
casualty company and an Arizona life insurance company. Heri_age is licensed
to offer life, accident and health and property coverags in the District of
Columbia and all states except New York. Viking Insurance Company. based in
Bermuda, provides life, property and casualty reinsurance coverage. Other GE
Capital Insurance Services’ operations market and distribute insurance-related
products through direct brokerage and agent networks.

Insurance Services is headguartered in Stamford, Connecticut.

REGULATIONS AND COMPETITION

Tne Corporation's activities are subject to a variety of federal and
grate regulations including, at the federal level, the Consumer Credit
protection Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and certain regulations issued
py tne Federal Trade Commission. A majority of states have ceilings on rates
cnargeable to customers in retail time sales transactions, installment loans
an¢ revolving credit financing. Common carrier services of GE Americom a.=
subject to regulation by the Federal Communications Commission. Insurance and
reinsurance operations are subject to regulation by various state insurance
commisslong or foreign regulatory authorities, as applicable. The
Corporation's international operations are subject to regulation in their
respective jurisdictions. To date such regulations have not had a material
adverse effect on the Corporation‘s volume of financing operations or
profitabilicty.

The Corporation's charges for providing financing services are changed
‘rom time to time either on a general basis or for specific types of financing
wnen warranted in light of competition or interest and other costs. The
businesses in which the Corporation engages are highly competitive. The
Corporat:on is subject to competition from various types of (financial
:nstiturions. including banks, thrifts, investment banks, credit wunions,
leasing companies, consumer loan companies, independent finance companies and
finance companies associated with manufacturers.




[—___
Item 2. Prvp..r&. .

The Corporation conducts its business from various facilities, most of
which are leased.

Item 3. Legal FProceedings.

The Corporation is not involved in any material pending legal
proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
Omitred.
PART II
Item 5. slarket for the Registrant‘s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters.

See note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. The common stock
of the Corporation is owned entirely by GE Capital Services and, therefore,
there is no trading market in such stock.
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Item 6. lclod'l'ﬂlhuuudﬁl Data. ‘I'

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements of GE Capital and consolidated affiliates and the
relacted Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year acdsd December 1.

o -

1998 19 1993 1993 1891

(Dollar amounts in pillions) —— ———— - ssssssss ——————
ERINSY INCOME. . cucvissssnsssssnsnssnsnassis § 21.17% § 16,.53) £ 14,444 E 12,250 t Je I | |
BET BAININOE. . ccscsrusssrassnsssassrsnsnnns 2,261 1.918 1.478 Pty & 1 e L)
Retyrn on common eQuity (8) (b)....ecveunns 19.85% 15,508 17.14N 6.1y ML
Ratic of earnings to fixed charges....... ati 1.51 1.6 ~.62 -1 4 14
ARat:o of earnings to combined fixed

charges and preferred stock dividands.... 1.49 1.62 .60 142 .2
Ratic of debt t©~ equity (a)..... e Ein e wes 7.89 T.94 7.96 7.91 7.80
Financing receivables--Net......ccvevsnssas s 93,272 5 76,157 5 61,948 § 59,388 £ 55,752

Percen: of allowance for losses on
‘.rancing receivables to total

ILnANCLNG TECEIVADIER. .. ...iieennennas i 2.60% 2.60% 2.61% .60 2.600
TOLE. BEBEER. ... o ianavisobisrnsssasass . $160,825 £130.904 $1:7.939 $ 91,612 £ 80,528
Ehort-terT DOrrowingl...ccsseessuss PR 59,264 54,579 52.90) 46,492 4). 153
LOTg-LArT BENIiOr NOLEB. ... cocssnsssasss 47,794 33,615 25,112 2:.1m2 17,946
Long-terr subOrdinated NOCES.....orrsvessss 697 697 697 €97 325
MinOority INLErEBl........ sasanen sesemssnans 703 615 426 1T -
Equicy (ehiveasast ST B B 14,202 10,540 10,370 B, E32 T.872
(a) Equity excludes unrealized gains and losses on investment se_urities, net

of tax.

(o) Return on common equity is calculated using earnings from continuing
operations. Earnings are adjusted for preferred stock dividends and
equity excludes preferred stock.,

(c) Tne Corporation adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{"SFAS") No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Egquity
Securities, on December 31, 1993, resulting in the inclusion in equity.
ner of tax, of net unrealized gains on investment securities of 5543
million, net unrealized losses of 5655 million and unrealized gains of
S4B5 million at December 31, 1995, 1994 and 15991, respectively.
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Item 7. Managemant’s .onu.(u and Anslysis of m.l Operatiocns.

Overview

The Corporation’s net earnings for 1995 were $2,261 million. which, after
payment of dividends on its variable cumulative preferred stock, resulted in a
contribution of $2,204 million to GE Capital Services’ 1995 net earnings, an
increase of 17% over 1994. Net earnings for 1994 were 51,918 million, which,
after payment of dividends on its variable cumulative preferred stock, resulted
in a contribution to GE Capital Services' 1994 ner earnings of 51,888 million,
an increase of 30% over 1993,

Earnings growth during 1995 reflected strong performances £rom the
financing segments. Acset growth, with approximately equal contributions from
originatio~ volume and from acguisitions of businesses and portfolios, was a
significant contributing factor. The 1995 increase in earnings was partially
offset by a decrease in financing spreads (the excess of yields over interest
rates on borrowings) as the increase in borrowing rates outpaced the
improvements in yields, The increase in 1994 earnings resulted from asset
growth, improved financing spreads and asset quality along with a full year of
earnings relating to the 1993 mid-year acquisition of the annuity business. In
addition, financing spreads increased in 1994, when borrowing rates declined
subpstantially.

Earnings from the Corporation’s Specialty Insurance businesses increased
in 1995, principally because there was no current-year counterpar® tc che 1994
adverse loss development in private mortgage pool insurance. Earnings declined
during 1994 in the Specialty Insurance segment primarily cue to private
mortgage pool insurance losses.

Operating Results

Earned income from all sources increased 25% to $21,179 million in 1995,
following a 17% increase in 1994. Asset growth in each of the Corporation’s
financing segments was the primary reason for increased income from time sales,
-oans. Iinancing leases and operating lease rentals in both 1995 and 199&.
Y.e.ds on related assets increased during 1995 and 1994 after holding
essenz:aliy flat in 1993, ”

Gains on sales of warrants and other equity interests obtained in
connection with certain loans and sales of certain assets, including real
estate .nvestments, contributed 5381 million teo pre-tax income in 1995,
comparec with 5453 million in 1994 and 5647 million in 1993,

tarned income of the Corporation‘s Specialty Insurance segment incressed
:0% o 52,174 million in 1995 compared with $1,976 million in 1994 reflect.ng
prem.urm growth and improved investment results. Earned income during 1994 was
essentially flat compared with 1993 reflecting steady growth in premium revenue
oiisel by a reduction in assumed life reinsurance.
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The corrtlnt. between interest rate chunuc..nd financing spreads s
subject to many factors and cannot be forecasted with reliabilicy. Although
not necessarily relevant to future effects, management estimates that, all else
constant, an increase of 100 basis points in interest rates for all of 1995
would have reduced net earnings by approximately $60 millien.

Interest eaxpense on borrowings in 1995 was 56.5 billion, 46% higher than
in 1994 which was 28% higher than in 1993. Increases in 1995 and 1994
reflected the effects of higher average borrowings used to finance asset growth
as well as the effects of higher interest rates. Part of the 1995 increase
resulted from a shift during the year to longer-term funding. The composite
interest rate on the Corporation’'s borrowings was 6.77% in 1995 compared with
5.47% in 1994 and 4.97% in 1953

Operating and admipistrative expenses were 56.2 billion in 1995, a 15%
increase over 1994, which was 9% higher than 1993, primarily reflecting higher
investment levels and costs associated with acquired businesses and portfolios
over the past two years. These increases were partially offset by reductions
in provisions for losses on investments charged to operating and administrative
expenses, principally those relating te commercial real estate assets during
1995 and a combination of commercial real estate assets, highly leveraged
transactions and commercial aircraft during 1994.

Insurance losses and policyholder and annuity benefits increased 19% to
52.0 billion in 1995, compared with a 368 increase to $51.7 billion in 1994.
The 1995 and 1994 increases primarily resulted from annuity bencfiis credited
to customers of the annuity businesses acquired during 1994 and 1993,
respectively. The 1994 increase also included adverse loss development in
private mortgage pool insurance, particularly related to the effects of poor
economic conditions and housing value declines in souther— California. This
1994 increase was partially offset by lower policyholder benefits in the life
re:nsurance business resulting from reduced assumed volume.

Provision for losses on fipancing receivables increased to $1,117 million
inn 1995 from SB73 million in 1994, which decreased from $987 million in 199%3.
These provisions principally related to private-label credit cards., bank credit
caras. auto loans and autc leases in the Consumer Segment along with commercial
rea. estate loans, all of which are discussed below under Portfolio Quality.

Depreciation and amortization of buildings and egquipment and eguipment oo
operating leases increased 21% to 52,001 million in 1995 compared with S1,657
mi..iomn in 1994, a 4% increase over 1993. The increase in both years was the
result of additions o equipment on operating leases through eoriginatien volume
as weel. as business and portfolio acguisitions.

Provision for incaome taxes was 51,071 million in 1995 (an effective tax
rate of 312.2%), compared with $896 million in 1994 (an effective tax rate of
11.8%), and 5664 million in 1993 (an effective tax rate of 31.0%). The higher
prov.sion for income taxes in both 1995 and 1994 reflected increased pre-tax
earnings subject to Btatutory tax ratces. The marginal increase in the 1955
eifective tax rate resulted primariiy from proportionately lower tax-exempt
:ncome, partially offset by an increase in dividends received which are not
fully taxable. Incre~ses affecting the effective tax rate in 1994, compared

with 1983, included propcrtionately lower tax-exempt income and an increase in
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state and local inc. taxes. In addition, there -.no 1994 counterpar: Lo
the effects of certain 1993 financing transactions that reduceé <tne
Corporation’s obligation for deferred taxes. These increases were offset by
the absence of a 1994 counterpart to the unfavorable effects of the 19%3
increase of 1% in the U.S5. federal income tax rate.

Oparating profit by industry segmant

Operating profit of the Corporation, by industry segment, 1s summarized
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and discussed below.

Consumer Services operating profit was $1,030 million in 1995, compared
with $1.067 million in 1994, and §$709 million in 1993. Strong performances
during 1995 in the bank credit card, annuity and non-U.5. private labe. credi:
card businesses, resulting primarily from acgquisition growth, were offse: by
losses from adverse market conditions in the mortgage servicing business. The
strong 1994 growth in operating profit resulted £rom origination and
acquisition growth in the auto leasing business and the private-label and bank
credit card businesses. In addition, the operations of the annuity buvsiness.
purchased in 1993, were included for a full year in 1994.

Specialized Frinancing operating profit increased to S$651 million in 1995
from 5513 million in 1994, which increased 40% over 1993. The 1995 increase
resulted from lower provisions for losses, particularly in the commercial real
estate business, and increased end-of-lease residual realirzation. The increase
in 1994 principally reflected much lower provisions (or losses on highly
leveraged investments and commercial real estate assets.

t Manoagement operating profit increased to $B897 million in 1985
from 5624 million in 1994, which was up from S24F .ullion in 1993, Increases
in both years reflected higher volume in most businesses, largely the resul: of
portfolio and business acquisitions. The 1995 increase also resulted from
increased prices at the trailer, modular space and railcar businesses alouig
with cthe sale of an outdoor media business The 1994 increase also reflected
improved trailer, container and railcar utilization, and reduced expenses
associated with redeployment and refurbishment of owned aircraft compared with

2993,

Mid-Market Financing operating profit increased slightly to 5445 million
in 1995 compared with $435 millien in 1994 primarily due to continued asset
growth parctially offset by reduced financing spreads. Operating profit during
19%4 increased 7% over 1992 reflecting higher levels of invested assets,
promarily as a result of business and portfolio acquisitions and increased

financing spreads.

Specialty Insurance operating profit increased to 5341 million 1im 1995
crom SiBBE million in 1994, principally because there was no current-year
counterpar: to the 1994 adverse loss development in private mortgage pool
insurance. the result of poor economic conditions and housing value declines in
southern California. 1994 operating profit declined from 5422 million in 1993)
as praivate mortgage pool insurance losses more than offset operating profit
increases in other parts of the segment., including primary mortgage insurance.
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Capital l--ou:u-s‘lllldquidizy ‘I'
Statement of Financial Position

Investmant securities for each of the past two years comprised ma.nly
investment-grade deb: securities held by the Corporation’s specialty insurance
and annuity businesses in support of obligations to policyholders and
annuitants. The increase of 54.8 billion during 1995 was principally related
to acquisitions, increases in fair value resulting from lower year-end interest
rates and investment of premiums.

Financing receivables were 593.3 billion at year-end 1995, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts., up 516.9 billion over 19%4. These receivables
are discussed on page 21 and in notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other receivables were 56.4 billion and $3.6 billion at December 31, 1995
and 1994, respectively. The 1995 increase was almost entirely attributable :to
premiums receivable and reinsurance Trecoverables, reflecting acquired
businesses and a general increase in underwriting activity.

t on operating leases was 513.8 billion at December 31, 1995, up
§942 million from 1994. Details by category of investment can be found in note
5 to the consolidated financial statementa. Additions to equipment on
operating leases were $4.5 billion during 1995 and §5.6 billion during 1994.

Other assets totaled 517.6 billion at year-end 19%>, an increase of 53.4
billion from the end of 1994. £1.0 billion of the incrrase relates to goodwill
attributable to various acquisitions, none of waich was individually
significant. The remaining increase of 52.4 bi'*lun related principally to
acquisitions.

Insurance liabilities, reserves and annuity benefits were 5$22.4 billion
at year-end 1995, $3.8 billion higher than in 1994. The increase was primarily
attributable to acquisitions.

Borrowings were 5107.8 billion at December 131, 1995, of which 559.3
b:llion is8 due in 1996 and S4B8.5 billion is due in subsegquent years.
Comparable amounts at the end of 1994 were 5B8.9 billion in total, §54.6
p..lion due within cne year and 534.3 billion due thereafter. A large portion
of <he Corporation's borrowings (S38.3 billion and 41.2 billion at the end of
1965 and 1994, respectively) was issued in artive commercial paper markets that
management believes will continue to be a reliable rource of short-term
financing. ‘The average remaining terms and interest rates of the Corporation’s
commercia. paper were 41 days and 5.8B%, respectively, at the end I 1395
compared with 45 days and 5.90% at the end of 1994. The Corporation’'s leverage
{ratic of debr to eguity, excluding from equity all unrealized gains and losses
or :nvestment securities, net of tax) was 7.8B9 to 1 at the end of 1995,
compared with 7.94 to 1 at the erd of 1994. By comparison, including in equicy
all unrealized geins and losses on investment securities, net of tax, the
Corporation’'s ratic of debt to equity was 7.59 to 1 at the end of 1995,
compared with 8.43 to 1 at the end of 1994.

GE Company has committed to make contributions to the Corporation in the
event of either a significant, specified decrease in the ratio of GE Capital‘e
earnings to fixed charges or a failure to maintain a specified debt-to-equity
ratio in the event certain of the Corporation‘s preferred stock is ¢ _deemed.




The Corporm:. is exposed to prepayment zill.h certain of its business
activities, such as in its mortgage servicing and annuities activities. In

order to hedge those exposures, the Corporation uses swaps and option-based
financial instruments. These instruments generally behave based on limits
{"caps,” "floors" or *"collars®") on interes:t rate movement . These swaps and
option-based instruments are governed by the credit risk policies described
below and are transacted in the over-the-counter markets.

In addition, as part of its ongoing customer activities. the Corporation
may enter into swaps that are integrated with investments in or loans to
particular customers and do not involve assumption of third-party credit risk.
Such integrated swaps are evaluated and monitored like their associated
investments or loans, and are not therefore subject to the same credit criteria
that would apply to a stand-alone swap. All other swaps, forward contracts and
other derivatives have been designated as hedges of non-U.S. net investments or
other assetLs.

Established practices require that derivative financial instruments
rela*e to specific asset, liability or equity transactions or to currency
expo.ures. Substantially all ctreasury actions are centcrally executed by the
Corporation’'s Treasury Department, which maintains controls on all exposures,
adheres to stringent counterparty credit standards and actively monitors
marsecplace exposures.

Given the ways in which the Corporation uses Bwaps , purchased options
and forwards, the principal risk is credit risk - risk that cournterparties will
be financially unable to make payments in accordance wit’ the agreements.
Associated market risk is meaningful only as it relates to how changes in the
marker value affect credit exposure to individual counterpsrties. Except as
noted apove for positions that are integrated intc “’'iancings, all swaps,
purchased options and forwards are carried out within the following credit
policy constraints:

Counterparty credit criteria Credit rating
5 -
Moody'a Btandard & Poor‘s
- e e e e e
Term of transaction
Beilween one and five years........ Aal AR~
Greater than five years...... Qe Aan AAA
Crec:: exposure limits
Up to 850 million.cosiiee i sins s Aal AR -
Up oonST8 i)l ien o s rine ves Aaa AR

All swaps are executed under master swap agreements containing mu-ual
crec.: downgrade provisions that provide the ability to require assignment or
termination in the event either party is downgraded below Al or A-. Because of

e.r .ower rish, more credit latitude is permitted for original maturities
rier than one year.

Once a counterparty exceeds credit exposure limits, no additional
iransactions are pe-mitted until the exposure with that counterparty is reduced
an amount that is within the established limict. Open contracts remain in
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The conversion interest rate and curr igk into credit risk
results in a need to nitor counterparty credit risk actively. At December
31, 1995, the notional amount of long-term derivatives for which the
counterparty was rated below Aal/AA- was $2,297 million. These amounts are the
result of (1) counterparty downgrades, (2) transactions executed prior to the
adoption of the Corporation’'s current counterparty credit standards, and (3)
transactions relating to acquired assets or businesses. The toral exposure to
credit risk associated with in-the-money derivatives at December 31, 1995 was
S6B0 million. The Corporation does not anticipate any loss from this exposure.

Following is an analysis of credit risk exposures for the last three

Years.
Percentage of Notional Derivative Exposure by Counterparty Credit Rating
Moody's / B&P 19958 1994 1993
Ana/AAA. ... hiu e e R 75% 7% 65%

Aa/AA. . ... oiinnn. & A e T 22% 18% 2%

A/A ANd DBLOW. . e oo s uawsisiinsas 3% -1 1 12%

The optimal funding strategy is sometimes achieved by using multiple
swaps. For example, to obtain fixed rate U.S. dollar funding., several
altern. tives are generally available. One alternative is a swap of non-U.S.
dollar denominated fixed rate debt inro U.S. dollars. The synthecic U.S.

dollar denominated debt would be effectively created by taking che following
steps: (1) issuing fixed rate, non-U.S, currency denominated deb., (2) entering
into a swap under which fixed rate non-U.S. currency principsal and interest
will be received and floating rate non-U.S. currency principil and interest
will be paid., and (3) entering into a swap under which fle=".ng rate non-U.S.
currency principal and interest will be received and fixed rate U.S, dollar
dencminated principal and interest will be paid. The end result is, in every
important respect, fixed rate U.S. dollar denominated financing with an element
of controlled credit risk. This type of structure usually results from using
severa. swap counterparties for steps (2) and (3). The Corporation uses
multiple swaps only as part of such transactions.

The interplay of the Corporation’'s credit risk policy with its funding

activ.ties .5 seen in the following example, in which the Corporation is
assumes to nave been offered three alternatives for funding five-year fixed
rate ..I. dollar assets with five-year fixed rate U.5, dollar debt.
Spread over
U.B. mi.' u
basis points Counterparty

- - -

-. Fixed rate 5 year medium
ERBEM ' TIOEM i v on s » o sis:e s m e aals boue +65

2. U.5. doliar commercial paper
swapped into 5 year U.S.
dollar fixed rate funding...... +40 A

3. Swiss franc fixed rate debt

swapped into 5 year U.S.
dollar fixed rate funding...... =35 B
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Counterparty is a major brokerage house a Aaa/AAA rated swap
subsidiary and a current exposure to the Corporation of §39% million.
Counterparty B is a AaZ/AA rated insurance company with a current exposure of
S50 millien.

In this hypothetical case, the Corporation would have chosen alternative
2. Alternative 1 is unacceptably costly. Although alternative 3 would have
yielded & lower immediate cost of funds, the additional credit risk of
Counterparty B would have exceeded the Corporation’s risk management limics.

Portfolio Quality

The portfolio of financing receivables, before allowance for losses,
increased to $95.8 billion at the end of 1995 from 578.4 billion a: the end of
1994, with approximately equal contribution from origination volume and from
acquisitions of businesses and portfolios. Financing receivables are the
Corporation‘s largest asset and its primary source of revenues. Related
allowances for losses at the end of 1995 aggregated 52.5 billion (2.63% of
receivables - the same level as 199¢ and 1993) and are, in management's
judgment, appropriate given the risk profile of the portfolioco. Amounts written
off 1in 1995 were approximately 1.0l1% of the vyear’'s average financing
receivables, compared with 1.04% and 1.59% during 1994 and 1993, respectively.
4 discussion about the quality of certain elements of the portfolio of
financing receivables follows. Further details are included in notes 3, 4 and
S to the consolidated financial statements. Nonearning receivables are those
that are 90 days or more delinguent and reduced earning receivables are
receivables whose terms have been restructured to & below-market yield.

Copsumer receivables at year-end 1995 and 1994 are shown in the follow.ng

table:

1995 1994

(I mullzomns)y  meassassas =  sccss===
Credit card and persconal lcans............. 523,937 $19,124
AULD 1OAMB . v vvsvsmamsnsssssnsossarsnssssns 5,555 3,991
Auzo Z.MANCE 1BBEE......crcnceiiatonionnsa 12,461 T.473
TOLA. CONBUMEBY . ...ccnnsrnsnasssanssasasass 541,953 5$30.588
SEs=sssas= ERESEET
Nonearning and reduced @AINING. . crrvsvnsass S 671 s 422

A5 a percentage of total.....ovcucvuena 1.6% 1.4%
Receivable write offs for the year..... A " 644 S 482

Mos: o©of the nonearning consumer receivables were U.S. private-label
cred.t card loans. the majority of which were subject to wvarious loss sharing
arrangements that provide full or partial recourse to the originating retailer.
Del:nquencies in the consumer portfolio were slightly higher at the end of 199%
than 1994, consistent with overall industry experience.




Cosmercial te portfolio at year-end 1. and 1954 amounted to
§17.4 billion and $16.9 billion, respectively. as shown in the following table:

19895 1994

{(In milliomey 0000 ==sesssaa=s = Sssss===
Loans §13,405 $13,282
Nonearning and reduced earning loans..... z 179 179
Receivable write offs for the year........ 147 209
Assets acquired for resale.................. 2,335 2,103
Other (primarily ventures)..............:::: 1,651 1,508

Commercial real estate loans are generally secured by first mortgages.
Assets are acqguired for resale from various financial institutions. Values
realized during 1995 and 1994 on disposition of assets acquired for resale have
met or exceeded expectations at the time of purchase.

The commercial real estate portfolio included investments in a variety of
property types and continues to be well dispersed geographically. principally
in the continental United States. Write offs in the commercial real estate
portfolio declined during 1995, as markets continued to stabilize,.

other financing receivables, totaling 540.4 billion at December 31, 1995,
consisted of a diverse commercial, industrial and equipment loan and lease
portfolio. This portfolio increased $5.9 billion during 1995, primarily
because of acgquisitions, The related nonearning and reduced-carning
receivables increased to 5285 million at year-end 1995 from 516% million at
year-end 1994.

The Corporation has loans and leases to commercial airlincrs, as discussed
n note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, amounting to $B.J billion
t the end of 1995, up from $7.6 billion at the end of 1994. At year-end 1995,
ne Corporation‘'s commercial aircraft positions included financial guarantees
and funding commitments amounting to $409 million (8506 million in 1994) and
conditiona. commitments to purchase aircraft at a cost of §141 million (581
million at December 31, 1994). On January 22, 1996, the Corporation announced
tnat 1t nad placed a multi-year order for wvarious Boeing aircraft with list
prices approximating 54 billien.

1
-
a
-
c

Entering 1996, management Dbelieves that vigilant attention to risk
management and controllership and a strong focus on complete satisfaction of
customer needs position it to deal effectively with the increasing competition
in an ever-changing global economy.

New Accounting Standards

Two newly-issued accounting standards will be adopted in the first
guarcer of 1996 and are not expected to have a material effect on the
Corporation’'s financial position or results of operations. A summary of these
standards follows.

SFAS No. 121, Acecounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, requiree that certain long-lived assets be
reviewed for impairment when events cor circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If such review indicates that
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the carrying amo f an asset exceeds the sum .iu expected future cash
flows, the asset’s carrying value must be written down to fair value.

SFAS No. 122, Accounting for Mortgage Servicing Rights, requires that
capitalized rights to service mortgage loans be assessed for impairment by
individual risk stratum by comparing each stratum’s carrying amount with i.3
fair value. Impairment, if any, would be recognized in earnings.

2]




Item 8. Finaocial lﬂ‘l..-:a and Supplementary n-al.'l'
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
General Electric Capital Corporation

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of General Elec:ric
Capital Corporation and consolidated affiliates as listed in Item 14. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also
have audited the financial statement schedule listed in Item 14. These
consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the
responsibilicy of the Corporation’'s management. Our respnneibility is te
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the financial
stactement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence

upporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audi:t

alsoc includes assessing the accounting principles used and signif.cant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
srtatement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statemente relerred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financia' position of General
Electric Capital Corporation and consolidated affiliates at December 31, 1595
and 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31 1995, in conformity with
genera.ly accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related
financ.al statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
conso.:dated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
mater.a. respects, the information set forth therein.

/8. KPMC Peat Marwick LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 9, 1996
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Statemant of Current and Retained Earnings

For the years ended December J1 1995
(In millions) P —

EARNED INCOME
Time sales, loan, investment and other ircome (Note 12)..... §12.10¢

Financing leases (Note 12)........000000iunren . ik 3,17
Operating lease rentals Iﬂut- $l ...... . 4,079
Premiur and commission income nt uuu:ln:t affiliaces

(MOER Pl ievinensainnurnsns R A e e 1,020

Total earned ANCOME. ......icosvessrssssnis SN T T P 2:.17%

EXFENERS

interast [NOLE ) . . co.vcivenoossososssssnnsnnna I 6,455
Operating and administrative (Note 13)........cca04s ke 6,162
insu: ance losses and policyholder and nnnuzty h-n-‘:n

DO I 0 e m e e o o (B A R 2,031
Provision nr losses on financing uc.wnhl-s Nove €)...... 2317
Depreciation and amortization of buildings and egquipment

and eguipment on operating leases (Notes 5 &k 6)......... 2,001
Minority interest in net earnings of consolidated

affilisten..... e W e e BT 1

TOLE] MXPBNBEE: « o sass s e na s e s e e 17.047

Earnings before income taxes........ PPy L R 3,333
Provision for income taxes (Note I4)............- renssvan 11,071)
KET EARNINGOE . . . . .. :cacovvvrcssns chEEEEAEEERRESSAS SR EEEE RS 2,361
D.v.d-endln-lﬂ muur ..J R S L g LS 1.645)
Retained earnings at J-nury... EaE e 8,
RETAINED EAANINGS AT DECEMBER 31 . .. ... tasrepsarmanrana ‘e § 8,917

ASEFEAN

fec Noiles o Conso.idated Financ.a. Statements.
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GENERAL ll.ﬂ. CAPITAL CORPORATION AND a-‘m AFFILIATES

Statement of Pinancial Position

AL Dacember 31
(In millions)

ASEETS
Cagh ané equivalents.......cccovumuan e e T T e e T
Investzen: securities [(NOL® 2).....co0sansssansnacanans sasasishsnens
Financing receivables (Note 1):
Time sales and loans, net of deferred incoma. e -
Investment in financing leases, net of datcrr-d ;ncuno ............
Allowance for losses on financing receivables (Note 4)....... S
FiAARCING TaCOIVEDLIEE - "PL. . v s cccssssssrrasssssnsnsninnncanssnnsns
Diher receilvEbDleS==NlE ., . cciiicisssansassensiosasansssiinasoanosstons
Equipmant on nperating leases (at cost), less accumulated
arortization of S4,.670 and S4.029 (Note 5)........cccicnnucucnnannns
Bu.ldings and egquipment (at cost). less accumulated depreciation
of §9.5 and ST64 (Note 6).....0c0a0. - P ——
Ochnor assecs INOLE® 7). ....cuciuinas e R F G e S S e
Total assets. . ... ...... RS A L T e, 0 ey W A B A

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Snors-term porrowings (NOC® B)....covvsorvansnnanacs barensains sanenn
Long-ters porrowings (Note B)......ccc0ncnnns R R B B R B

o8l DOrrOWInNgE .. .ciisssssassasnsssasanuneas ]
ACCOUNES PRYRDLIB. cou v snravsssveaamesnpeas R T R T
insurance lisb:lities, r'ler‘l onﬂ annuity benefice (Note 9).......
OCREr ClBDE Ll oo s ieninsg anenassndsdetensnshendss aasassasanran.
Deferred income TAXES (NOLE® 1d) ... . ovsevvosnvmsnnsarasicansnns venuee

pl- - PRS- LR T 1 e e 11 S RGPS ot P S SR PSPPSR -

¥ rof.ty (ntefeast in eguity of consolidated affiliates (Note 10)....
va* an.r c.=..a:.ve preferred stock, 5100 par value, liguidation
orclererce 5.00.000 per snare (1E.000 shares authorized and
c..Gi87C %5 a1 Decexber 31, 1995; 10.500 shares a.thorized and
. ssates ouistanding & December JI, 19948) ... . i

‘o==p* sipca. 5200 par value (1,866,000 shares authorized and
1. B}T.82% snares outstanding ai December I, 1995 and
Jeceroer 3L, L9981, .. e

AL .. 000, PELG-LD CHPLEEL . v v nrrrrrrrrass s raer s bdssdsrnrsddssnss
HOLA "o PErnITN . v c s cnn i nas e B AT R L AP R et e P A S
rea. e i3 B) Of iMVEBLMEN: BECUTLLilB. .. cucvioansnnnns
re.qr m.r-nrcr irans.ation adjustments. b a BT e B
CLl8. CO=LLY INOL® 11 .. iuiirceer isnunnnsnssnannioosmsnnsmansnmes
Total liabilities and sguity...... bR e B T R BB

Ser hotes o Consolidated Financia. Statements
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95,790
(2.5319

s

83,272
6,408

1. 1M

1.478
17,567

160,825

§ 59,264
46,492

§160,825

FREEEEER

i9pa

§ 12
12.208

50.02:
28,198

TR.4L9
(32,0621

76,1357
3. 63¢

12,851
-.01R
14,10

$:110,904

EREEREES

§ 54,579
3¢ 212

$110.904
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- GENERAL II‘II!KIE CAPITAL CORFPORATION AND C!‘ll.hﬂ!ﬁl!!li.Il!ﬂl&JJU!II

Ptatemant of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31 1998
{In millions) S —

CASE FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nel earnings...... B T ey s S T Pt b eesss § 2,261
Aijustmsnts to reconcile net sarnings to cash provided

from operating activities:

Provision for losses on financing receivables............. 1,117
lncrease in insurance liabilities, reserves and

P PR TR . L e e - S S Viminiainrs 1,006
Increase in deferred inCOME CAXEE....--i:-sss00s 652

Depreciation and amortization of buildings and

equipment and equipment on oparating leases.............. 2,001
Increase (decrease) in sccounts payable................... 710
DEDE T ML o v it o porwin om0 A W A o R 357

Cash from Operating SCLIVIEi@E..........: » B AT e 8,11

-

CASE FLOWE FRON INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Mot increase in financing receivables (Note 18).......... (13.30%)

B...g.ngs and equipment and equipment on operating leases
L ORI . o i s o a i nn s s W RS e A e R (4,628)
~AIBPOBIELOME . 4o v s vmr i bartsdsssasssisisassess e 1,495

ray=ents for principal businesses purchassed, net of

tgl a:q;.r.d ....... A PR T T e ML e S, e e T i4,600)
iNVesIing activi :.ul (Note 18)....ivivecans 12,617
Cash cied for investing eCLivICi@®..coecssrscvmnsssarsrnss (21,659)

sess=ss

CASE FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Ne: cnange LR borrosings (maturities 50 days or less)......... 15,547)
Noewly .sBued deb: (maturities longer than %0 days) (Note 18).. 36,480
Hepay=e=is and other reductions (maturities longer

char 90 daym) INOL® 1Bk .. viricsnarmosmmmnwsbonsdotsssennss (17,045
DividernOs PaI. .. ccads s n s e o ah e e Y H o P e s {981)
csg.accc of preferred stock in excess of par value..... ERRRnp 924
LAB.aTce 0f var.abie cumuiative preflerred stock by
consd..catod afflliatl..... e B LR Sy A LR U e 120
A etRer TinARCINg sctivities (Mote 18).... ..o icvnrnnnanenn m
Cas- ‘ror [LDANCLNG BCLIVILI®E....covcorsvssnrsnans W, e 14,340
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CAERE AND lﬂv!‘Illl!! DURING TEX YEAR. 604
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. AT N AT 1
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR. .. .. ... . . .....cc0uueuun £ 1.316

Sev hotes 1o Consol.dated Financia. Statements.
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1904

§ 1,918

19,52%)

15,7340
2.417

12,144)
1,544

113,442)

R —

12,429)
22,47}

(11.69%)
(595)

240
i75)

T.915

337
1,049

s 112

189

14,2641

(3,133}
3,080

12,000
(5.028)

(13,935)

2,05)
15.25)

19,526)
1482)




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeants
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consclidation--The consclidated £inancial statements represent the adding
togecther of General Electric Capital Corporation (the *Corporation®) and all
majority-owned and controlled affiliates ("consclidated affiliates”). All
significant transactions among the Corporation and consclidated affiliates have
been eliminated. Other affiliates., generally companies in which the Corporation
owns 20 to 50 percent of the voting rights ("nonconsolidated affiliatee”). are
included in other assets and valued at the appropriate share of equity plus
lcans and advances. Certain prior period data have been reclassified to conform
to the current year presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management Gto make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Egquivalents--Certificates and other time deposits are treated as cash
egquivalents.

Mathods of Recording Earnsd Income--Income on all loans is recognized on
the interest method. Accrual of interest income is suspended at the earlier of
the time at which collection of an account becomes doubtful or the account
becomes 90 days delinguent. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized
either as cash is collected or on a cost recovery basis as conditions warrant.

Financing lease income is recorded on the interest m-thod soc as to produce
a level yield on funds not yet recovered. Estime _wu unguaranteed residual
values of leased assets are based primarily on periodic independent appraisals
of the wvalues of leased assets remaining at expiration of the lease terms.
Cperating lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the underlying leases.

Origination, commitment and other nonrefundable fees related te fundings
are deferred and recorded in earned income on the interest method. Commitment
fees related to loans not expected to be funded and line-of-credit fees are
deferred and recorded in earned income on a straight-line basis over the period
to which the fees relate. Syndication fees are recorded in earned income at Lhe

L=

time the related services are performed unless significant contingencies exist.

Premiums on insurance contracts are reported as earned income over the

terms ©of the contracts. in general, earned premiums are calculated o~ a
pro-rata basis. Premiums received under annuity contracts that do not have
sign:.f:cant mortality or morbidity risk are not reported as revenues hut as

ann..ty benefits - a liability - and are adjusted according to the terms of the
respective policies.

Allowance for Losses on Finsocing HReceivables and Investments--The
Corporation maintains an allowance fur losses on financing receivables at an
amount that 1t believes is sufficient to provide adequate protection against
future losses in the portfolio. For small-balance receivables, the allowance
for losses is determined principally on the basis of actual experience during
the preceding three years. Further allowances are also provided to reflect
management’ judgment of additional loss potential. For other financing

e
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receivables, prin.lly the larger loans and 1‘-. the allowance for losses
is determined primarily on the basis of management's judgment of net loss
potential, including specific allowances for known troubled accounts.

All accounts or portions thereof deemed to be uncollectible or to require
an excessive collection cost are written off to the allowance for losses.
Generally, small-balance accounts are progressively written down (from 10% when
more than three months delinguent to 100% when nine to twelve months delinquent)
to record the balances at estimated realizable value. However, if at any time
during that period an account is judged to be uncollectible, such as in the case
of a bankruptecy, the uncollectible balance is written off. Larger-balance
accounts are reviewed at least quarterly, and those accounts with amounts that
are judged to be uncollectible are wrictten down to estimated realizable value.

when collateral is repossessed in satisfaction of a loan, the receivable
is written down against the allowance for losses to estimated fair value less
coste to sell, transferred to other assets and subsequently carried at the lower
of coat or estimated fair value less costs to sell. This accounting method has
been employed principally for specialized financing transactions.

Investmant BSscurities--The Corporation has designated its investments in
debt securities and marketable equity securities as available-for-sale. Those
securities are reported at fair value, with net unrealized gains and losses
included in equity, net of applicable taxes. Unrealized losses that are other
than temporary are recognized in earnings.

Equipment on Operating Leases--Equipment is amortized principally on a
straight-line basis, to estimated net salvage value over thz: lease term or the
estimated economic life of the equipment.

Buildinge and Eguipment--Depreciation is recorded on either a
sum-of-the-years digits formula or a straight-line basis over the lives of the
aAsSsS€eLrLs.

Goodwill--Goodwill is amortized over its estimated period of benefit on a
srraight-line basis. No amortization period exceeds 30 years. Goodwill in
excess of associated expected cperating cash flows is considered to be impaired
and 15 written down to fair value.

Deferred Insurance Acguisitien Costs--For the property and casualty
bus:nesses, deferred insurance acquisition costs are amortized pro-rata over the
contract periods in which the related premiums are earned. For the life
insurance business, these costs are amortized over the premium-paying periods of
the contracts in proportion either to anticipated premium income or to Qross
profit, as appropriate., For certain annuity contracts, such costs are amo-tized
or the basis o©of anticipated gross profits. For other lines of business,
acguisition costs are amortized over the life of the related insurance
contracts. Deferred insurance acqguisition costs are reviewed for
recoverability: anticipated investment income is considered in making
recoverability evaluations.

Insurance Liabilities and Ressrves--The estimated liability for insurance
losses and loss expenses consists of both case and incurred-but-not-reporied
reserves. Where experience is not sufficient to determine reserves, industry
averages are used. Estimated amounts of salvage and subrogation recoverable on
paid and unpaid losses are deducted f[rom cutstanding losses.
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The 1ilhility. future policyholder bmn!i.u! the life insurance
affiliates has been computed mainly by a net-level-premium method based on
assumptions for investment yields, mortality and terminations that were
appropriate at date of purchase or at the time the policies were developed,
including provisions for adverse deviations.

Interest Rate and Currency Risk Management--As a matter of policy, the
Corporation does not engage in derivatives trading, market-making or other
speculative activities. Any instrument designated but ineffective as a hedge is
marked to market and recognized in operations immediately. The Corporation uses
swaps primarily to optimize funding costs. To a lesser degree, and 1in
combination with options and limit contracts, the Corporation uses swaps to
stabilize cash flows from mortgage-related assets.

Interest rate and currency swaps that modify borrowings or designated
assecs, including swaps associated with forecasted commercial paper renewals,
are accounted for on an accrual basis. The Corporation requires all other
swaps, as well as options and forwards, to be designated and accounted for as
hedges of specific assets, liabilities or committed transactions; resulting
payments 2nd receipts are recognized contemporaneocusly with effects of nedged
transactions. A payment or receipt arising from early termination of an
effective hedge is accounted for as an adjustment to the basis of the hedged
ransaction.

NOTE 2. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

A summary of investment securities follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortised unrealized unrealized fair
{In millions) cost gaine losses valus
Decamber 31, 1995
Corporate and other........ e $11.470 H] 447 s (62) $11,855
Mortgage-backed..........c000004 4,824 221 (63) 4,982
State and municipal........ ..., 3,781 196 (6) 1.97:
L e T T 2¢ N 3,090 257 (13) 3,334
I = s e i b e BT TS -,489 39 (21) 1. 507
U.5. government and federal
BORTTCY v s i 0 0 T e B 1,282 63 (3) 1,342
525,936 § 1,223 5§ (168) $26.991
December 131, 1994
Corporate and other............ s10,428 -3 3 S (755) S 9.676
Mortgage-backed. ............... 4.448 Bl (1BB) 4,341
Srate and municipal...........% 3 440 37 (166) 1. 311
B e T 2 SN e T e e § 2,917 156 (911 2.982
el i T a E RE a a e e R A R e 1.084 B (22) 1.070
U.S. government and federal
W RNl e G we bias Tem aeiala 994 - (166) 828
§23,311 H 285 S$(1.388) $22.208
EEoasE=ER EEEaEES EEEEEES 3-.'_I£IG=
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Contractual .riti-l of debt securities at ‘bl! 31, 1985, other than
mortgage-backed securities, are shown below.

Amortized Estimated
cost fair valus
lIn milliunsl - - - || seosssssss -
Due in:
E B R e e e e Y AT P, =y e §1,345 $1,369
B L b el o 1 L T o P L - 5,761 5,896
2000 = RODE i iinaaasasisis e tmsn et s 3,968 4,136
2006 And lALEr......cccacecsnnsasnrnensncnan 6,948 7,274

It is expected that actual maturities will differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers have the right te call or prepay certain
obligations, sometimes without call or prepayment penalties. Proceeds from the
sales of investment securities in 1995, 1994 and 1993 were $6,225 millionm,
$3,100 million and $4,922 million, respectively; gross realized gains were 5241
million, 5143 million and $129 million, respectively; and gross realized losses
were SB6 m.llion, 568 million and $31 million, respectively.

NOTE 3. FINANCING RECEIVABLES

Financing receivables at December 31, 1995 and 1994 are shown below.

(In millions) 1995 1994
Time sales and loans:
ConsSumer ServiCeS........oveee P A A ) £33,430 $25,906
Specialized financing.....cevusanesesavss R 18,230 17,988
Mid-market Linancing. ... i ceecesssressnsenss B,795 5,916
Equipment MANAGEMBNL . . < v resnssersansnnssns 1.371 1,516
SpecCialty INBUTANCE. . o vt srsasatnnsasssssess 189 -
62,015 51,326
Delerred INCOmE. s i di st e st e s eie ey 12.424) 1.305)
Time sales and loans--nat of deferred income. .. 59,591 50.021

Investiment in financing leases:

Direc:t financing leas@s. ... .cvvevrvvvsrsnnnas 33,291 25,916
Leveraged ledBeB... ...t ananaanan s 2,909 2,482
Investment in financing leases............ 36,200 28,398
95,791 78,419

Less allowance for losses (Note 4)............. (2,519) (2,062)
£93,272 £76,357

Ess=sssesr SE=Esssss

Time sales and loans represent transactions in a variety of forms,
including time sales, revolving charge and credit arrangements, mortgages,
:nstallment loans, intermediate-term loans and revolving loans secured by
business assets. The portfolio includes time sales and loans carried at the
principal amount on which f{inance charges are billed periodically., and time
sales and loans carried at gross book value, which includes finance charges. At

31




year-end 1995 and 1’ specialized financing and .nlu.ruar services loans
included $13,405 million and $13,282 million, respectively, for commercial real
estate loans. Note 5 contains information on commercial airline loans and

ilcases .

At December 31, 1995, contractual maturities for time sales and loans were
§24.543 million in 1996, $11,933 million in 1997, 56,635 million in 1998, §5,052
million in 1999, 54,424 million 4in 2000 and 59,428 million thereafter,
aggregating 562,015 million. Experience of the Corporation has shown that a
substantial portion of receivables will be paid prior to contractual maturity.
Accerdingly, the contractual maturities of time sales and loans are not to be
regarded as forecasts of future cash collections.

Investment in financing leases consists of direct financing and leveraged
leases of aircraft, railroad rolling stock, automobiles and other transportation
eguipment, data processing equipment, medical equipment, as well as other
manufacturing, power generation, mining and commercial egquipment and facilities.

As the nole owner of assets under direct financing leases and as the
eguity participant in leveraged leases, the Corporation is taxed on total lease
paymer :5 received and is entitled to tax deductions based on the cost of leased
assecs and tax deductions for interest paid to third-party participants. The
Corporation is also generally entitled to any residual value of leased asse:ts
and to any investment tax credit on leased equipment.

Investments in direct financing and leveraged leases represent unpaid
rentals and estimated unguaranteed residual values of leased equipment, less
related deferred income. Because the Corporation has no general obligation for
principal and interest on notes and other instruments representing third-party

reicipation related to leveraged leases, such notes and other instruments have
not peen included in liabilities but have been offset agr.nst the related
rentals receivable. The Corporation’s share of rentals rece.vable on leveraged
leases i1s subordinate to the share of the other particinants who also have
secur.ity Lnterests in the leased eguipment.

The Corporation's net investment in financing leases at December 31, 1995
anc .994 :s shown below.

Direct Total
financing leases Levearaged lsases financing lsasas
1995 1994 1998 1994 1995 1994

s = L L.onE) - - EEmmm-- sEmmmm- s Emm=e=

“eial T.AimuT lease payments
foece.van. e

$37,434 $30.338 §12.62% 5 9.6)0 850,059 §135.,9%68
&g pr.mc.pa. and interast on

Lm.rT0 party nonrecourse debt..... - 19,329) 17,3001 19,.32%1 (7.103)
%eL renials receivable........ 17,434 10,338 3,296 2 527 40,730 32,085
LEL.TaLed Jnguaranteed residuas
va..e 0 .eased amBecs.. ... e 4,630 3,167 1,138 1.122 L. T6E &, BR%
upr celersed LNCOME. . ... .... b i8.773) (8.18%) (1:.52%) 12.167) 110.298) 15.356)
investmant 10 financing leases..... 33 29. 25,916 2,909 i.482 36,200 38,398
~oFE: A._.owance fOF LOBBOB........ . (668) (471) (76) 159) 1743) 15700
Deferred taxes arising f(ro=
financing 1o BB, ... nesns i2,959) 12,470} (2,787) 12, 605) 15, 746) 15.075)
Ne. ihvesi=ent in {inancing leased. $29,.66) $22,97% s 4& $ (222) $2%,.70%9 $22,175%)

maEEEAN EEEAEES SEEEEEn EEEEEEE FEEEEES LR L R L
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At D.cmbnr* 1995, contractual uturitin’r finance lease rentals
receivable were $8,.7/80 million in 1996, $10.418 million in 1997, 56,837 million
in 1998, $3,631 million in 1999, 52,126 million in 2000 and $%.938 million
thereafter aggregating 540,730 million. As with time sales and loans,
experience has shown that a portion of receivables will be paid prior to
contractual maturity and these amounts should not be regarded as forecasts of
future cash flows.

In connection with the sales of financing receivables with recourse, GE
Capital received proceeds of 52,139 million in 1995, 51,239 million in 1994 and
51,105 millien in 1993. GE Capital‘s exposure under such recourse provisions
is included in °*credit and liquidity support-securitizations® in note 19.

Nonearning consumer receivables, primarily private-label credit card
receivables, amounted to 5671 million and $422 million at December 31, 1995 and
1994, respectively. A majority of these receivables were subject to various
loss-sharing arrangements that provide £full or partial recourse to the
originating private-label entity. Nonearning and reduced earning receivables
other than consumer receivables were 5464 million and $346 million at year-ends
1995 and 1994, respectively.

Or January 1, 1995, the Corporation adopted Statement of Financial
Accountiag (SFAS) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,
and the related SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan-
-Income Recognition and Disclosures. These Statements do not apply to, among
other things, leases or large groups of smaller-balance, homogeneous lcans, and
therefore are principally relevant to commercial loans. There was no effect of
adopting the Statements on 1995 results of operations or financial position
because the allowance for losses established under the previous accounting
policy continued to be appropriate following the accounting changa. The
Statements require disclosures of impaired loans--locans for which it is
propable that the lender will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
original contractual terms of the loan agreement, based on cur-ent information
and events. At December 31, 1995, loans that required di_._lusure as impaired
amounted to S867 million, principally commercial real estate loans. For 5647
mill:on of such loans, the required allowance for losses was 5285 million. The
reraining 5220 million of loans represents the recorded investment in loans
tna: are fully recoverable., but only because the recorded investment had been
recuced trnrough charge-offs or deferral of income recognition. These loans
mus: pe disclosed under the Statements’ technical definition of “impaired-”
because the Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
ariginal contractual terms of the loan agreement. Under the Statements, such
.oans do not reguire an allowance for losses. The average investment :in
impaired .ocans requiring disclosure under the Statements was 51,037 million
during 1995, with revenue of S49% million recognized, principally on the cash
Dasls.

NOTE 4. ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES ON FINANCING RECEIVABLES
The allowance for losses on financing receivables represenced 2.63% of total
financing receivables at year-end 1995 and 1994. The table below shows the

activity in the allowance for losses on financing receivables during each of
the past three years.
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{In millions) . I.. 1994 1993

Balance &t JANUATY 1.....oeveeevesssnnss e R $2,062 $1,730 $1.607
Provisions charged to operations...... o R N A b e 1,117 B73 987
Net transfers related to companies
acquired or B0ld. .. ...cicvaniins TR K » 217 199 126
Amounts written off--net........ R o R P QP (B77) {740) (950)
Balance at December 31.........c0000000s 000000222 £2,519 £2.062 $1,730
EEEEEE aEmaI=== SEEEEERE
ROTE 5. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

Equipment on operating leases by type of equipment and accumulated amortization
at December 31, 1995 and 1994 are shown below.

{In millions) 1995 1994
Original Cost

R e B e e S S S S A B e s 5,682 § 4,592
Vehicles..... o s R R AR R 4,948 §.542
Marine shipping cCONtainers.........ccoeeeevanas 3,283 3,31
Railroad rolling mtoek. . cvvsussnsinsnsaannnss 1,811 1,605
DEREE o i e o R T e W w G as 0 R a8 e A BE e e 2,769 2,807
18,463 16,880
Accumulated AmMOrCizZACION. ... . vt iennasesrsnnnana (4,670) (4,029)
£13,793 $12,851
TEEEEERE EEESEE .

Amortization of equipment on operating leases was 51.70Z million, §1,435
millien and 51,395 million in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Noncancelable
future rentals due from customers for eguipment on operating leases at year-end
1995 totaled 58,412 million and are due as follows: 52,501 millien in 1996,
$:.657 mill:on in 1997, 51,119 million in 1998, $£732 million in 1999, 5450
million in 2000, and $1,953 million thereafter.

The Corporation acts as a lender and lessor to the commercial airline
snduscry At December 1., 1995 and 1994, the balance of such loans, leases and
equipment leased to others was 5B,337 million and 57,571 million, respectively.
In addition, the Corporation had issued financial guarantees and funding
commitments of S409 million at December 131, 1995 (S506 million at year-end
1994) and had conditional commitments to purchase aircraft at a cost of S14!
million (SBl1 million at vyear-end 1994}. Included in the Corporation’'s
equipmen: leased to others at year-end 1995 isg 5101 million of commercial
a.rcraf: off-lease (5226 million in 1994).

NOTE 6. BUILDINGE AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and egquipment include office buildings. satellite communications
equipment, data proces.ing equipment, vehicles, furniture and office egquipment.

Depreciation expense was 5299 million for 1995, $222 million for 1994 and 5192
million for 1993.
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Other assets at December 31, 1995 and 1994 are shown in the table below.

(In millions) 1995 1994
Assets acquired for resale......c.ccceirrerisananns $ 3,998 S 13,867
Goodwill...... PR P R S L S ey Ry P R ) S e I 3,218 2,171
Investments in and advances to nonconsclidated
F UL SR L T R S g A e N 3,366 2,098
Real EBLALE VONLUTEBE . . cv.ccnornasssbasinsssssrnsnns 1,564 1,400
Mortgage servicing rights........ ..ot vanvsnsnsnss 1,6B8 1,351
Other intangibles. ... cocvcrsnsrorssscssnsnssssanss 778 1,003
Miscellaneous iNVEBLMENLE. .....c:sssssss20ssss e 789 62B
Deferred insurance acquisition coBLB........ccovv000 595 471
DERBE s s s s v as pos s mnassssusisssestsnrssdedsasreneeshs 1,571 1,145
§17.567 514,134
EEE===EE EEEEEEw

Goodwill, mortgage servicing rights, and other intangibles are shown net
of accumulated amortization of 51,090 million at December 31, 1995 and 5672
million at December 31, 1994.

Tozal short-term borrowings at December 31, 1995 and 1994 conristud of the
following:

1995 1994
Avarage Average
{(Dollars in millions) Amcunt rate Amount rate
Commercial paper = U. 8. ...cccveevrovennns $34,513 5.83% 539,275 5.89%
Commercial paper - Non U.S5...0000000 e 3,796 6.33 1,938 6.27
Current portion of long-term debt........ 15,719 9,695
D L T s v i s s e v s sma s aneaansnsnns e 5,236 3,667
£59,264 $54.579
EsEzE==s EaEEESSE

Tota. long-term borrowings at December 31, 1995 and 1994 were as follows:

Weighted
saverage
interest
IDoliars in millions) rate (a) Maturities 19985 1954
5eni0r HOCLEB. ... oiosossssnss 6.56% 1597-2055 547,794 $33,61%
Subordinated notes (b)..... 8.0 2006-2012 697 697
548,491 $34,312
EEEEEEE FTEEEEwTA
jal Includes the effects of associated interest rate and currency swaps.

() Guaranteed by GE Company.
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Interest rate currency swaps are employed t hieve the lowest cost
of funds for a particular funding strategy. The Corporation enters intc
interest rate swaps and currency swaps (including non-U.S5. currency and cross-
currency interest rate swaps) to modify interest rates and/or currencies of
specific debt instruments. For example, to fund U.S. operations, GE Capital
may issue fixed-rate debt denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar
and simultanecusly enter into a currency Swap to create synthetic fixed-rate
U.5. dollar debt with a lower yield than could be achieved directly. Such
interest rate and currency swaps have been designated as modifying interes:
rates, currencies or both, The Corporation does not engage in derivatives
trading, market-making or other speculative activities.

The Corporation used a portion of this interest rate swap portfolio to
convert interest rate exposure on short-term and floating rate long-term
borrowings to interest rates that are fixed over the terms of the related
swaps; interest rate basis swaps also are employed to manage short-term
financing £factors--for example, to convert commercial paper-based interest
costs to prime rate-based costs. At December 31, 1995 and 1994, such swaps
were outstanding for principal amounts equivalent to $9,851 million and $7.701
million with maturities from 1996 to 2029 and weighted average interest rates
of 6.45% and 6.2B%, respectively.

At December 31, 1995, long-term borrowing maturities, including the
current portion of long-term debt, were 515,719 million in 1996, 514,012
million inm 1997, $11,517 million in 1998, 55,480 million in 1999, and 54,4594
million in 2000. Additional information about |borrowings, as well as
associated swaps, is provided in note 19.

At December 31, 1995, the Corporation had committed lines cf credit
aggregating 520.4 billion with 128 banks, including 59.5 oillion of revolving
credit agreements pursuant to which the Corporation has the right to borrow
funds for periods exceeding one year. A total of $2.. pillion and 51.5 billion
of these .ines were also available for use by GE Capital Services and GE
Company. respectively. In addition, at December 31, 1995, approximately $108
million of committed lines of credit were directly available to a non-U.S.
aff.2iate of the Corporation. Also, at December 31, 1995, substantially all of
the approximately 5$3.1 billion of GE Company’s credit lines were available for
45¢ by the Corporation or GE Capital Services. During 1995, GE Capital, GE
Cap.za. Services and GE Company did not borrow under any of these credit lines.
Tne Corporation compensates banks for credit facilities in the form of f{ees
wnicn were insignificant in each of the past three years.

NOTE §. INSURANCE LIABILITIES, RESERVES AND ANNUITY BENEFITS

Insurance liabilities, reserves and annuity benefits comprises policyholders’
penefitg, unearned premiums and provisions for policy losses and benefits
re.ating to insurance and annuity businesses. The related balances at De.ember
31, 1995 and 1994, follow:

{in millions) 1995 1994
ANty DONEL Ll . . v i sr e e s e e e e £11,597 512.194
Other policyholder benefits.........ccocvvviiennns 7,913 3,778
roperty And CABUILY T@BEIVEE. . . . ... 0 cc0uossnsans 175 163
Financial and mortgage guaranty reserves.......... . 720 715
Un@arned Bl i s dacv e ot s sibm s rabnsaes i 1,996 1,743
522,401 £18,59)
EEEEEaEE FEEESES
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The lithil& for future policy hlncfit.:t the life insurance
affiliates, inclu in other policyholder benefits above, has been computed
using average yields of 3.5% to 9.0% in 1995 and 4.0% to 9.1% in 1994.

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and cla‘is adjustmen:
expenses 15 summarized as follows for the past three years:

(In millions) 1595 1994 1993
Balance &t January 1 - groBEB......cconcsans S 99% $1,047 $ 528
Less reinsurance recoverables.............. (138) (95) (74)
Balance at January 1 - net....... F Ty 861 952 B854
Claims and expenses incurred
CUZTENE YOAY . ... irsetrscinasssrosdssssas 838 600 434
Prior YRRER. c o566 aivaieneasesdbs b st 51 253 117
Claims and expenses paid
Current year....... S e A e i o (359) {189} (1G8)
Prior YRRAYE. .. cocovsiessissss wm-wrae g e R o i (394) {481) (333)
Reserves transferred to ERC.......iansuuuun - (291) -
Claim reserves related to acquired
COMPAnINR. .. .ccvcuvescannnrasneas S e 364 4 -
B I v v om0 T A : (5) 13 (12)
Balance at December 31 - NeC.....:ccer0es0s 1,356 861 952
Add reinsurance recoverables............... 76 138 95
Balance at December ]l - groSB..........e0. 51,432 s 999 §1.,047
EEESEE SEsz*a EEEAES

In December 1994, two insurance affiliates were transfe:-red to Employers
Reinsurance Corporation ("ERC®"), an affiliate of GE Capital S.rvices.

Financial guarantees of insurance affiliates as of December 31, 1995 and
1984, are summarized below.

iin millions) 1995 1994
Cuarantees, principally on municipal bonds
nt structured finance 1SBUBE...........c.s0.- 5119.406 §$106,726
Mortgage insurance risk in force............0.- 12,599 31,463
Credit 1:fe insurance risk in foree............ 10,260 B,940
LESS rEiNBUTANCE. « oot v s issnans (21,694) {19,353)
$140,571 $127.776
FaspEEms EEEESEEES

The Corporation’'s Specialty Insurance businesses cede reinsurance on both
& pro-rata and an excess basis. When the Corporation cedes business to third
parties, it is not relieved of its primary obligation to policyholders and
re:nsureds. Consequently, the Corporation establishes allowances for amounts
deemed uncollectible due to the failure of reinsurers to honor the:ir
obligations. The Corporation monitcrs both the £inancial condition of
individual reinsurers and risk concentrations arising from similar geographic
regions, activities and economic characteristics of reinsurers. The maximum
amount of individual life insurance retained on any one life is §500,000.
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The effects of reifirance on premiums written nnd.‘nud were as follows
for the past three years.

Written premiums Earned premiums
{In millions) 1995 1994 1993 1995 1994 1993
DiTeCt. s vscsnsnses 5$2.053 51,422 $1,312 £1.8139 51,401 §1,161
AEgumad. . . .oiesnra 154 108 266 124 106 268
Ceded. ... .. vsusesas (270) (151) {125) (143) (133) {125)
Net Premiums....... 51,937 $1,379 §1,453 §1,820 §1,3M4 §1,304

Reinsurance recoveries recognized as a reduction of insurance losses and
policyholder and annuity benefits amounted to $113 million, 540 million and
€161 million for the periods ended December 31, 1995, 19% and 1993,

respectively
NOTE 10. MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interest in equity of consolidated affiliates includes preferred stock
issued by a subsidiary with a ligquidation preference value of $360 million and
6240 million as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Dividend rates on
the preferred stock ranged from 4.2% to 4.6% during 1995 and from 2.B% to £.7%

during 1994.
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Changes in equity for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 199) are as
follows:

Variabls Oarealised roreign
Cumulative Additioaal piins (lesses) currescy
preferred Common paid-iz DNetsised on iovestmest trans-
(in millions) stock  stoak capital esarnings securities lations Total
Balance at January 1, 199.... § 1 8§ Té8 § 2,147 s 6,012 s 61 s (30} s B.68%2
Capital contributions......... - - 25 - - . 2%
Net unrealized gains on
iAVesCRent SeCurities........ - - . - [l . 491
Currency translation
adsuBtments. .. ... - - - - 134 (34)
NOL QAFNANEE. cccvasvssssnssnss - - - 1.478 E L.ATH
Oividends declared:
Common BLOCK. . ... o e . E - 460 - 14601
Preferred BLOCK......cvcnven . . - (22} . . 1221
dalance a: Uscember 31, 1991.. H 768 2,172 71,008 485 164) 10,370
Ne:i unrea..zed iosses on
Lavesiment SeCUriTies. . ..q.. . - - - 12,1400 - (-.340)
L4TTENCY trana.ation
BOJUNEENCE . « v v ns ins o snast . - o] * r i3 i3
Ne: QBATNINGE. . .. .cvivanansnnns . - - 1.918 . - 1.918
Dividends declared:
COmmOn BLEOCK. .oy evomsenons - B - 1575) - - 1575)
Proferred BLOCK. . . .ovvsiusns - - - 3o} . t30)
Ba.ance at December 31, 1994.. 1 Té8 2,172 8,321 (655) 167) 10, 540
Cap:ita. CONTTiIDULIONS . .vvrsuns - - 926 - - - 924
Broferred stoca issued........ 1 - 924 - - - $25
Ne: unreal:red gains on
JAVESLEENT BECUrLLIRS. . ... u.. - - - - 1,198 - 1.198
«rrency translation
B CBTEONTE » s s s asrsssaatnss - - B - - i3 i3
NEL CATTINDE. .0 v e s sy - . - 2,281 - . 2,361
J.vidends declared:
COPMOT BEOCR, o rraseasnstnsn - B - i1,580) - . (1,588
relosrTet BLOCA. . consnnapan - - - 157) - - (57
Ha_arce a. Dece=ber 31, 1995%.. 5 42 5 768 5§ 4.022 s 6.5)7 § 543 $ 170)  $14.,202
AREEEns ERERRRFE AEaEEEN ERAamEEEw AEmREEAN EEDEEEa adaRsEanr

A.. common stock is owned by GE Capital Services, all of the common stock
of nich 18 in turn wholly owned by GE Company. In 1995, GE Company
contributed to GE Capital Services certain assets of Caribe GE Products. Inc.
GE Cap:ta. Services in turn contributed the assets of Caribe GE Products, Inc.
to the Corporation. Also in 1995. the Corporation distributed certain assets
to GE Capital Services by way of a dividend and in turn received an equa’
capita. contribuction. These contributions increased the Corporation‘s
additional paid-in capital by 5926 million. In 1993, GE Capital Services
contributed the minority interest :n Financial Insurance Group to the
Corporat:on, which increased additiona’ paid-in capital by $25 millien.

Changes in fair value of investment securities are reflected. net of tax,
it oeqQuity. The changes from year to year were primarily attributable to the
effects of changes in year-end market interest rates on the fair value of the
Securities.
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During 1995, . Corporation issued 9,250 l..ionll shares of its
variable cumulative preferred stock. Dividend rates on the preferred stock
ranged from 4.2% to 5.2% during 1995, 2.3% to 4.9% during 1994 and 2.3% to 2.8%
during 19%3.

At December 31, 1995 and 1994, the statutory capital and surplus of the
Corporation's insurance affiliates totaled 54,120 million and $3,122 million,
respectively, and amounts available for the payment of dividends without the
approval of the insurance regulators totaled 5279 million and 5296 million,
respectively.

BOTE 13. EARNED INCOME

Time sales, loan, investment and other income includes the Corporation's share
of earnings from equity investees of approximately $113 million, 5169 million
and S106 million for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Included in earned income from financing leases for 1995, 1994 and 1953
were gains on the sale of egquipment at lease completion of 5191 million, $180
million and $145 million, respectively.

NOTE 11. OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employees and retirees of the Corporation and its affiliates are covered under
a number of pension, health and life insurance plans. The principal pension
plan is the GE Company Pension Plan, a defined benefit plan, while employees of
certain affiliates are covered under separate plans. The Corporation provides
health and life insurance benefits to certain of its retired employees,
principally through GE Company's benefit program. The annual cost to the
Corporation of providing these benefits is not material.

GE Company adopted SFAS No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits, in the second quarter of 1993. The Corporation adopted thi- standard
in conjunction with its parent. This Statement requires that employars expense
the costs of postemployment benefits (as distinct from postrectiremunt pension,
medica. and life insurance benefits] over the working lives of Lueir employees.
Trnig change principally affects the Corporation’s accounting for severance
veneflts, which previously were expensed when the smeverance event occurred.
Tne nei transition obligation related to the Corporation‘s employees covered
«noer CE Company postemployment benefit plans is not separately determinable
from zne GE Company plans as a whole; accordingly, there is no financial
statement .mpact on the Corporation. The net transition obligation for
erployees covered under separate plans is not material.

Rental expense relating to equipment the Corporation leases from others
for the purposes of subleasing was 5273 million in 1995, $262 million in 1994
ang 5239 million in 1993. Other rental expense was 5237 million in 1995, S198
m.llion in 1994 and $174 million in 1993, principally for the rental of otiice
space and data processing equipment. Minimum future rental commitments under
noncancelable leases at December 31, 1995, are $426 million in 1996, 5378
million i 1997, $340 million in 1998, $316 million in 1999, 5285 million in
2000 and 51,333 million cthereafter. The Corporation. as a lessee, has ro
material lease agreements classified as capital leases.

40




Amortizati deferred acquisition costs cl,od to operations in 1995,
1994 and 1993 was 52 millionn, $355 million and $330 million, respectively.

NHOTE 14. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income tax is summarized in the following table.

(In millions) 1995 19%4 1993

Estimated amounts payable.........cccevemnnusas £ 425 § 462 5§ 175

Deferred tax expense from temporary

QL LT RNICEE ¢« o na e e o m v e, &80 AL 653 448 496

Investment tax credit amortized - net......... (71 (14) {7
§1,071 5 896 5 664
E=ETEEE EEESON EsEESs

Estimated amounts payable includes amounts applicable to non-U.S.
jurisdic:ions of $158 million, $218 million and $116 million in 1995, 1994 and
1993, respectively.

GE Company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return which
includes GE Capital. The provisions for estimated taxes payable include the
effect of the Corporation and its affiliates on the consolidated return.

Except for certain earnings that GE Capital intends to reinvest
indefinitely, provision has been made for the estimated U.5. federr! income tax
liabilities applicable to undistributed earnings of affiliates and associated
companies.

A reconciliatien of the U.S. federal statutory rate .v the actual income
tax rate follows.

1985 1994 1993
Statutory U.S. federal income tax rate......... 35.08 35.0% 315.0%
.ncrease (reduction) in rate resulting from:
Rate :ncrease - deferred LAKES.......c.00u0eeus - - 5.6
Arorsizaticn of goodwill..........ciohvenennn. 1.0 0.9 1.0
TAX-EXRMEDL. INCOMB. oo s vnssscsssssnseansssss {3.0) (4.4) (5.0)
Dividends received, not fully taxable {(1.6) (0.6) [ e By
DO T = =TI s v i i e m 40 0.8 0.9 (4.5)
ACLull IiNCOME EEN TBE®. o ssseaasssssssssses 3j2.2% 31.8% J1.0%
Es=EN aEEzae SEEm=
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December 31, 1995

Principal c@s’l of the net deferred tax lin..ty balances a:
and 9

4 are as follows:

{In millions) 1995 1994
Assets

Allowance £or LOBBEE, s iiviies s ¢ o seive i aueeesise S (B4S) 5 (B62)

Net unrealized losses on investment securities....... - (382)

INBUTANCE TEBEIVEB. .. ..vcsiovsassnssarsssiosie e e e (128) (121)

o] ;75 X e e AR Sl s gl e S s e (936) (961)
Total deferred CAX ABBELH. . ....ccoi i eiviisnnensnnanres (1,909) (2,326)
Liabilities

Financing leases...........cc00.: R PR bR g L 5,746 5,075

Operating lOABEE. .. ....ccc00006cctcssursssssssssnsnsan 1,367 1,233

Net unrealized gains on investment securities........ 162 -

[ 115 T O o . 996 1,285
Toral deferred tax liabilities....... covivvvnninnnnnnne 8,471 7.593
Net deferred tax 1liability......vvveivnrenenennncnnnnes 56,562 55,267
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Industry segment operating data and identifiable assets are shown below.

{In millions)

Earned Income:
Consumer Services....... e T e
Specialized Financing......ccvovuuens
Equipment MANAQEMENT.......q00:0:8:44
Mid-Market Financing.......coeeeeuons
Specialty INBUTANCE. . ... veasrescssss

COYPOXALE. . s c coccmsnessuasatabainegsves

Total earned iNCOME.....ovevasunsanansan

Segment operating profic:
ConsSumery SeIViCeB......cocrsensnsrsanss
Specialized Financing......eusuoevunas
Equipment. MANAQEMENT. . ...covvewrannas
Mid-Maret Financing....... S .
SpecialiLy INDBUTANCE. ... ccueanssossas

Toral segment operating profit.........
COrPOrate. « cosnsssnsnse i G e

Earnings before income CAX@E....:::s:4:

Identifiable assets at December 31:
Consumer Services..... A T R e
Specialized Financing. ....ccoaveeusee
Eguipment: Management......:cssssss 554
M:c-Marxet Financing......... T
Spec.aliy INBUFANCE. . ..ccsnaas &)
COTPOrATR: cvvsvsas s s rs s sstsnnsmesnsas

-

TOEA: AEBEUE oo me e wwe e s s o b e e oe s 5Ine e g
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§ 21,179

§ 1.030
651

————————

S 73,076
30,285
25,072
21,565

9,841
986

________

$160,825

$ 16,923

$ 1.067
513
624

++++++++

§ 54,.i4
28,149
23,197
16,1367

7,835
1,185
§130,904

§ 14,444

§ 709
366
246

________

s 2,142

$ 45,772
27,065
20,145
14,022

9,579
1,352
$117,939




NOTE 16.  QUARTERLY rlnb DATA (unsudited) .

Summarized guarterly financial data are as follows.
First guarter Second guarter Third guarter Fourth guarter

EEEEE s E————— o ——— - v EEssssEsssm=-

{In millions) 1995 1954 19985 i 1995 1994 1998 1994
Eaznad NCOBE. . orrarsssonsssss $4,790 $1,B0@ 355,169 53,982 $£5,395 $4,306 55,825 54,827
Expenses:

IRERERBE L i Y S e e 1.502 g85 1,629 1,056 1,662 1.098 1,683 1,275

Operating and adminiscrative.. 1,432 1,265 1,512 1.)12 1,456 1,222 -, 162 1,550
inssrance losses and
policynolder and annuity

benefitE.....0n. T PR e 516 sl (4:11 292 €45 57% 58¢ 14 ]
Praovision for loases on
financing receivables....... 79 i70 79 251 152 18¢€ 407 166

Depreciacion and amortization
of puildings and eguipsent
and equipmen: : n opearating

1@BBEE, .- it rriba s aes 450 £]-1 489 ez a7 425 575 466
M.INOTILY ANTerass i net
earninge of consol.dated
Y B Y R e R YA 17 18 16 43 1% 18 1 e
Farrnings pefore .ncome taxaes, ... 194 6315 158 EdE 278 TE2 802 LY
Provision 107 inCOMmE CAKES...... 1266) 1181} (241) 1205) (330 (234} 1234} 1266
NOL GRTTINGE. . crieiaans Iy .. 8 528 0§ 444 5 517 5 441 5 648 5 548 S5 S6B 5 405
PEEFAN EFaEEe SeRAaEs EpwEaw EEEERE EEERFES EEaRas EEEEan

ROTE 17. RESTRICTED NET ASSETE OF AFFILIATES

Certain consolidated affiliates are restricted from remitring furds te the
Corporation in the form of dividends or loans by a variety of r~~-lations, the
purpose of which is to protect affected insurance policyholders, depositors, or
inVesIors, At year-end 1995, net assets of the Corporation’'s regulated
atfiliates amounted to $%.3 billion, of which §7.4 billion was restricted.

HOTE 18. SUPPLEMENTAL CASHE FLOWS INFORMATION

*Otner--ne. operating activities” in the Statement of Cash Flows consistcs
principa..y of adjustments to current and noncurrent accruals of costs and

expenses. amortization of premium and discount on debt, and adjustments to
asseis such as amortization of goodwill and intangibles.

Tne Statement of Cash Flows excludes certain noncash transactions that

rag no significant effect on the investing or financing activities of the
Corporazion other than the non-cash dividends disclosed in note 11.
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Certain lupp‘ntul information related to .Eorporltion B cash flows
is shown below.

For the years snded December 11
{in millions) 1995 1994 1993

Essss=== s mmm= s

Fisancing receivables

Increase in loans to customers......... vesssssmssssneassssnnns SlU6,154) $(37,059) $130. 0021
Principal collections from CuStOMBIS.....covscrnuss B b 44, 840 1.264 27,5811
Investmant in equipmentc for Linancing 1leaBel........sceeeaunns (17.182) (12,528 17.204
Principal collections on financing leases......... conrnnsssss 8,82: B, 462 €.050
Ne: change in credit card receivablaes...... (3,710 12,902) (1.645%)
Sales of financing receivables with recourse........ 2.139 10239 105
$011.,30%; § 15.52%) § 1&,568)
SEEESEsER AasEsAsREs apadinna

All othar investing activities

Purchases of securities by insurance and annuity businessses... S5(6.408) 5 15,484) $17,5271
Dispositions and maturities of securitles by insurance
and ANAUICY DUBSINBEEEB. .. ... .ccnicanacans 5,066 £.417 5.621
Proceeds from principal bunmlu duponunnl. ..... IRl LT 575
other..... RO LS o vyt e SRR Sy vy gy T 12,649 2.6%% 13,724
§ (2,617) 5 L.544 5 (5.6
SAsEREEN eEnEesanx ANEABEN A

Mo rly issusd dabt baving maturitiss longer thas 50 days

Shori-term (91 to 365 ABYR) .. .ovvveiecnnias resesinvssnsansdnns B T,5949 § 1,214 £ 4,115
Lorg-term (longer CHan one Ye&F).....sxoseassan B R LT 32,507 19,228 i0.BB%
Proceeds -- nonrecourse, leveraged lease dabt................. 1,428 b 5 53
§ 16,480 $ 22. i‘l 5 15, 25]
ERARESEAEN FLEET LB SEEEEREN

Repaymacts and other reductions of dabt baring maturities
longear than 50 days

Tt -CHEr (91 20 JBS GaYVB) i icrrnsnnvinoraivnnsasrs vt anes 5(16,075) $110,460] S 19,.008)
wong-terrs (longar TRAN One YOBRE) . cvsssascsssassasssnssrannss (67F, 19301 1206}
frincipa. paymants -- nonrecourse. leveraged leass debt...... 1492) 130%) 13121
$117,045) $111,699) § 19,5261
EssnNmEN EEASEREw EESERENE

All othar financing sctivitiess

Procoeds ‘ro~ sa.CR of investimen: and annulty coniracts...... § L. 554 1 LI 1 5 50%
Fege=pL.os o! investment and annJiiy CONLracis... ... L i2.061) 19830 13781
Cas.ia, comsr.poiions from paren: COEPANY . . s-vsrsss ‘ . LT 25
s 177 1 175} 1 1y
SEERFSRERES AnaEEREN SLEmdus

Cash recoversd luul during the ysar for:
rieress o R R T o o I B B Rl o 2 5 (5,970} £ 14,005%) $ 13,298)

BT T T T ] PR e e e SO R e R DI AR e 217 (E1 1] 1233

Changes :n operating assets and liabilities are net of acguisitions and
dispositions of businesses.

*pPayments for principal businesses purchased® in the Statement of Cash
Flows 15 net of cash acquired and includes debt assumed and immediately repaid
:n acquisitions. In conjunction with the acquisitions, liabilities were

assumed as follows:

1888 1884 i)
Fa.s va.ue of assets scguired. . .......... I Rty 815,496 § 7,992 §15.17%
Cadn pB28. ... icainisnar i i ; AT 1€.74%) i2. 220! [2.988)
T - T ] T 1 T LT, [ A PR ST P L P §10,747 55 1?2 $12.187
EEEREEER SseEsEN LA B R R RN
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NOTE 19. llﬂ!!!ﬂl"l!llﬂlll!!ﬂl ABOUT FIEANCIAL IIJ'I‘III!I

This note contains estimated fair values of certain financial instruments to
which the Corporation is a party. Apart from the Corporation’s own borrowingc
and certain marketable securities, relatively few of these instruments are
actively traded. Thus, fair values must often be detcrmined using one or more
models that indicate value based on estimates of quantifiable characteristics
as of a particular date. Because this undertaking is, by its nature, difficult
and highly Jjudgmental, for a limited number of instruments, alternative
valuation techniques may have produced disclosed values different from those
that could have been realized at December 31, 1955 or 19%4. Moreover., the
disclosed wvalues are representative of fair wvalues only as of the dates
indicated. Assets that, as a matter of accounting pelicy, are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements at £fair value are not included in the
following disclosures; such assets include cash and eguivalents, investment
securities, and other receivables.

Values are ¢stimated as follows.

Tize sales and loans. Based on quoted market prices, recent Cransactions
and/or discounted future cash flows, using rates at which similar loans would
have been made to similar borrowers,

Borrowings. Based on quoted market prices or market comparables. Fair values
of interest rate and currency swaps on borrowings are based on quoted market
prices and include the effects of counterparty creditworthiness

Anpuity benefits. Based on expected future cash flows, discounted at
currently offered discount rates for immediate annuity contracts or cash
surrender value for single premium deferred annuities.

Fipancial guarantees. Based on future cash flows, considering expected renewal
prem:ums, claims, refunds and servicing costs, discounted at a market rate.

All other instruments. Based on comparable transactions, market comparables.

d:scounted future cash flows, quoted market prices, and/or estimates of the
cost Lo terminate or otherwise settle obligations to counterparties.
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Information

value at December 31, 1995 and 1994,

Assets l:l.l.l.hul.tlu]

- —

Bacimaved fair

Carrying
Botionsl a;oest
mmcrant (mat )
At December )I (In milllions) P
Anpers
Time sales And 1OANB. .. ..c.ou i insaiinianaas ] il 37, Ii'-‘
Integrated LNLErast FaLe FwalS........- ver 2703
Purchased OpLionB. .. sroscsnrsmcnstnsnsans 1.21) H
Korcgage-relaced positions
Morcgage PUrchass CORMiILBERLS.......... i.3)e90 -
MOrtgage BALS CORMBITBENLE . .....isoesiss: 3,304 -
Memo: mortpages hald for sale (B)..... ‘) 1,08)
optioas, including *floore*.........e0.. 10,5322 67
INCArest FOLE BWADS. . ... ::ssssssszzsscs 1,990 *
O:ther cash financial :.n.l.:n_u ia) 1,878

Liabilities
Borrowings and related lnscruments
worrowings (€| (dl .
interesst rate -l#
Currency Swaps .

Purchased cpiions. .. .e 16
Annuicy DENEfiCE. . .civiiiin i a s (21,397
insure ite -- Financial guarantees

and coedit 1if® @) . i ncnrinnininannns . 40,871 11.%0%)
Credit and uq-ul.ut,- .-umrr.--

Pecuritizations. L R A § o 6,080 1
Performance uu-nn:m == lrmzlﬂur

iatters of credic. . R e 2,622 e
other -- prmcl:u.hr l.unul.nr

Commitments. .. ... R ——— 1.556 1

Other f{ire coesmiimenis

Currency forwards and npum .......... .18 .

Currency BwaPl. . . .:: sonnvanssnsss f ane .

Crdinary courss nf Iluulult .:ndl.m

COMBLLBENEE . - v ovansrrnes onansns . 6.92%

Uniused revolving :rl-du :I..'mn-

COMBEFCLBE . v vsssssspbsaansran 31,223 "
Consusar - pranﬂﬁur f.'ﬂvdu.
caras 118,710 -
F Nos upp.acnb‘lc
(51 inciuded im other cash f:nancisl inscruments.

Suee¢ note 8.
includes interest
note 9.

ici
£+
L} - Sev

fate anc currency Swaps.

at

o7, Till 108,118)

walee

Eigh Lurwr
£ 59,108 § 58.2%%
[§ 2 1] (£33
11 11
7 17
(151 1ii
1.868) 1,881
144 144
11 11
.0 2.01%
(109,118
(496 (496)
#1317 11
12) 2
31,3800 (31,380
1778) (£ 114
(E11] (1]
1 1791
51171 4%
1] 1%
1221 aa
168) 180}

t financial instruments r.ha.crn not carried at fair
is shown below.

- smsssssssssssssssssas

Aasecs (liabilities)

ssssssssssssssssEmssnsEs

Estimated fair

Carrying v lus
T T —
L imat) Righ Low
s jal B 48,529 % &% 494 5 48 BaC
1.10) - [ 13 (13
i@ H 2 H
0% | (2
1.782 . H 2
[ 1] L.Te Hl T . Ted
50 - 137 amn
ial 1.092 2.180 2.058
i) (BB BRLY QRT.BIN) (#7518
20,304 41 18
L.a9% L1 [
124 H3 ] 1? S |
imr (12,194 11,0360 (1L MIwm)
127,774 S 1 (629} 11681
5,008 12 1 (FH
.127 i ELY tien
3. 168 (%] n
1,108 - i2 12
488 . ($1] i
g, 40 - 13 1501
. adl .
101, %82 .




Additional information about certain financial instruments in the above table
follows.

Currancy forwards and options are employed by the Corporation to manage
exposures to changes in currency exchange rates associated with commercial
purchase and sale transactions. These financial instruments generally are used
to fix the local currency cost of purchased goods or services or selling prices
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. Currency
exposures that result from net investments in affiliates are managed
principally by funding assets denominated in local currency with debt
denominated in those same currencies. In certain circumstances, net investment
exposures are managed using currency forwards and currency swaps.

Options other than currency options. The Corporation is exposed to prepayment
rigk in certain of its business activities, such as in its mortgage servicing
and annuities activities. In order to hedge those exposures, the Corporation
uses one-sidcd financial instruments containing option features. These
instruments generally behave based on limits ("caps.” "floors” or "collars*) on
inte rest rate movement.

Interest rate and currency swaps are used by the Corporation to optimize
borrowing costs for a particular funding strategy (see note 8) and to establish
spec.fic hedges of mortgage-related assets and to manage net investment
exposures. Such swaps are evaluated by management under the credit criteria
set forth below. In addition, as part of its ongoing customer activities, the
Corporation may enter into swaps that are integrated with invesrments in or
loans to particular customers and do not involve assumptica of third-party
credit risk. Such integrated swaps are evaluated and monitored like their
associated investments or loans, and are not therefore rubject to the mame
credit criteria that would apply to a stand-alone swap.

Counterparty credit risk. CGCiven the ways in which the Corporation uses swaps,
purcnased options and forwards, the principal risk is credit risk--risk that
counterparcties will be financially unable to make payments in accordance with
the agreements. Associated market risk is meaningful only as it relates to how
cnanges .n market value affect credit exposure to individual counterparties.
txceps as noted above for positions that are integrated inte financings. all
swaps, purchased options and forwards are carried our within the following
Creg.t po..Cy CONsStraints:

Once & counterparty reaches a credi: exposure limit (see table below]. no
adc:tional transactions are permitted until the exposure with that counterparty
.8 reduced to an amount that is within the established limit. Open contracts
rema:n an force.

Counterparcty credic cricteria Credit rating
Moody's Btandard & Poor’s

Terr of ctransaction

Five years or 1eBB....ccvavrvannss T Aal -

Greater than five YeArB........coivevensns Aaa AAA
Cred:1 exposure limits

Up to SO0 ' MIL1EOR. v saveresawmsenaemaeens Aal AA-

Up to S75 MElIEom. v nmn v amivssssmmses s Aaa ARA
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- All swaps l!‘lmtld under master swap l‘nnm;: containing mutual
credit downgrade provisions that provide the ability to require assignment or
termination in the event either party is downgraded below Al or A-.

Because of their lower risk, more credit latitude is permitted for orig:inal
maturities shorter than one year.

ROTE 20. GEOGRAFHIC SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographic segment operating data and total assets are as follows:

Earned income Oparating profit

{In millions) 1995 1994 1993 1995 1994 199)
United States........ §15,306 s12,832 $11,303 $2,740 52,327 51,921
EUZOPE. ccvsssnnsnssas 2,729 1,886 1,425 293 203 (8)
Global-including

other areas of the

WOl .cnmerrenn e 3,144 2,205 1,716 299 284 22%

TOEALl e eivnm vwssnunvns §21,179 516.,92) S$14,444 £3,332 82,814 52,142

Total assets

{In rillions) 1995 1994 1993
United StateB........ §121,078 S104.610 S 97,465
BUrOp®; i ivinnssosi 19,895 9,774 6,800

Global -including
other areas of the

WOETAL  vsaiae diva wanas 19,852 16,520 13.670
TOLal. e nssimmsonna §160,.825 S130.9%04 $117,939
SASEEENE =ZSSZRSISE SEERENSE

The pas.s of presentation of geographic segment information was revised in 1995
v rec.ass:fy the results of certain business activities within GE Capital that
are essentially global in nature to *“Global-including other areas of the
world.” Prior-year amounts have been restated to conform to the current year

presentacion.
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Item

Itex

Itex

Item

Itam

Itam

{a)

(a)

10.

11.

i13.

13.

14.

Changes ia‘lhllﬂllattcnnutl with Iﬂﬂﬂﬂltll‘l'Lﬂ Accounting and-:
Financiml Disclosure.

Not applicable

PART III

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.
Omitted

Executive Compensstion.
Omitted

Security Ownership of Certain Baneficial Owners and Management.

Omitted

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

Omicted

PART IV
Exhibits, Fipancial Statesent Schedules, and Reports o Form B-K.
Financial Btatements

Included in Part II of this report:

Independent Auditors’ Report

Statement of Current and Retained Earnings for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 1995

Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 1995 and 1994

Statement of Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 1995

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Incorporated by reference:
The consolidated financial statements of General Electric
Company, set forth in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of General
Electric Company (S5.E.C. File No. 001-00035) for the year ended
December 11, 1995 (pages F-1 through F-40) and Exhibit 12 (Ratio
of Earnings to Fixed Charges) of General Electric Company.

Financial Stateament Bchedules
Condensed financ:al information of registrant.
1l other schedules are omitted because of the absence of

conditions under which they are reguired or because the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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ia) 3.

cnco i @haen @

The exhibits listed below, as part of Form 10-K, are numbered :in
conformity with the numbering used in Item 601 of Regulation 5-K of
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

A complete copy of the Organization Certificate of the
Corporation as last amended on November 1, 1995 and currently in
effect, consisting of the following: (a) the Organization
Certificate of the Corporation as in effect immediately prior to
the filing of the Certificate of Amendment as of April 21, 1885
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to the Corporation’'s
Form 10-K Report for the year ended December 31, 1993); (b) a
Certificate of Amendment filed in the Office of the
Superintendent of Banks of the State of New York (the "0ffice of
the Superintendent”) as of April 21, 1995 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(b) to the Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-3, File No. 33-58771): (c) a Certificate of
Amendment filed in the Office of The Superintendent as of May
11, 1995 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to the
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form 5-3, File No. 33-
61257); (d) a Certificate of Amendmant filed in the Office of
the Superintendent as of June 2B, 11995 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(d) to the Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Porm 5-3, File No. 33-61257); (e) a Certificate of
Amendment filed in the Office of the Superi-itendent as of July
17, 1995 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(e) to the
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S§-3, File No. 33-
61257); and (f) a Certificate of Amendmen' filed in the Office
of the Superintendent as of November 1. 1995,

A complete copy o©of the By-Laws of the Corporation as last
amended on June 30, 1994 and currently in effect. (Incorporated
by reference te Exhibit 3(ii} of the Corporation‘s Form 10-K
Report for the year ended December 31, 1994.)

Agreement to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon reguest a copy of instruments defining the rights of
holders of certain long-term debt of the registrant and all
subsidiaries for which consolidated or unconsolidated financial
statements are required to be filed.

Computation of racio of earnings to fixed chargus.

Computation of ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and
preferred stock dividends.

Consent of KPMGC Peat Marwick LLP.
Power of Attorney.

Financial Data Schedule (filed electronically herewith).




89 (b)

99ic)

(b)

Income Maintenance Agreement dated March 28, 1991 between
General Electric Company and the Corporation. {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 28(a) of the Corporation’s Form 10-K Report
for the year ended December 31, 1992.)

Description

The consolidated financial statements of General Electric
Company, set forth in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of General
Electric Company (S.E.C. File No. 001-00035) for the year ended
December 31, 1995 (pages F-1 through F-40) and Exhibit 12 (Ratio
of Earnings to Fixed Charges) of General Electric Company.

Letter, dated June 29, 1995, from Dennis D. Dammerman of General
Electric Company to Gary C. Wendt of Generas]l Electric Capital
Corporation pursuant to which General Electric Company agrees Lo
provide additional equity to General Electric Capical
Corporation in conjunction with certain redemptions by General
Electric Capital Corporation of shares of its Variable
Cumulative Preferred Stock. (Incorporated by reference o
Exhibit 99(g) to the Corporation's Registration Statement on
Form S-3, File No. 33-61257)

Reports on Form B-K
None.
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SCEEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF RECISTRANT
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CURRENT AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For the years ended December 1 1993 1804 1992
(in miliions) ————— e —————
ERTO0 APCOBME. . - - o« coontmsanennannpinesisdeisuinasnssisedss §5.721 $31.,98C $1.E19
Expenses:
Interest, net of allocations...... R e e 3.0%4 2,225 .. 962
Operating and administrative...coeesinnas 1.217 1,113 =340
Provision for losses an financing r-cn:vnb.-l ............ 206 197 a7
Depreciation and aROTTAiZALION. .. ...cuseannusnss AR 109 157 20
4,726 4.302 3.E891
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and equiltiy in
earnitigs of AfPAilidtEE. . u.ovriiiiiinsasaiii i 2y 985 131221 (741
income tam (provision) banafif..........ccvevcnnnann e 1291) 54 1721
Equity in sarnings of affiliates........:ccca0:0s e P 1,587 - 108 1,624
Net @ACNINgE. .. s resrirasrsrransrsrasnss e o wad e - 2,261 L.918 1.47E
Dividends PRId...cisssnnsrssssrassinsssssansnsse EEEEE #EEEw (1,645) 16050 1482)
Uptained earnings AL JADUATY 1......ccseneisins S T B8.321 7,008 6.012
Retained earnings At December Jl.......coevvnmrnriassinanass §8.9%17 £8,132: $7,.008
ERTAER E@ssas EgaEas

See Notes 1o Condensed Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FPINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT--(Continued)
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

COMDENSED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POBITION

A: Decesmper 1l 1998 1994
{Ir millionm) - P p—
ABEETS
Casli and BUAVEBIBAEE . . v vccranarineon s s s s s s NI b st F R e a v s 2 5 2hs
Investment BECUTLITIOR. . .csciasssns S e wiae e e R L AT 3. 449 3.09
Financing receivables:
Time sales and lOBNE. ... covevrcnrrnrrnrnrsrnnss R = A 25,746 25.52%
Investmen: in financing leased..........vcreeans 10,786 10,12%
36.532 15,65+
Allowance for losses on financing receivables.............:o.000e (899) 1987
Financing receivablel =- BBL......ccsessssnasniresnntsanaiscsssnns 315,63} 34, 65
Tqvestments in and advances to affiliates. ... rianninnaan A 69,739 54,801
E uipmern: on operating leases lat cost), less accumulated
amor-.zation of $477 and $258.......... R Sl e (i e P 2,378 L. B9
OEREEr SEBBEDE . st sassnissrsarsnsnsnmeness s s m e EE SEm BT R TR B R R 3."' 5-5!-
TOLA] BEBILE . . iiccaciarcosnstsssaasansnsrenns & S e R e e ‘ $115.10%9 51400, ?l&
EEERAD = Elaimance
LIABSILITIES AND EQUITY
Short-ters borrowings (including notes payable to ll."uur.u
of §553 1n 199580 .ueiaaaina PN PSP AT § 52.700 § 50,765
Long-terr porrowings (including notes payaple to affi huu
0f S84 in 1IM) cuivssrrnenn i rrivraasanne N e A - 42,169 311,769
Orher liabileitl@l. . .idivars Y L T R TIPS AT 1,574 4.B98
gfersed NCOME TANOR....... . — T eyt e 2,464 i.304
Tard, B0 TiWE. e o P R T e W T 100,907 89,738
CAD. S8, BEOBR. o iasinuenmessmassessaisessssssssssisvnesiedssaiss 170 6%
AdC.L.ome. DO.G-.T cap..n ........................ am e e fR g e 4,022 2.372
CLBLTE0 QAT OB . .. s cresssmn s ca e h ST R b 8.937 B.13:
Lnrea. . fec GALNS [.OoBseR] OF .m-t-'-e' IIC.......'I- cesssEnmEEER RSy 54) L&55
Gre.g" C-TTENCY Lraas.atiof ad uBiments.... ... ... B a e (B b (700 167
Del: BT L o o re o ine s e nsbens s ied s edessbnrsiesn o 14,202 10,540
TOLE. -.8B..:%.08 and eQuity..... PR P i Bi15,.109 $100.27¢

S5ev Noves 1o Condensed Financia. Siatements.
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SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED PIMANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT-- (Continued)

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

For the years anded December 3l
Iin millions)

CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES..... KRR §16 W B R B e T
CA5H FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase i lOANS CLO CUBCOMBEIN.....vovsnsmssssnsnsnnnnsa P sesas
Principal collections from CUBCOMMMIB. ... crsssasrmrisarsnsssnrasins iy
investment in assets on financing leases........ pam e e e e e e

Principal collections on financing leaseB. .. ... - isssassssnnnsnrans
Not change in Credit card receivables. . ... :csssossssassssssnarsnns
uildings, equipment and eguipment on operating leases
T R e E S T g e PR gyt s SR g S s
- F - T T T T L LA P PP P S Y
Paymerts for principal businesses 'P-s"chlll'd ne: o! cash acquired...
Procece 18 from principal business dispOBLiCiONB. .. ioovssnaasssinsssnss

Crange :n investment in and sadvances to affil

Owners NBL..cousms R T L T R L e A R AEm s E e
CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES.......cvcvincinnassnansas
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ne: change .n borrowings (less than 90-day maturicies)..... swEsaEa b
Newly LEsued debt
-snorc-Care [91-265 AaYB) .. ..iirrararaiassasnanarnas R e R A
=l 0N~ TR BMALDE . a v nvvsa s samar b b s nas danesidne s ieessssysssbdnss
Proceeds-non-recourse, leveraged lease debt..........s00:0000 rew
Ropayments and other reductions
-BROFCE~-CBIT . e s v nnws R AR TN LA N R R R RS AR R R AR N
Long-tere EENIOr. .. ... PRPRFRIrY SR e E R R R e R B R e R R R R R E FEEaEE
Prirc.pa. pay™enis - Ron-recourse, leveraged lilll dlht ..... resanves
R TR, T T TR, T ¥ S gy A e Py g WesReRis s erwmewe
Comtribats cﬁ; to additional paadv o ocapital..... S PTG P PP
.Bs.ance of pre: ferred BLO0CK i @xcCess [-14 Tasnnnasmensnssnasn TR
CAS: FRAOV FINANCING ACTIVITIER . wis iamawe s s s s inis T Sr R :

IDECITASF] INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEMR. . .......

CAS- AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIKNING OF YEAR.......

CAS: AND EQUIVALENTS AT EXD OF YEAR..

Ser hores to Condensed Financia. Siatements

1995

(42.650)
19,664
12.976)

1,587
1,566

(810)
8
13.866)
575
122,37
L. 984

-

115,225)

13.544)

2,545
25,654
787

- 110
(618}
(134)
1961)

684
924

(30,1981
7.15%

(1.937)
1,701

(8200

809}
T&
(8.7

1859)
(2.226)

smmm-

(7.544)

f2,97d)
3,214
16,641
k

(8,823
1912)
(132)
(595)

LE101
gk
.09

(10.296)
-.09]

3,96%

4.115
10,188

(B,636)
11574
(198)
14821

2%

9,024
15 51
607

H B85

TIET




GENERAL ELECTRIC CAP CORPORATION AND Cﬂ.lﬂllﬂl!lﬁ'l'f!hll!ll

SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED PFINANCIAL INPORMATION OF REGISTRANT — (Concluded)
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gummary of Significant Accounting Policies

certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform
with 1995 presentation.

Borrowings

msral long-term borrowings at December 31, 1995 and 1994 are shown below.

Waighted

average

interest

(Dollars in millions) rate (&) Maturitcies 1995 1994

Senior NOLE@S. ... se0-s T 6.60% 1997-2055 541,472 £30,158
Subordinated notes (B)covenenn B.04 2006-2012 697 697
INLEYCOMPANY . csssesssanrrross - 914
$42,169 §31,769

(a) Includes tne effects of associated interest rate and currency BwWaps.

(n) Guaranteed by GE Company.

-rterest rate and currency Ewaps are employed to achieve the lowest cost
of fumds for a particular funding eatrategy. The Corporation enters 1into
.~-gresl rate Swaps and currency swaps (including non-U.S. currency and croecs-
cu-rency Lnterest rate swaps) to modify interest rates and/or currencies of
gpecific debt instruments. For example, to fund U.S. operations. GE Capital
ray .s8sue fixed-rate debt denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar
and s.ru.tanecusly enter into a currency swap to create synthetic fixed-rate

. 5. do.lar debt with a lower yield than could be achieved directly. Such
.~+erest rate and Ccurrency Sswaps have been designated as modifying interest
rares, currencies or both. The Corporation does not engaye in dexivatives

--ading. market-making or other speculative activities.

The Corporation used a portion of this interest rate swap portfoliv teo
convert Lnterest Tate exposure on gshort-term and f{loating rate long-term
norrowings Lo interest rates that are fixed over the terms of the related
swaps; interest rate basis swaps also are employed to manage shorr-term
‘.nancing factors--for example, ro convert commercial paper-based interest
coEts Lo prime rate-based COSBtE. At December 31, 1995 and 1994, such swaps
were outstanding for principal amounts equivalent to §7,955 million and 56,780
million with macurities from 1996 to 2029 and weighted average interest rates
of 6.67% and 6.33%, respectively.
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At December , 1995, long-term borrowing mr..C:l-l during the nex: five
years, including the current portion of long-term notes payable are 513,387
million in 1996, 512,417 millien in 1997; $10.137 million in 1998, §4,352

million in 1999, and 53,977 million in 2000.

Interest expense on the Condensed Statement of Curren: and Retained
Earnings is net of interest income on loans and advances to majority owned
affiliates of 52,310 million, 51,322 million and $1,335 million for 1995, 199§

and 1993, respectively.

Income Taxss

GE Company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return which includes
GE Capital. Income tax (provision) benefit includes the effect ci the

Corporation on the consolidated return.
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Exhibit 4 (iii)

March 26, 1996

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20549

Subject: General Electric Capital Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 - File No. .-6461

Dear Sirs:

Neither General Electric Capital Corporation (the *Corporation®) nor any
of its subsidiaries has outstanding any instrument with respect to its long-
term debt under which the total amount of securities authorized exceeds 10%
of the total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis. In accordance with paragraph (b) (4) ({iii) of Item 601 of Regulation
S-¥ (17 CFR §229.601), the Corporation hereby agrees to furnish to the
Securities and Exchange Commission. upon request, a copy of each instrument
which defines the rights of holders of such long-term debt.

Very truly yours,

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION
By: /a/ J. A. Parke

J. A. Parke,
Senior Vice Presi~“~~., Finance
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. . Exhibit 12 (a)

CUENERAL ELECTRIC CAFPITAL CORFPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

Computation ~f Ratic of EBarnings to Fixed Charges
Ysars anded December 31,

{Dollar amounts in millions) 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
Net Barning®.......covevesanns e §$ 2,261 § 1,918 1.478 5 1,251 1,12
Provision for income taxes....... 1,071 B96 664 415 362
Minority intereBC.....ccovvrussnsns 81 109 114 14 (7
Earnings before income taxes
and minority interest.......... 3,413 2,923 2,256 1,680 1,480
Fixed charges:
INE BT BT . v o v nneecnanesbennsse s 6,520 4,464 3,503 3,713 4,280
One- hird of rentals......co0v0.. 170 153 138 90 36
Total fixed charges.........cv4:4 6.690 4,617 3,641 3,803 4,314
Less interest capitalized,
net of amortization......vacuus 21 9 4 6 7
Earnings before income taxes
and minority interest plus
fixed chBrg®B. .. coivsssonensoss $10,082 5 7,531 § 5,893 § 5,477 S 5.787
sSEEERER EEEERaE EEEEEEY EEEEEES aEEES==S
Ratio of earnings to fixed
CHATGRE . v s v s v s vssssdrsanasss o 1.51 1.63 1.62 1.44 1.34
EEEseEEEE aEEsEEEe EEESEEET ¥ F 2 4 0 07 EsmEEEX
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GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

Exhibit 12 (b)

Computation of Ratic of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Btock
Dividends

(Dollar amounts in millions)

NHet BAIMINgE. . cicsacissssinness
Provision for income taxes.....
Minority interest......ecsnusss

Earnings before income taxes
and minority interest........

Fixed charges:
INLErEeSL... +iuvesnsnsannnnns
One-third of rentals.........

Total fixed chargeB....svesvoss

Less .nterest capitalized,
ner of amortizAtioN. . vvvsinens

BEarnings before income taxes
and minority interest plus
fiXed CHATQEE. .. iceesvaoansis

Preferred stock dividend
FEQUITBMBIER . i s e s aad e s s
Fat:0 of ecarnings before
prov.os.on for lncome LAXes
0 NOL GATNINGS. . ... A A

Preferrec stock dividend
tacior on pre-tax DABlEB. ...
F.aea cnarges

Tota. f{ixed charges and
preferrea stock dividend
COuE TAIBRE R v e e

Fai.:o0 of earnings to combined
{ixea cnarges and preferred
Broce dividends. ... .c.civiueann

$10,082

s 57

S 6,774

SEEEEEE

1.49

EEa=E=sE

60

Years snded December 31,

$ 7.531

SEEEEEE

s i0

_______

- -

$ 4,661

1.62

S=EsEsaSx

-

§ 3,673

SEIEERE

1.60

SsEEERE

1993 1992

$ 1.478 § 1.251
664 415

114 14
2,256 1,680
3,503 3.713
138 90
3,641 j,e03
4 6

$ 5,893 5 5.477

$ 3,838

EEREEEEE

1.43

sSEEESRS

-

-

-

$ 5,787

5 41

1.32

TRREEEE



. . Exhibit 23 (ii)

Te the Board of Directors
General Electric Capital Corporation

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements
(Nos. 33-36601, 33-39596, 33-43420, 33-51793 and 33-60723) on Form 5-3 of
General Electric Capital Corporation of our report dated February 9. 1996
relating to the statement of financial position of General Electric Capital
Corporation and consclidated affiliates as of December 31, 1935 and 1994 and
the related statements of current and retained earnings and cash f{lows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1995, and the rela:tec
schedule which report appears in the December 311, 1995 annual report on Forr
10-K of General Electric Capital Corporation.

/8/ KPMG Peat Marwick LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
March 2B, 1996




"l’ 'l' Exhibic 24

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned, being
directors and/or officers of General Electric Capital Corpeoration, a New Yorx
corporation (the "Corporation®), hereby constitutes and appoints Gary C. Wendt,
James A. Parke, Joan C. Amble and Nancy E. Barton, and each of them, his true
and lawful actorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead in any and all
capacities, to sign one or more Annual Reports for the Corporation’s fiscal
year ended December 31, 1995, on Form 10-K under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or such other form as such attorney-in-fact may deer
necessary or desirable, any amendments thereto, and all additional amendments
therete in such form as they or any one of them may approve, and to file the
same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact
and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each
and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done to the end that such
Annual Report or Annual Reports shall comply with the Securities Exchange Ac:t
of 1934, as amended, and the applicable Rules and Regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission adopted or issued pursuant thereto, as fully and to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents., or any of them or the:ir
or his substitute or resubstitute, may lawfully do or cause tec be done by
viriue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto set his hand
this 26th day of March, 1996.

/s/ Gary C. Wendt /s/ James A. Parke

Gary C. Wendt, James A. Parke,

Cha.rman of the Board Director and Senior Vice

anc¢ Cnief Executive Officer President, Finance

(Principal Executive Officer) {Principal Financial Officer}

/s8/ Joan C. Amble

Joan C. Amble,
Vice President and Controller
{Principal Accounting Officer)

{Page 1 of 2)
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/s/ Nigel D. T. An.n

Nigel D, T. Andrews,
Director

/s/ Nancy E. Barton

Nancy E. Barton,
Director

/8/ James R. Bunt

- -

James R. Bunt,
Director

/s/ Dennis D. Dammerman

Dennis D. Dammerman,
Director

Paolo Fresco,
irs CLOY

o

Dale F. Frey,
Director

A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Benjamin W. Heineman,
Director

Hugh J. Murphy.
Director

/s/ Denis J. Nayden

Denis J.
Director

Nayden,

/8/ Michael A. Neal

Michael A. Neal,

Director

-

John M. Samuels,
Director

*

/8/ Edward D. Stewart

Edward D. Stewart,
Director

/e8/ John F. We.ch, Jr.

John F. Welca, Jr.,

Director

(Page 2 of 2)
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Pursuant to the regquirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this repor: to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

March 26, 1996 By: /s/ Gary C. Wendt

(Gary C. Wendt)
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive 0fficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date

/8’ Gary C. Wendt Chairman of the Board and March 26, 1996
ittty e bl Chief Executive Officer

(Gary C. Wend:t) (Principal Executive Officer)
/e/ James A. Parke Director and Macck 26, 1996
----------------------- Senior Vice President, Finance

(James A. Parke) {(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Joan C. Amble Vice President and Controller March 26, 1996
memeesssssssssmsssss—= (Principal Accounting Officer)

;5L O. 7. ANDREWS® Director

E. BARTON" Director

JAMES R, BUNT* Director
DENNIS D. DAMMERMAN® Director
DENIS J. NAYDEN® Direcrtor
MICHAEL A. NEAL® Direcror
FEDWARD D. STEWART® Direcror
JOHN F. WELCH., JR.* Director

A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HY /s/ Joan C. Amble March 26, 1996

{Joan C. Amble)
ttorney-in-fact

64




unt@® states securmies anp xcrfbe commssion
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19M [FEE REQUIRED]

For the Niscal vear ended December 31, 1995
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 151d) OF THF
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19M [NO FEE REQUIRED)]

For the transiion period from to

Commission Mie number 0-14804

General Electric Capital Services, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 06-1 109501
i State o7 oiher junsdicuon of iLR.S. Emplover
INCOMPOTALION 01 OFganizauon) Identilication N )
260 Long Ridpe Hoad, Stamlord. Connecticul 06917 (2031 3574000
tAddress ol principal executive offices) i2ap Code) {Registrani's ie'. phong number,

includ ing arca code)

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

Name of each
Vit o cach class exchange oo which registered
Tt Geparanteed Subordinated Noles Due August 2], 2038 New York Stock Exchange

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT
TOSECTION 12ig) OF THE ACT:

Title of cach class
Common Stock. par valee $10.000 per share
Indivate B check mark whether the regisirant 1 b has Diked all repons reguired 10 be Niled by Secuon |3 or 13dy o1 the Secunues Exchanpe Aot

CorsRL gune s e preceding 12 months (of Dof such shoner penod that the registrant was reguured 1o file such reponisi, and (20 has been subgect o
such Loy reguirements 1of the past Y0 davs Yes ¥ Niv _

Indicate be check mark of disclosure of debinguent Nilers pursuant 1o liem 405 of Repulatiion S-k iv not contained herein. and will not be
wontained. Bt best ol registrant s knowledpe. in detimiive provs or infesmation staiements incorporated by relerence in Pan Lot this Form 10-
koot gnv amendment o this Form -k B

Ageregate market value of the vouing stock hedd by nonallibates of the registrant at March 25, 1996 None
Al March 25, 1996, 101 shares of common stock with a par value of $10.000 were outsianding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The consolidated financial satements of General Electne Company. set forth in the Annual Repon on Form 10-K of General Elecing
Compans for the veas ended December 31, 1995 are incorporated by reference into Pan IV hereol

liem | Business: Propeny and Casualty Reserves for Unpasd Losses and Loss Adjusiment Expenses. sci lonh in the Annual Kepon on Form
b ol GE Global Insurance Holding Corporauon lor the year ended December 31, 1995 i incorporaied by reference into Pan | hereol

REGISTRANT MEETS THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTION Jila) AND (b) OF FORM 10-Kk AND 15
THEREFORE FILING THIS FORM 10-K WITH THE REDUCED DISCLOSURE FORMAT.
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1"’ PART [ I'I'

Item 1. Business.
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.

General Electric Capictal Services, Inec. (herein, together with its
consolidated affiliates, called "GE Capital Services", "the Corporation” or
“GECS" unless the context otherwise requires) was incorporated in 1984 in the
Scate of Delaware. Until February 1993, the name of the Corporation was
General Electric Financial Services, Inc. All outstanding common stock of GE
Cap:tal Services is owned by General Electric Company, & New York corporation
("GE Company®). The business of GE Capital Services consists of ownership of
two principal subsidiaries which, together with their affiliates, constitute GE
Company's principal financial services businesses. GE Capital Services is the
sole owner of the common stock of General Electric Capital Corporation (°"GE
Capital® or *CECC*) and GE Global Insurance Holding Corporation (*GE Global
Insurance® or "GIH").

In November 1994, the Corporation elected to terminate the operations of
¥:dder, Peabody Group Inc. (°"Kidder, Peabody®) by iniriating an orderly
liguidazion of its assets and liabilities. As part of the liquidation plar,
the Corporation received securities of Paine Webber Group Inc. in exchange for
cerza.n broker-dealer assets and operations. Principal activities that were
discontinued include securities underwriting, sales and trading of equity and
fixed income securities, financial futures activities, advisory services for
mergers, acquisitions, and other corporate finance matters, research services
and asse! management. Kidder, Peabody has been classified as a d.scontinued
operation in the financial statements and supplementary data 'n Item B of this
Form 10-K.

GE Capital Services' principal executive offices ..« located at 260 Long
Hidge Road, Stamford, Connecticut 06927 (Telephone number (203) 357-4000).

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

GE Cap:tal was incorporated in 1941 in the State of MNew York under the
crovisions of the New Yors Banking Law relating to investment companies, as
cuccessor to General Eleciric Contracts Corporation, which was formed i1n 1932
The capital stock of GE Capital was contributed to GE Capital Services by GE
Company in June 1984. Until November 1987, the name of the corporation was
General Electric Credit Corporation. The business of GE Capital originally
related principally to financing the distribution and sale of consumer and
ether products of GE Company. Currently. however, the types and brands of
productes financed and the f{inancial services offered are significantly more
diversified, Very little of the financing provided by GE Capital involves
products that are manufactured by GE Company.

GE Capital operates in four financing industry segments and in a
specialty :insurance industry segment. GE Capital's financing activities include
a fu.. range of leasing. lending, equipment management services and annuities.
GE Capital's specialty insurance activities include providing financial
guaranty insurance, principally on municipal bonds and structured finance
155ues, private mortgage insurance and creditor insurance covering
international customer loan repayments. GE Capital is an eguity investor in a
retail organization and certain other service and financial services
organizations. GE Capital's operations are subject to a variety of regulations
in their respective jurisdictions.
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Services of GE Capital are offered primarily throughout the United

States, Canada, Europe and the Pacific rim. GE Capital's principal executive
offices are located at 260 Long Ridge Road, Stamford, Connecticut 06927. At

December 31. 1995, GE Capital and affiliates employed approximately 37,000
persons.

GE GLOBAL INSURANCE EOLDING CORPORATION

GE Global Insurance, together with its affiliates, writes all lines of
reinsurance other than title and annuities. Employers Reinsurance Corporation
{“ERC*). GE Global Insurance's principal U.S. affiliate, reinsures property and
casualty risks written by more than 1,000 insurers around the world, and also
writes certain specialty lines of insurance on a direct basis, principally
excess workers' compensation for self-insurers, errors and omissions coverage
for insurance and real estate agents and brokers, excess indemnity for self-
insurers of medical benefits, and libel and allied torts. Other U.S. property
and casualty affiliates write excess and surplus lines insurance, and provide
reinsurance brokcrage services. GE Global Insurance also 1ie engaged in the
reinsurance of traditional life insurance products, including term. whole and
univer ;al life, annuities, group long term health products and the provision of
financial reinsurance to life insurers.

In July 1995, GE Global Insurance, through its ERC affiliate, acquired a
majority of two German reinsurance businesses, Frankona Reinsurance Group in
Munich, Germany, and Aachen Reinsurance Group located in Aachen, Germany.
These businesses together with other ERC affiliates located in Denmark and the
United Kingdom write property and casualty and life reinsurance, principally in
Eurcpe and elsewhere throughout the world.

in December 1994, certain life and property and casualt, affiliates of GE
Capital were transferred to ERC. These affiliates had bren managed by ERC

cipnce 198G,

insurance and reinsurarice operations are subject to regulation by various
insurance regu.atory agencies.

GE Glopa. Insurance and its affiliates conduct business through 14 U.S.
s ané 16 non-U.5. offices. GE Global Insurance and certain U.S.
;es are licensed in all of the United States, the District of Columbia
in provinces of Canada and write property and casualty reinsurance on
a direct basis and through brokers. The principal offices of GE Globai
Insurance are located at 5200 Metcalf Avenue, Overland Park, Kansas 66201. At
Uecemper 11, 1995, GE Global. Insurance and affiliates employed approximately
200 persons.

e
r
o -

Irem 1. Business - Property and Casualty Reserves for Unpaid Losses and
Lass Adjustment Expenses, set forth in the Annual Report on Form 10-K o' GE
Glepal Insurance Holding Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1995 is
incorporated by reference hereto.

{5 ]




INDUSTRY SEGMENTS ‘l'

The Corporation provides a wide variety of financing., asse: management,
and insurance products and services which are organized into the £ellowing
induscry segments:

« Consumer Services--private-label and bank credit card locans. personal
loans, time sales and revolving credit and inventeory f£{inancing for
recail merchants, auto leasing and inventory £financing. mortgage
servicing and annuity and mutual fund sales.

« Specialized Financing--loans and financing leases for major cap:ital
assets, including industrial facilities and egui ne., and
energy-related facilities; commercial and residential real estate
loans and investments; and loans to and investments in management buy-
outs, including those with high leverage, and corporate
recapitalizations.

=« Eguipment Managemenc--leases, loans and asset management services for
portfolios of commercial and transportation equipment including
aircrafr, crailers, auto fleets, modular space units, railroad relling
stock. ta processing equipment, ocean-guing containers and
satellites.

« Mid-Market Financing--loans and leases for middle-market customers
including manufacturers. distributors and end users, of a variety of
commercial equipment, including data processing equipment, medical and
diagnostic equipment, and equipment used in construction,
manufacturing, office applications and telecommunications activities.

+ Specialcty Insurance--U.S. and international multiple-lirce property and
casua.ty reinsurance, certain directly written spe-~.ialty insurance and
iife reinsurance; financial guaranty insurance, principally on
municipal bonds and structured finance issurs; private mortgage
.nsurance; and creditor insurance covering inter.aticnal customer loan

repayments.
Heter to Item 7. <“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Uperatiens. - in this Form 10-K for discussion of the Corporation's Portfolio
gualicy. A descriprtion of GECS principal businesses by industry segment

toliows:
CONSUMER SERVICES
GINA

GNA writes and markets tax-deferred. structured and immediate annuities,
raditicnal and universal life insurance. accident and health insurance

:neluding long-term care insurance and sells proprietary and third party mutual
tuntds through independent and captive agents and financial institution-. In
L9595 GNA acquired AMEX Life Assurance Company'’'s long-term care insurance

pusiness, as well as its long-term disability, corporate owned life insurance
and accidental death insurance businesses.

GHA is headgquartered in Sea'tle, Washington.




Aute Financial Se.rvic" .

Auto Financial Services ("AF5") is a full service provider of automobile
financing for automobile dealers, manufacturers and their customers in North
America, Europe and Asia.

In the United States, AFS is the leading independent auto lessor and
provides leasing products for new automobiles and the growing used automob:ile
leasing market. During 1995, AFS entered the sub-prime loan financing marke:
through the starc-up of a new business, Customized Auto Credit Services. AFS
provides the private label financing for American Isuzu Motors, Inc. and is a
jeint wventure partner with Volvo of North America. In addition, AFS provides
inventory financing progrars and direct loans to segments of the automotive
induscry, including dealers, rental car companies and leasing companies,

In 1995, AFS expanded its European presence through acquisitions of
Credit de l1'Est and Sovac SA in France, and Filea S.p.A in Italy. Other
Eurcpean businesses include Mercurbank (Austria)l., GE Capital Motor Finance
iUnited Kingdom). Finanzia (Spain) and Skandic-Bilfinans (Sweden).

AFS .5 active in the Asian automotive market through egquity investments
. ASTHA GSedaya Finance (Indonesia), Taiwan Acceptance Corporation, United
Me-charts Finance Private Ltd. (Singapore), United Motor Works (Malaysia)., GS
Ca; :tal Corporation (Thailand) and through majority ownership (B0%) of
Australian Guarantee Limited (Taiwan). In 1995, AFS acquired 100% of United
Merchants Finance lLtd. (Hong Kong) and continues to provide financing under the
name GE Capital Finance Ltd.

AFS i1s headgquartered in Barrington, Illinois.
Retaller Financial Services
Feta.ler Financial Services (°"RF5°) provides sales financing services to
ribution chains for various consumer industries. Financing plans differ

.cerap.y by client, but fall into two major categories: customized
rr.ovate-.abpe. credi: caré programs with retailers and inventory financing

procrars woth manufacturers. distributors and retallers.

FF: purchases consumer recelvables from retailers, primarily in the
ir..tes States and Canada, most of whom sell a variety of products of various
TAnL.'ATTUrErs On a time sales basis. The terms for these financing plans

i.Iter according to the size of contract and credit standing of the customer.
Yar.mur rawuricies ordinarily do not exceed 40 months. RFS generally maintains
a4 Sec.rliy interest in the merchandise financed. Financing is provided to
mo.mers  under contractual arrangements both with and without recourse to
rEld. XS RFS* wide range of f{inancial services includes application
rocessing, sales authorization. statement billings, customer services and
Th..eCLi0GNn SEIVICEE.

FFS provides inventory financing for retailers primarily in the appliance
ans consumer electronics industries. RFS maintains a security interest in the
.nventeory and, as part of the acreement, retailers are reguired to provide
.nsurance coverage for the merchandise financed.




GE Capital C‘t Services ("GECCS") is a ll!“l venture which provides
statement printing, mailing, remittance processing, credit card embossing, and
specialized collections services to over 75 million accounts. GECCS offers
services to the banking, wutilicies, telecommunications, insurance and
transportation industries.

RFS is headgquartered in Stamford, Connecticut.
Global Consumer Finance

Global Consumer Finance (°GCF=") is a leading provider of credit services
te non-U.5. retailers and consumers. GCF provides private labe! credit cards
and proprietary credit services to retailers in Europe and Asia. as well as
offering a variety of direct-to-the-consumer credit programs such as consumer
loans, bankcards and credit insurance.

GCF provides financing to consumers in the United Kingdom under
rontractual arrangements with retailers. GCF's wide range of proprietary
financial services includes private label credit cards, credit promotion and
accounting services, billing (in the store’s name) and customer credit and
collection services. Similar services are provided through GCF operations in
Japan, Scandinavia, Austria and Thailand and joint ventures in Spain. Indonesia
and India. GCF also provides consumers with MasterCard® products.

During 199%. GCF acquired operations that provide credit card services
anc consumer loans in Germany, Australia and Poland, Service Bank provides
f:nancial services to German consumers through its branch offices located
inside Metro Group stores. With the acquisition of the credit card operations
6t Coles Myer Ltd., GCF entered the Australian private label retail credit
market. GCF entered the Eastern European financial services markets through
115 purcnase of Solidarnosc Chase D.T. Bank in Poland.

GZF is headquartered in Stamford, Connecticut.
MNorrgage Servicing

Jap:tal Mortgage Services, Inc. ("GECMSI®), wholly owned by GE Capital
r-aane Corporation  (*GECMC*), is engaged in the business of servicing
c.aentia. mortgage loans collateralized by one-to-four-family homes located

s1-.znoutl the United States, GECMS! obtains servicing through the purchase of
- --aaoe Joane and servicing rights. and packages the loans it purchases into
= - gape-bacred securities which it sells to investors. GECMSI also originates
ans services home eguity loans.

GECM5I 18 headquartered in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.

snsumer Financial Services

Censumer Financial Services ("CFS5*) issues and services MasterCarc® and

yroducts originated through direct mail campaigns. private-label credit
TAIC onversions, telemarkeiing and point-of-sale applications. CFS also
.ssues and services the GE Capital Corporate Card, providing payment and
.ntormation systems to help medium and large-size companies reduce travel
costs, and the GE Capital Purcharing Card, which helps companies streamline
purchasing and accounts payable processes.

V.s5at
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CFs oriﬂinltn.‘quirn and services home loans and lines of
credit, and services HUD-insured home improvement loans.

In addition to its headquarters in Mason, Ohio, CFS also has offices in
Connecticut, New Jersey, Ohic and Ucak.

SPECIALIZED FINANCING
Commercial Real Estate

Commercial Real Estate Financing and Services ("CRE") provides funds for
the acgquisition, refinancing and renovation of a wide range of commercia. and
residential properties located throughout the Unicted States, and, tec a lesser
extent, in Canada, Mexico and Europe. CRE also provides asset management
services to real estate investors and selected gervices to real estate owners.

Lending is a major portion of CRE's business in the form of
intermediate-term senior or subordinated fixed and floating-rate loans secured
by existing income-producing commercial properties such as office buildings.
rental apartnents, shopping centers, industrial buildings, mobile home parks,
notels and warehouses. Loans range in amount from single-property mortgages
typ: ally greater than $5 million to multi-property portfolios of several
hundred million dollars. Approximately 9%0% of all loans are senior mortgages.

During 1995, CRE continued to broaden its investment base by buying or
providing restructuring £inancing for portfolios of real estate, mortgage
loans, limited partnerships, and tax-exempt bonds.

CRE also offers a variety of real estate management serv.ce. to outside
investors, institutions, corporations, investment banks, and .cthers through ics
GE Cap::ta. FRealty Group subsidiary. Services include acquisitions and
dispos:itions, Sstrategic asset positioning, asset restrusturing, facilities
mar.agement and loan servicing. CRE, through its GF ~ipital-ResCom wventure,
a.so oifers owners of multi-family housing ways to reduce costs and enhance
va.ut i properties by offering buying services (e.g. lighting, appliances) and
CLnD.eo te.ecommunications and video services.

ZFE nas offices located throughout the United States, as well as offices
-: canaga, Mexico, Singapore, Sweden, and throughout the United Kingdom, in
add.tion to its headguarters in Stamford, Connecticut.

Sloba. Project and Structured Finance
Gicba. Project and Structured Fipnance ("GPSF*) provides financing for

or cap:tal investments in the energy. industrial and infrastructure sectors,
istorically concentrating in the United States market but more recently

conducting business in Asia, Latin America and Europe. At year-end 1995, GPSF's
poarstoiic included investments in  energy-related facilities, indurtrial
taci.aities and ejulipment . infrascructure pru;ie-::r.s. telecommunications

eguipment. rallcars and marine vessels.

At Decemper 31, 1995, GPSF's portfolio consisted of finance leases (both
diruect financing and leveraged leases), operating leases, loans (both senior
and subordinated) and equity investments (including collateralized, sinking
fungé and adjustable rate preferred stock, joint ventures, and partnerships).
The portfolio 1s generally secured by liens on the financial assets, preferred
mortgages, assignments of earnings. insurance, guarantees, and rights to cash
flow sireams.




GPSF provides syndication and private placement services for GE Capital
and GE Company transactions. When such services are performed, GPS5F typ.cally
retains a portion of the transaction and places the remainder with one or more
other financial insticutions,.

In addition to its Stamford, Connecticut headquarters, GPSF has offices
in Mexico, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong, China and India.

Commercial Finance i

Commercial Finance ["CF*) provides revolving and term debt financing for
working capital and capital expansion. The portfolio is diversified with
approximately 140 accounts dispersed throughout the United States and, to a
lesser degree, Canada and Europe. Loans range in amount from S5 million to
several! hundred million dollars, and represent investments in the cable
television/media, retail, healthcare, manufacturing and food and beverage
induszries. CF is active in the 1loan syndication marker, selling and
pecasacnally purchasing participations in leveraged transactions.

CF has offices throughout the United States including its headquarters in
Stamford, Connecticut and plans to open its Eurcopean office in the United
Kingao:..

Equity Cap:ital Group

f£guity Capital Group ("ECG") purchases egquity investments, primarily
convertible preferred and common stock investments including, in some cases,
stocr warrants convertible into equity ownership. ECG's primarv objective is
tc realize long-term capital appreciation. Investments incl.de the retail,
‘{.nanc.a. services, healthcare, food and beverage, cable nnd broadcasting
s nQuLsSLTLeE

Tne portfolio is geographically diversified with customers located

nrougnowt wne United States, as well as in Canada and Europe.

74 :s neadguartered in Stamford, Connecticut.
EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT
AVidrion Services

JE Capital Aviation 5Services (°"GECAS®") is a global commercial aviation
services business that offers a broad range of financial products te
and aircraft operators, aircratt owners, lenders and investors.
products include financing leases, operating leases tax-advantaged
incentive-based financing. GECAS alsc provides asset management,
and rtechnical support services to aircraft owners, lenders und

At December 31, 1995, the GEC/S f{leet comprised B90 owned and managed
a.rcrafit or lease to 157 customers in 54 countries.

GECAS hats offices in California, Ireland and a number of other locations
worldwide including Great Britain, China, Hong Kong and Singapore and s
heagquartered in Stamford, Connecticut,




Fleet Services ‘l' ‘l'

GE Capital Fleer Services ("GECFS") is the leading corporate ({leet
management company in North America and Eurcope with 750,000 cars. trucks and
specialty vehicles under lease and service management. GECFS offers finance
and operating leases to several thousand customers with an average lease term
of 33 months. The primary product in North America is a Terminal Rental
Adjustment Clause (TRAC) lease through which the customer assumes the residual
risk--that is, risk that the boock value will be greater than market value at
lease termination. In Eurcope. the primary product is a closed-end lease in
which GECFS assumes residual risk. In addition to the services directly
associated with the lease, GECFS offers fleet management services designec to
reduce customers’ total fleet management costs., These services include, among
otners, maintenance management programs, accident services, national account
purchasing programs, fuel programs, title and licensing services and safety
programs. GECFS' customer base is diversified with respect to induscry and
geography and includes many Fortune 500 companies.

Du
totals 1
Kingdom.

ng 1995, GECFS added 13,000 vehicles to its European fleet, which now
,000 vehicles, with the purchase of Leasecontracts, plc in the United
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GECFS® headquarters are located in Eden Prairie. Minnesota.
Genstar Container

Genstar Container Corporation |(*"Genstar®) is the world’'s largest lessor
of in: ‘rmodal shipping containers. Genstar maintains a fleet of sver 1,300,000
TEU (‘twenty-foor egquivalent units’) of dry-cargo, refrigerated and specialized
containers for global intermodal carge transport. Lessees are primarily

shipp:ng lines which lease on a long-term or master lease basis.

Genztar 15 headquartered in San Francisco, California.

rransport lnternacional Pool
Transpor: Internazional Pool ("TIP®) i:s the leading trailer specialist
tidr mp dlverse srailer programs and associated services. TIP's fleer of
et Lot dry freighnt, refrigerated and cdouble vans, flatbeds and
cpwer.a..2ed trailers is available for rent, lease or purchase at over 180
.orations wn the United States, Canada, Mexico and Europe. TIP also finances
nev  anc usegd trallers, buys trailer fleers, and structures sale-leaseback
transacziens. TIP's customer base comprises trucking companies, manufacturers

70 reéra..ers worldwide.

TIF 15 neadguartered in Devon., Pennsylvania.
Rai.icar Services

senera. Electric Railcar Services Corporaction (“GERSCO®) has a fleet of
approximately 140,000 railcars leased to others in North America, principally
unger operating leases. Railcar maintenance and repair serviccs are provided
+ Genera. Electric Railcar Repair Services Corporation, a wholly-owned
aff:liate of GERSCO, at its 15 repair centers in the United States and Canada.

Fas
v

GERSCO 15 headguartered in Chicago, Illinois.




Technology m.mgu. Services .

GE Capital Technology Management Services ("GE Capital TMS®"), is a leade:
in providing a broad spectrum of services that enable customers to utilize
information technology more efficiently by combining consulting. services anag
financing options to help businesses plan, acguire, manage and refresh
technology assets. These services and financing options include, among cthers.
acquisition, leasing, rental, installation, help desk network services, audio
visual rental and show services, and test equipment rental, repair and
calibration services.

During 1995, GE Capital TMS assumed responsibility £for GE Capizal's
Commercial Processing Service Center, an information technology data cente:r and
cutsourcing provider, and established the Network and Asset Management business
unit, enhancing GE Capital TMS5' information technology help desk and network
service capabilities. Also in 1995, GE Capital TMS acquired Andersen
Consulting's OM/NI Solution Center as part of an alliance formed between GE
Capital TMS and Andersen Consulting designed to promote full service
information technology.

GE Capital TMS is headquartered in Norcross, Georgia, and has other
principal locations in Canada and California.

Satellite Telecommunicacions Services

GE American Communications ("GE Americom®) is a leading satellite service
supplier to a diverse array of customers, including the broadcast and cable TV
industries, broadcast radio, business information and integrated communications
services for government and commercial customers. GE Americom operates 13
communications satellites and maintains a supporting networi cf earth stations.
central terminal offices, and telemetry, tracking and ceratrol facilities. GE
Americom’'s GE Capital Spacenet Services business offers a full range of sne-way
and two-way Very Small Aperture Terminal (VSAT) network products and services.

GE Americom is headguartered in Princeton. M.~ Jersey.
Mpgular Space

GE Cap:ital Modular Space (*GECMS5*) maintains a fleet of approximately
£f,000 non-residential relocatable modular structures for rental. lease and
sa.e from over 100 facilities in North America and Europe. Markets served
include construction, education, nealthcare. financial, commercial.
instituiional and governmen:t GECMS' operating leases average 12-18 months.

During 1995, GECMS acquired the f{leet assets of HOB Units, N.V. in Europe
and Elaer Equipment Leasing. Inc. in cthe U.S.

GECMS 15 headquartered in Malvern, Pennsylvania.
MID-HARKET F1INANCING
Commercial Eguipment Financing

Commercial Equipment Financing (*CEF") offers a broad line of financial
products including leases, louans and municipal financing to middle-market
customers including manufacturers, distributors, dealers and end-users.

Products are designed to meet customers’ financing needs and are either held
for CEF's own account or brokered to third parties.




Generally, transactions range in size from 550 thousand to 550 million,
with financing terms from 36 to 120 months. CEF also maintains an asset
management operation that both redeploys off-lease equipment and monitors asset
values.

The portfolio includes loans and leases for vehicles, manufacturing
egquipment., corporate aircraft, construction equipment. medical diagnostic
eguipment, office eguipment, telecommunications equipment and electronics.

CEF operates from offices throughout the United States, Fuerto Rico,
Canada, Mexice, Europe, India and Asia and cthrough joint ventures in Indonesia
and China. CEF is headguartered in Danbury, Connecticut.

Vendor Financial Services

Vendor Financial Services ("VFS") provides captive financing services to
over 75 equipment manufacturers in 22 countries and 3,500 distributors and
dealers 1n seven countries. Customers include telecommunications. information
technology. healthcare, manufacturing and office eguipment businesses,.
Financin jrograms are tailored to meet the individual needs of each
manufacturer and distributor and include sales force training, marketing
support and customized financing products. Funding, billing, cecllections and
onher related services are provided by several highly automated service
operation:s around the world. VFS' typical transaction size ranges from S2.000
to §150,000, with typical terms between 36 to 60 months., Security interests
are generally maintained in the assets being financed.

During 1995, VFS acquired Pallas Leasing Group located in the United
¥:nogdom. Pallas provides financing services to leading manufacturers, dealers
anz distributors in the telecommunicacions, information technology and office
eqguipment ndustries.

Sa.es offices are located worldwide ar sites cthat include the United
as$n anadga, the United rKingdom. Spain., Sweden, Maxico Fr.nce, Hong Kong.
InI.s anc e.sewnere in Asi&. VFS is headgquartered in Danbury, Connecticut.

£ Capiia. Hawa:il

GE Capital Hawaii Inc. ("GECH*) operates in the state of Hawaii and
territory of Guam. Through a network of 10 branch coffices, GECH o:fers
commercia. and residential real estate loans, auto and equipment leasing.
ventory financing and eguity lines of credic.

JECH i:f headgquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii.

SPECIALTY INSURANCE

Ir. addition to GE Global Insurance Holding Corporation (discussed above), GECS-
Froncipa. opecialty insurance businesses are as follows.

¥inancial Guarancty Insurance

FGIC Corporacion ("FGIC*), through its wholly-owned subsidiary Financial
Guaranty Insurance Company ("Financial Guaranty®"), is an insurer of municipal
bonds. including new issues and bonds traded in the secondary market and bonds
held in unit investment trusts and mutual funds. Financial Guaranty alsco
guarantees certain structured debt issues in the taxable market. The
guaranteed principal, after reinsurance, amounted to approximately 599 billion
at December 31, 1995. Approximately B7% of the business written to date by
Financial Guaranty has been municipal bond insurance.
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Companies affiliated with Financial Guaranty offer a variety of other
services to state and local governments and agencies. These affiliates provide
liquidity facilities in variable-rate ctransactions, municipal investmen:t
products and cash management services.

FGIC is headguartered in New York, New York.

Mortgage Insurance

GE Capital Mortgage Insurance is engaged principally in providing
residential mortgage guaranty insurance. Operating in 2% field locations, GE
Cap:ital Mortgage Insurance is licensed in 50 states and the District of
Columbia and, at December 31, 1995, was the primary insurance carrier for over
1,305,000 residential homes, with total insurance in force aggregating
approximately 5160 billion and total risk in force aggregating approximately
533 billion. When a claim is received, GE Capital Mortgage Insurance proceeds
by either paying a guaranteed percentage based on the specified coverage, or
paying the mortgage and delinguent interest, taking title to the property and
arranging for i:tc sale, In 1995, GE Capital Mortgage Insurance also began
providing mortgage guaranty insurance in the United Kingdom and Canada.

GE Capital Mortgage Insurance is headguartered in Raleigh, North
Caraolina.

reditor Insurance

Consoclidated Financial Insurarice (*CFI"), headquartered in Brentford,
Middlesex, England., provides creditor insurance in the Eurcpean Union. The
insurance, which covers loan repayments., is sold through htanks. building
soc:eties and other lenders to retail borrowers.

Insurance Services

Her:tage Insurance Group primarily comprises a California propercty and
casua.ty company angd an Arizona life insurance company. Hericage is licensed
te offer ..fe, accident and health and property coverage in the District of
Coilumoia anc all states except New York. Viking Insurance Company., based in
Bermuda, provides life, property and casualty reinsurance coverage. Other GE
Cap:za. Insurance fervices®' operations market and distribute insurance-related
products through direct brokerage and agent networks.

Insurance Services is headguartered in Stamford. Connecticut.

REGULATIONS AND COMPETITION

The Corporation’'s activities are subject to a wvariety of federal and
state regulations including, at the federal level, the Consumer Credit
Protection Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and certain regulations issued
py the Federal Trade Commisszion. A majority of states have ceilings on rates
chargeable to customers in retail time sales transactions, installment loans
and revolving credit financing. Common carrier services of GE Americom are
subject to regulation by the Federal Communications Commission. Insurance and
reinsurance operat‘ons are subject to regulation by wvarious state insurance

commissions or foreign regulatory authorities, as applicable,. The
Corporation's international operations are subject to regulation in their
respective jurisdictions. To date such regulations have not had a material

adverse effect on the Corporation's wvolume of financing operations or
profitability.




The Corporation's charges for providing financing services are changed
from time to time either on a general basis or for specific types of financing
when warranted in light of competition or interest and other costs. The
businesses in which the Corporation engages are highly competitive. The
Corporation is subject te competition from wvaricus types of financial
institutions, including banks, thrifts, investment banks, credit unions,
leasing companies, consumer loan companies, independent finance companies,
finance companies associated with manufacturers and reinsurance companies.

Item 2. Proparties.

GE Capital Services and its subsidiaries conduct their businesses £from
various facilities, most of which are leased.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The following is not material to the Corporation but is provided for
infermational purposes. As previously reported, following GE Company's
announcement on April 17, 1994, of a 5210 million charge to net earnings based
upon its discovery of false trading profits at its indirect subsidiary, Kidder.
Peabody |« Co.. Incorporated ("Kidder®), the United S5States Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC*"), the United States Attorney for the Southern
District of New York, and the New York Stock Exchange initiated investigations
relazing to the false trading profits. On January 9, 1996, the SEC initiated
administrative enforcement proceedings against the former head of Kidder's
government securities trading desk, Joseph Jett, alleging that he engaged in
securities fraud and other violations and against two of his former suprivisors
for failure to supervise. Also, two civil suits purportedly broujnt on behalf
of GE Company as shareholder derivative actions were filed in New York State
Supreme Court in New York County. Both suits claim that GE Compiny’'s directors
breacned their fiduciary duties to GE Company by failims rto adequately
supervise and control the FKidder employee responsible for the irregular
trading One sult, claiming damages of over $350 million, was filed on May 10.
1994, oy the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana against GE Company, I(ts

gireczocrs (other than Messrs. Dammerman, Opie and Penske), Kidder, its parent,
E.dde: Peabody Group Inc., and certain of Hidder's former officers and
c.recLors The other suit was filed on June 3, 1994, by William Schrank and

ciners against GE Company's directors claiming unspecified damages and other
reliet On May 19, 1995, GE Company and the director defendants moved to
g.smiss the amended consolidated complaint for failure to make a pre-litigation

gemans, among other reasons. In addition, wvarious shareholders of GE Company
nave f:.led two purported class action suits claiming that GE Company and
Fidder., and certain of Kidder's former officers and employees, allegedly

viclated federal securities laws by issuing statements concerning GE Company's
financial condition that included the false trading profits a: Kidder., and
seer.ing compensatory damages for shareholders who purchased GE Company‘s stoc!
beginning as early as January 1993. The defendants filed motions to dismiss
these purported class action suits. On October 4, 1995, the court dismissed
tne complaint against GE Company, but denied the motiocn to dismiss the
complaint against Kidder. On Novembe:r 3, 1995, the plaintiffs in the case
against GE Company appealed the trial court's dismissal of their complaint to
the Second Circuit Court of Appeals.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Omitted
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. PART II .

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Egquity and Relatsd Stockholdesr
Matters.

See note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The common stock
of the Corporation is owned encirely by GE Company and, thereiore, there is no
trading market in such stock,

Item 6. Selected Frinancial Data.
The following selected financial data should be read in conjuncticon with
the financial statements of GE Capital Services and consolidated affiliates and

the related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year sodad December 31,

1998 184 1993 1992 1991
tho.lar amounts in millions) Trmsmsw  srEssss s----es sesssss —ou-ees
Earned iNCOMB. .. .ovresnasnna R S e e $ 26.492 & § 17.27T6 £ 14.418 53 11.0%)
Lars;2g5 iror CORIIRULRG OP@rARIONE. - «cvvueis =.415 2,085 1,567 1.3) . als
fFas+ . rogs l.oasl fro~ discontinued operations... - I1.1891 =l 14] 168 45
Ne: BAININGE. . cssssssssetssraassnss Mk 2.415% BYE 1.807 « . 499 isadb
Hetusrn on COPMON ULty 2! Bl .cssannnaroes 21,980 20,140 16.59% 15.82% 16. 48y
CcLoe ¢ of earn:ngs o {iwed charges..... ... 1.53 1.65% 1.6] L. 46 1.3%
GET s of warnings to fixed charges..... 1.51 1.6) 1.62 Lohe e 1 |
GETS 1at. 2 geb: O BQGILY (B)irsecrrorrnennasn T.89 T.94 T.96 T.9 7,80
Fomanc.ng rece:vab,es - net cid e wienas 9.3 % 76,257 $ £).948 £ 59.388 § 5%,7%2
Percert o! a..owance for losses or financing

receivabies 1o tota. finencing receivables. .. 2,610 .60 2.6% 2.63% 3L
4. ALEEYE P P T . cesssssaa=a- S1IB5, 729 S144.967 $126.637 5 99.0.9 8§ BE.5)9
Lrort tEET DOrrow.nge e nls . L 62 808 £7.087 5L 242 50, .81 4%.042
: tErT a@nICT ROLes il iy s 47.79%¢ 1¥. 6158 25.112 Y L8l 17,846
1t pLDLIZ.TAZOd TOLeE. .. O R e 996 (15 637 687 32h
P — -, 522 . 4b6% a:30% L1 T L1
-n TTH 9. 380 10.80% E.BRS 7.758
tre=,.ry written f6: Lhe year...... 6,158 3.962 1,950 2.900 2.155
Lt Eguity excludes unrealized gains and losses on investment securities, net
of tax.
(D) Fetuyrn on common eguity 18 calculated using earnings from continuing
oPerations. Earnings are adjusted for preferred stock dividends and

equity excludes preferred stock.

T Corporation adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
|"S5FAS") No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt ard Eguity
5 riries, on December 31, 1993, resulting in the inclusion in equity,
of tax, of net unrealized gains on investment securities of 5989
million, net unrealized losses of S821 million and net unrealized gains
of $812 million at December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
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Item 7. ml‘:".lmim and Analywsis of mm\.af Operations.
Overview

The Corporation's net earnings were 52,415 millien in 1995, compared with
5896 million in 1994 which were 50% less than 1992's earnings of $1,807
million. The 1995 increase reflected no current year counterpart to the 1994
discontinued operations loss from the Kidder, Peabody Group Inc. (°®Kidder,
reabody”") . Net earnings from continuing operations (exclus.ve of Kidder,
Peabody) were 52,415 million in 1995 up 16% from 52,085 million in 1994, which
increased 33% from 1993. Improved earnings from continuing operations during
1995 and 1994 reflect the effects of asset growth with approximately egual
contributions from origination volume and from acquisitions of businesses and
portfolics.

Discontinued Operations

In 1994 the Corporation elected to terminate the operations of its
securities broker-dealer, Kidder, Peabody. Discontinued operations had no
impac:t on 1995 earnings compared with a net loss of $1,189 million in 1994 and
earnings c¢f 5240 million in 1993. The 1994 net loss from discontinued
operations included a provision of SB6B million after taxes for exit costs
related to the liguidation of Kidder, Peabody. This ligquidation was
substantially complete as of December 31, 1995, See note 2 to the consolidated
f{inancial statements for furcther details of discontinued operations.

Operating Results from Continuing Operaticns

Earnings from continuing operations were 52,415 million in 1995 up 16%
from 5I.08% million in 1994, which increased 33% from 1993. The 1995 ‘ncrease
reflected strong performances in the financing segments resulting £from asset
growtn partially offser by a decrease in financing spreads /cthe excess of
yie.ds uve:r interest rates on borrowings) as the increase in Dorrowing rates
ocutpacet the improvements in vyields. Earnings in the Specialty Insurance
increased due to growth, primarily from acquisitions., and ne current
fea: counterpar:t to the 1994 adverse loss development in private mortgage pool
Lngurance The 1994 increase reflected strong performances in the financing
segments res..ting primarily from asse: growth. improved financing spreads and
ASSe: Gua.iity. Earn.ngs in the Specialty Insurance segment declined in 1994
due to nigher insurance losses.

Legmen:t

Tne correlation between interest rate changes and financing spreads :is
subject to many factors and cannot be forecasted with reliability. Although
not necessarily relevant to furure effects, management estimates that, al. else
constant, an increase of 100 basis points in interest rates for all of 199%
would nave reduced net earnings by approximately $65 million.

Earned income increased 33% tec 526.5 billion in 1995 following a L5%
increase to 519.5 billion in 1994. Asset growth in each of the Corporaticn's
financing segments was the primary reason for increased income from time sales,
ivans, financing leases and operat:ng lease rentals in both 1925 and 1994.
Yields on related assets increased during 1995 and 1994 after holding
essentially flat in 1993,
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Specialty In‘\co revenues increased 51% na..c billion in 1995 from
$4.9 billion in 1994, which was essentially flat compared with 1993. The 1995
increase reflected growth, primarily associated with business acquisitions, in
the property and casualty reinsurance business. The 1994 increase reflected
steady growth in premium revenue, offset by a reduction in assumed life
reinsurance.

Interest expeanse on borrowings in 1995 was 56.7 billion, 47% higher than
in 1994 which was 28% higher than in 1993. Increases in 1995 and 1994
reflected the effects of higher average borrowings used to finance asset growth
as well as the effects of higher interest rates. Part of the 1995 increase
resulted from a shift during the year to longer-term funding. The composite
interest rate on the Corporation‘'s borrowings was 6.76% in 1995 compared with
5.47% in 1994 and 4.96% in 1991.

Operating and administrative expenses were 57.B billion In 1995, a 25%
increase over 1954, which was 10% higher than 1993, primarily reflecting higher
investment levels and costs associated with acquired businesses and portfolios
over the pas:t two years. These increases were partially offset by reductions in
provisions for losses on investments charged to operating and administrative
expenses, orincipally those relating to commercial real estate assets during
1995 and s combination of commercial real estate assets, highly leveraged
transactions and commercial aircraft during 1994.

Insurance losses and policyholder and annuity benefits increased 51% to
$5.3 billion in 1995, compared with an 11% increase to 53.5 billion in 1994.
The 19%5 increase primarily resulted from the property and casualty reinsurance
business’ and annuity business’ acquisitions along with growth in originacions.
The 1994 increase was the result of annuity benefits credited to _ustomers of
the annuity business which was acquired in 1993 and adverse loss development 1in
private mortgage pool insurance, particularly related to the ef-ects of poor
econom:c conditions and housing value declines in southern ~.l..fornia. These
increases were partially offset by lower policyholder benefits in the life
reinsurance business resulting from reduced assumed volume.

Provision for losses on financing receivables increased to 51,117 millien
LrooLBel from SET7I million inm 1994, which decreased from 5987 million in 1993.
Trese provisions principally related to private-label credit cards, bank credit
Taras. a<ic loans and avto ieases in the Consumer Segment along with commercial
rea. estate loans, all of which are discussed below under Portfolio Quality.

Depreciation and amortization of buildings and egquipment and eguipment on
cperating leases increased Il% to $2,013 million in 1995 compared with S1,662
mil.ion in 1994, a 4% increase over 1993. The increase in both years was the
resu.t of additions to equipment on operating leases through origination volume
as wel. as business and porttolio acquisitions.

Provision for income taxes was 51,105 million in 1995 (an effective tax
rate of 31.4%), compared with SB64 million in 1994 (an effective tax rate of
28.3%v), and 5642 million in 1993 (an effective tax rate of 29.1%). The higher
provision for income taxes in both 199° and 1994 reflected increased pre-tax
earnings subject to statutory tax ratces. The 1995 increase in the effective
tax rate resulted primar'ly from proportionately lower tax-exempt income and an
increase in non-U.S, income taxes. Increases affecting the effective tax rate
in 19%4, compared with 1993, included proportionately lower tax-exempt income
ancé an increase in state and local income taxes. In addition, there was no
1994 counterpart to the effects of certain 1993 financing transactions that
veduced the Corporation's obligation for deferred taxes. These increases were
offset by the absence of a 1994 counterpart to the unfavorable effects of the
1991 increase of 1% in the U.5. federal income tax rate.
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Oparating prefit by industry segmant

oOperating profit of the Corporation, by industry segment, is summarized
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and discussed below.

Consumer Services operating proficr was 51,030 million in 1995, rompared
with 51,067 million in 1994, and $709% million in 1993. Strong performances
during 1995 in the bank credit card, annuity and non-U.5. private label credit
card businesses, resulting primarily from acquisition growth, were offset by
losses from adverse market conditions in the mortgage servicing business. The
strong 1994 growth in operacing profit resulted £rom origination and
acguisition growth in the auto leasing business and the private-label and bank
credit card businesses. In addition, the operations of the annuity business,
purchased in 1993, were included for a full year in 199%&.

Specialized Financing operating profit increased to 5673 million in 1995
from 5536 million in 1994, which increased 46% over 1993. The 1995 increase
resulted from lower provisions for losses, particularly in the commercial real
estate business, and increased end-of-lease residual realization. The increase
in 1994 principally reflected much lower provisions for losses on highly
levera ed nvestments and commercial real estate assets.

Equipment Management operating profit increased to 5897 million in 1895
from 5624 millien in 1994, which was up from 5246 million in 1993. Increases
in both years reflected higher volume in most businesses, largely the result of
portfolio and business acguisitions. The 1995 increase also resulted from
increased prices at the traller, modular space and railcar businerses along
with the sale of an outdoor media business. The 1994 increase also reflected
improved trailer, container and railcar wutilization, and reduced expenses
associated with redeployment and refurbishment of owned aircraft compared with

Mid-Market Financing coperating profit increased slightly to 5445 million
i .08Z compared with 5435 million in 1994 primarily due to continued asset

growen somewnat offser by reduced financing spreads. COperating profit during
1845 irrereased 7% over 19931 reflecting higher levels of invested assets,
partia.ly as a result of business and portfeolio acquisitions and increased

.nancing spreads.

Specialty Insurance operating profit increased to $1.020 million in 1995
from S55B9 milliion in 1994, principally because there was no current-year
rounterpart to the 1994 adverse loss development in private mortgage pool
insurance, the result of poor economic conditions and housing value declines in
scuthern California. Operating profit in 1995 also was enhanced by improved
retirns on investment securities and effects of acqguisitions. 1994 operating
profit declined from S770 million in 1993, as private mortgage pool insurince
.cuses more than offset operating profit increases in other parts of the
segment, including primary mortgage insurance.
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Capital Resources .u.qnul.tr .

Statament of Financial pPosition

Investmant securities for each c¢f the past two years comprised mainly
investment-grade debt securities held by the Corporation‘'s specialty insurance
and annuity businesses in support of obligations to policyhclders and
arnuitants. The increase of $10.2 billion during 1995 was principally related
to acquisitions, increases in fair value resulting from lower year-end interest
rates and investment of premiums.

Financing receivables were $93.3 billion at year-end 19%5, net of
allowance for doubrful accounts, up $16.9 billion over 1994. These receivables
are discussed on page 21 and in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Oother receivables were 512.% billion and $6.0 billion at December 31,
995 and 1994, resp=ctively. The 1995 increase was almost entirely
t=riputable toc premiums receivable and reinsurance recoverables. reflecting
cguired busiiesses and a general increase in underwriting actiwvity.

1
a
a

Egquipment on cperating leases was 512.B billion at December 31, 1995, up
434 million from 1994, Details by category of investment can be found in note

¢ =o the rconsclidated financial statements. Additions to eguipment on
operating leases were 54.5 billion during 1995 and $5.6 billion during 1994,

Other assets totaled $21.1 billion ar year-end 1995. an increase of 54.5

Balla on from the end of 1994, §1.5 billion of the increase relates to goodwill
at=riputable to various acgquisitions, none of which was individ.ally
sigrnificant. The remaining increase of $3.0 billion related prircipally to

ACQuiSiT1I0NE.

Insurance liabilities, reserves and annuity benefits were £3%.7 billion
a- yeav-end 1995, S10.3 billion higher than in 1994. The increase was
s .mar..y dattributable to the acquisizions of the Frankona and Aachen

e nr rance Groups.

2

Borrowings were Z1.. .6 billion at December 311, 1995, of which 562.B
Z.o...0n L= due in 1996 and 548.B billion is due in subseguent Yyears.
Cerparab.e amounts at the end of 1994 were $91.4 billion in ctotal, 557.1
L....0n due within one year and $34.3 billion due thereafter. A large portien

! the CTorporation's borrowings (541.2 billion and 5$43.7 billion at the end of
LBes oang 1994, respectively: was .issued in active commercial paper markets that
management bDelleves will continue to be a reliable source of short-term
f.nancing. Most of this commercial paper is issued by GE Capital. The average
remaining terms and interest rates of GE Capital’'s commercial paper were 41

y5 and 5.8B%, respectively., at the end of 1995 compared with 45 days and
30 a:z the end of 1994. GE Capital's leverage (ratio of debt to egquity,
erc.uding from eguity all unrealized gains and losses on investment securities,
ne: of tax) was 7.89 to 1 at the end cf 1995, compared with 7.94 to 1 at the

encd of 1994. By comparison, including in equicty all unrealized gaing and
.oss5es on investment securities, net of tax, GE Capital's ratio of debt to
equity was 7.59 to 1 at the end of 1995, compared with B.43 to 1 at the end of
Legg




GE Company has ‘Jc:nd to make contributions t‘ Capital in the even:
of either a significant, specified decrease in the ratio of GE cCapital‘'s
earnings to fixed charges or a failure to maintain a specified debt-to-egquity
ratio in the event certain GE Capital preferred stock is redeemed. GE Company
alsc has guaranteed the Corporation's subordinated debt with a face amount of
51,000 million and 5700 million at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively.
Management believes the likelihood that GE Company will be required to make
contributions or payments under either the commitments or the guarantees is
remote,

Statamant of Cash Flows

The Corperation's primary source of cash is financing activity involving
the conzinued rollover of short-rterm borrowings and appropriate addition of
borrowings, with a reasonable balance of maturities. Over the past three
years, the Corporation‘s borrowings with maturicties of 90 days or less have
decreased by 54.4 billion. New borrowings of 5$74.5 billion having maturities
longer than 90 days were added during those years, while $38.3 billion of such
longer-term borrowings were retired. The Corporation also generated S524.3
billion of cash from continuing operating activities during the last three
YEears.

The Corporation's principal use of cash has been investing in assets to
grow its businesses. Of the $§53.5 billion that the Corporation invested in
continuing operations over the past three years, 525.0 billion was used for
additions to financing receivables, S513.5 billlion was used to invest in new
equipment, principally for lease to others, and 59.5 billion was used for
acquisitions of new businesses.

with the financial flexibility that comes with excelleut credit ratings.
management believes the Corporation should be well posirioned to meet the
Global needs of its customers for capital and to ecntinue growing ics
diversified asse: base.

Interest Rate and Currency Risk Management

“ne Corporation uses various financial instruments, particularly interest
rate. cCurrency and basis swaps, but alsc options and currency forwards, to
manage risks. The Corporazion is exclusively an end user of these instruments,
whichn are commonly referred to as derivatives. The Corporation does not engage
in any derivatives trading, market-making or other speculative activities in
the derivative markets.

The Corporation manages .ts exposure to changes in interest rates, in
parz, by funding its assets with an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate
debr and 1te exposure to currency fluctuations principally by funding local
currency denominated assets with debt denominated in those same currencies. It
uses interest rate swaps and currency swaps (including non-U.S5. currenc and
Crose currency interest rate swaps) to achieve lower borrowing costs.
Substantially all of these swaps have been designated as modifying interest
rates and/or currencies assocliated with specific debt instruments.

These financial instruments allow the Corporation to lower its cost of
funds by substituting credic risk for interest rate and currency risks. Since
the Corporation‘'s principal use of such swaps is to optimize funding costs,
rhanges in interest rates and exchange rates underlying swaps would not be
expected to have a material impact on the Corporation’'s financial position or
results of operations. The Corporation conducts almost all activities with
these instruments in the over-the-counter markets.
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The Corporation is exposed to prepayment risk in certain of its business
activities, such as in its mortgage servicing and annuities activities,. In
order to hedge those exposures, the Corporation uses swaps and option-based
financial instruments. These instruments generally behave based on limits
{"caps,* *“floors* or *“collars*) on interest rate movement. These swaps and
option-based instruments are governed by the credit risk policies described
below and are transacted in the over-the-counter markets.

In addition, as part of its ongoing customer activities, the Corporation
may enter into swaps that are integrated with investments in or loans teo
particular customers and do not involve assumption of third-party credit risk.
Such integrated swaps are evaluated and menitored like their associated
investments or loans, and are not therefore subject to the same credit criteria
that would apply to a stand-alone swap. All other swaps, forward contracts and
other derivatives have been designated ac hedges of non-U.5. net investments or
other assetrs.

Established practices require that derivative financial instruments
relate o specific asser. liability or equity transactions or te currency
eXposures. Substantially all ctreasury actions are centrally executed by the
Corporation’'s Treasury Department, which maintains contreols on all exposures,
adheres to stringent counterparty credit standards and actively monitors
marketplace exposures.

Given the ways in which the Corporation uses swaps, purchased options
and forwards. the principal risk is credit risk - risk that counterparties will
be financially unable to make payments in accordance with the agreements.
Associated market risk is meaningful only as it relates to how changes in the
marker value affect credit exposure to individual counterparties, Except as
note¢ above for positions that are integrated into financ.ngs, all swaps,
purcnased options and forwards are carried out within the following credit
policy constraincs:

Lsenterparty credit criteria Credit rating
Moody's Standard & Poor's

Term of transaction

Botween one and five years.............. Aal AR~

sreater than five years. . ... ccvvevcnann ABsa AARA
‘red.: exposure limits

Up 2o 550 milllon..cecocamoneocnmesans " Ahal AA-

Ui te ST5 BllIAom e s s omiainimie e eenss haa AAA

~i. Swaps are executed under master sSwap agreements containing mutual
cred.: downgrade provisions that provide the abilicy to require assignment oz
rerm.nation in the event either party is downgraded below Al or A-. Because .f
tne:r .ower risk, more credit latitude is permitted for original maturities

shLrie; Than one year.

Once a counterparty exceeds credit exposure limits, no additional
transactions are permitted until the exposure with that counterparty is reduced
vt ar amount that is within the established limit. Open contracts remain in

"rCe,
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The comreui.on. interest rate and curren sk into credit risk
results in a need to moniteor counterparty credit risk actively. .Atr December
31, 1995, the notional amount of long-term derivatives for which the
counterparty was rated below Aal/AA- was 52,297 million. These amounts are the
result of (1) counterparty downgrades. (2) transactions executed prior to the
adoption of the Corporation’'s current counterparty credit standards, and (3)
transactions relating to acquired assets or businesses. The total exposure to
credit risk associated with in-the-money derivatives at December 31, 1995 was
S6EB0 million. The Corporation does not anticipate any loss from this exposure.

Following is an analysis of credit risk exposures for the last three
years.

Percentage of Notiocnal Derivative Exposure by Counterparty Credit Rating

_____ -

Moody's / B&P 1885 1994 1993
ABAAAR . « v v o e e e a s 75% T8% 67%
ABAR .« e e e e SO 22% 17% 21%
EA BNG BRLOW. .. e s eiesmwasese s 5% 12%

The optimal funding strategy is sometimes achieved by using multiple
sSwaps. For example, to obtain fixed rate U.S5. dollar funding, several
alternatives are generally available. One alternative is a swap of non-U.S.
dollar denominated fixed rate debt into U.S5. dollars. The synthetic U.S.

dollar denominated debt would be effectively created by taking the following
steps: (1) issuing fixed rate, non-U.S. currency denominated debt, (2) entering
into a swap under which fixed rate non-U.S. currency principel and interest
will pbe received and floating rate non-U.S5. currency principal and interest
will be paid, and (3) entering into a swap under which flcating rate non-U.S.
currency principal and interest will be received and fired rate U.5. dollar
denom.nated principal and interest will be paid. The eni result is, in every
mporzant respect, fixed rate U.S. dollar denominatec. .inancing with an element

¢ romsrolled credit risk. This type of structure usually results from using
severa. Swap counterparti:es for steps (2) and (13). The Corporation uses
m..>.p.e SWApPE only as par: of such transactions.

Tne Lnterplay of the Corporation's credit risk policy with its funding
act.viz.es 1s seen in the following example, in which the Corporation is
assumes to have been offered three alternatives for funding five-year fixed
rate U.5, dollar assets with five-year fixed rate U.S5. dollar debt.

Spread over
U.8. Treasuriss in
basis points Counterparty
1. Fixed rate 5 year medium term note.... +65 =
<. U.5. dollar commercial paper
swapped into 5 year U.f, dollar
fixed race funding........ccveniinn «40 A
i. Swiss franc fixed rate debt swapped
into 5 year U.S5, dollar fixed
rate funding. o veveioincasianeesnnns +35 B
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L‘ount:erplrr.y. is a major brokerage house a Aaa/AAA rated swap
subsidiary and a current exposure ¢to the Corporation of $39 million.
Counterparty B is a Aa2/AA rated insurance company with a current exposure of
$50 millien.

In this hypothetical case, the Corporation would have chosen alternative
2. Alternative 1 is unacceptably costly. Although alternative 3 would have
vielded a lower immediate cost of funds, the additional credit risk of
Counterparcy B would have exceeded the Corporation's risk management limits.

Portfolic Quality

The portfolioc of financing receivables, before allowance for losses.
increased to 595.8 billion at the end of 1995 from 5$78.4 billion at the end of
1994, with approximately equal contributions £rom origination volume and from
acquisitions of businesses and portfolios. Financing receivables =zre the
Corporation‘s largest asset and its primary source of revenues. Related
allowances for losses at the end of 1995 aggregated S52.5 billion (2.63% of
receivables - the same level as 199¢ and 1993) and are, 1in management s
judgment, appropriate given the risk profile of the portfolio. Amounts written
off in 1995 were approximately 1.01% of the year's average {ilnancing
receivables, compared with 1.04% and 1.59% during 1994 and 1993, respectively.
# discussion about the quality of certain elements of the portfelic of
financing receivables follows. Further details are included in notes 4, 5 and
& to the consoclidated financial statements. Nonearning receivables are thuse
th't are 90 days or more delinguent and reduced earning receivables are
receivables whose terms have been restructured to a below-market yield.

Consumer receivables at year-end 1995 and 1994 are shown in the following

table:

{In millions) 1995 1994
Credit card and personal locans.......couv004 Led, 9337 §19,124
AULO TR + o ios s s a0 b i we a0 b e s 5,555 3,99:
Moo FiNANCEe lEABEE. . i e vevien e e iniie 12,461 7.473
TEHCAY COTBUMNY & o i areies Hiss o's slabiiea e e sl 541,953 $30,58B8
tonearrning and reduced earning. ... ... a0 s 671 -3 22
- At a percentage of total..........c.4: 1.6% 1.4%
receivable write offs for the year,........ 5 644 $ 482

Mos: of the nonearning consumer receivables were U.S5. private-label
credit card loans, the majority of which were subject to various loss sharing
arrangements that provide full or partial recourse to the originating retailer.
De..nguencies in the consumer portfolio were slightly higher at the end of '995
thar. 1994, consistent with overall industry experience.
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Commercial m.l.ne- portfolio at year-end l‘nnd 1994 amounted to
517.4 billion and 516.9 billion, respectively, as shown in the following table:

{In millions) 1995 1994
LOBTIE G G o vt S A e i s e B e T A e R £13,405 $13,282
Nonearning and reduced earning loans....... 179 179
Receivable write offs for the year......... 147 209
Assets acquired for resale................... 2,335 2,103
Other (primarily ventures)..........c.ceeeuen 1,651 1,508

Commercial real estate loans are generally secured by first mortgages.
Assers are acquired for resale from variocus financial institutions. Values
realized during 1995 and 1994 on disposition of assets acquired for resale have
met or exceeded expectations at the time of purchase.

The commercial real estate portfolio included investments in a variety of
property types and continues to be well dispersed gecgraphically, principally
in the ceontinental! United States. Write offs in the commercial real estate
portfolic declined during 1995, as markets continued to stabilize.

Other financing receivables, totaling 540.4 billion at December 311, 1995,
consisted of a diverse commercial, industrial and equipment loan and lease
portfolio. This portfolio increased $5.9 billien during 1995, primarily
because of acguisitions. The related nonearning and reduced-earning
receivables increased to 5285 million at year-end 1995 from S$165 million at
year-end 1994.

The Corporation has loans and leases to commercial airlines, as discussed
irt note & to the consolidated financial statements, amounting r- $8.1 billion
at the end of 1995, up from 57.6 billion at the end of 1994. At year-end 1995,
the Corporation’s commercial aircraft positions included finsaacial guarantees
and funding commitments ampounting to S$409 million ($506 =i'lion in 1994) and
condit:ona. commitments to purchase aircraft at a cost of $141 million (S8l

e ...0r a4t Decemper 31, 1994). On January 22, 1996, the Corporation announced
“nat .t nat p.aced a mulili-year order for various Boeing aircraft with list
proce: approximating 54 billion.

Entering 1996 managemen:t believes that wvigilant attention to risk
maragement and controllership and a strong focus on complete sactisfacrion of
cistorer needs position it to deal effectively with the increasing competition
.noan ever-changing global economy.

New Accounting Standards

Two newly-issued accounting standards will be adopted in the first
quarter of 1996 and are not expected to have a material effect on the
Corporazion's financial position or results of gperations. A summary of these
standards follows.

SFAS No. 121, Accounting for -he Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed 0Of, requires that certain long-lived assets be
reviewec !{or impairsent when evente or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If such review indicates that
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the sum of its expected future cash
flows, the asset's carrying value must be written down to fair value.




SFAS No. 122..:caun:ing for Mortgage $ani‘ Rights, requires tha:
capitalized rights to service mortgage loans be assessed for impairment by
individual risk stratum by comparing each stratum's carrying amount with 1ts
fair value. Impairment, if any, would be recognized in earnings.




Item B. riu-uain:aﬂ‘l.h-u:- and lupplu.-n:-:r'nlal.‘l'

To the Board of Directors
General Electric Capital Services, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of General Elecrric
Capital Services, Inc. and consolidated affiliates as listed in Item 14. In
connection with our audits of the consclidated financial statements, we also

have audited the financial statement schedules as listed in Item 14. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules are the
responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedules based on our audits.

we conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
srandards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonaple assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
marerial misstatement, An audit includes examining., on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
a.soc includes as=essing the accounting principles used and signiflicant
estimazes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Ir our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
presert fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of General
Electric Capital Services, Inc. and consclidated affiliates at December 31.
1995 armd 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 19985 in
conform:ty with generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedules, when considered in relucicia to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly. in
al. materia. respects, the information set forth therein.

s FPMC Peat Marwick LL

riorc, Connecticut
February 9, 1996
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Statement of Current and Retainsd Earnings

For the years ended Decacber 1. 19958 1994 1993

[in miliions) PR sesssas 2 assses=

Time sales. loan, investment and other income (Note 113)..... $1),00¢ $ 9,709 £ 7.9%7
Financing leases (HOT® 13)... i ismurrnnrnssnananssnns 3.176 2.5)% 2.31%
Operating lease rentals (Hot® 6).......c0cusieinvinnenananans &, 080 3. 002 3.287
Premium and commission income of insurance a!!..uuo
BHOER L0 i i i aasivsbe rocddrinssssdssssnsessss el €.232 J.825 1 _ge~
Total SAINed INCOME®. ... . civnvnvenss R TR 26,492 1987 paiiy | *
EXFPEROES
intereat (Note 9 )..... T P R P N 6,661 4,585 1.5)8
Operating and administracive (Note I4)1.....00000ciinanannnans 7,756 6.200 5, 64s
Insurance losses and policyholder and
ArnLITY DODBEILE [MOTE 10 ucusicusonrsionesnerssinesessssss 5.205 3.%0° b Ta
Provision for iosses on {inanc: np receivabies (Note 5)....... 3.adT RT} WA
Jepreciation and arortization of buildings and lqmmm
anc equipmen: on operating leases (Notes & & TV... . . 2,01} L.6ED v 59
Minority interest in net earnings of
consciidaced affilAmEel. . .. ittt s . 140 b1 ] H T
TOLA. SNDENEEE T b A e R B T PR 2c. 972 16.926 15.067
Earnings from continuing cperations before income tases...... 3,520 2.94% 1.209
Provision for income tames (NOTe 150 . .......iviiviisnsiannan 11.105% 1 ITY 1642
Earrings ‘,ﬂ_ CONLtinJ.ng operations. v A 2.41 4. 08" 1,567
Larrnings CES" I1rof disconi;nued nptrltlunl 1ﬂot' 24 ........ - (3,.09) 440
HET EARNINGS a s P e . P APRr 1T SR L gt d.415 BSi .. B0"
riaenads pa.c INote L2, ' FEsa e e R ke i3 heat 19141 reiu
Hota.net €ar=.mgs a1 January - e ; 0.194 §.212 T .05
RETAINED EARNINGE AT DECEMBER 11 . £ 9.5:8 3 E,Li%4 S Bois
FFEeEEs LR L N o wE
ey % cnEt..gated Financ.a. Steazementy.
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GENERAL mmn‘.rm:. SERVICES, INC. AND CC‘ITID AFTILIATES

Statement of Financial Positiom

At December 11 1998 1994
(i millions) e -
ASSETS
Caph and eQuiVAlEnTE. . cicavrcinsnrneasasaninns R R e S L TR - £ 1.949 5 L.218
Investment SOCUTITiI®S (NDE® J).....ovvrnsmarrssmssssacasnscsnacsnnns . 41,062 Jo.a72
Financing receivables (Note 4):
Time sales and loans. net of deferred income.............. P £9.591 50.021
inveptment 1n financing leases. net of deferred iNCOME.......s0:0- 36,200 2E.39F
95,791 TE. 4198
Aliowance for losses on financing receivables (Note 5)............ 12.519) 12.062
F:nancing receivabies--nel......ccossrsscrarsnrsn PP . I—— 93,272 TE€.13%7
Other recelvVaADl®S~=NOL. ... covnerrivonnanacsnnsans AR Y IR 12.8%7 6.012
Equipment ofi operating leases (at cn-n. less sccumulated
arcrz:zation of $4,670 and 54.02% (Note 6)....ccvuvnvas A 13.79) b 117
Bui..idings and equipment (at cost]. less lcn:h-lttd d:lpucuuun
of! 1964 and 5794 (Hete Tl......... “awaa A o i e e e L. 852 083
Crrer anpets THOL® Bl. . .. cucessucsrracsprnsssssarsssanns I P 21,101 16. 568
Total ameetE. . ... ... aaaans A A TR R R A N e $185.729 $144.967
EEEREEES SEREEaRE

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Shori-t@rr DOTrOw.nds INote 9)....... T N W i e % $ 62,808 s 57.087
LOng-tesr DOTTOWINGE [NOE® Pl v icunmmrorsreriorsssscsssssnsnrnnsensns 48,790 34.112
Totn. DOFTOWLAGE -« - R T W B e R 1..5%8 91.39%
ACTDLNTT PaVADLIE. .. . . e s A R T e e FR 5.9%2 1. mm
Ingurance ..abD..:iier reserves and annuity barnefits Ilot. IDI ........ 19,699 29,418
A S SR ) Tl i ) | R I e I Ty P . e, 6,312 4 471
leierres CO™E TaMes IH&:# L T N i e mimen w  mir el BB . 6,872 v. 937
‘M. @D LiEE Y Y B WA R G N R o Ay 170,432 134,122
v, —terest i eg-ity of conacl.dated aff:liates (Note ll1....... a.5d2 s A8t
- praterres Rtoce, £.0.00. par value (BD. 000 snares
e prarer .ssuec ans held pricas..y by
u att, L LAEE &' wrcerper 1, 198% and Lecemper 1. 1868g H :
N b 000 par va.ue .0l shares aJsthorized and
Atas cap:tac TR A AP calmwaadls =314 =.0b4
B, A i 0 2,558 LS
T +08ERE] OF LOVeRITES: BeCUrLLies L2 L 1
. tranc.Ation adiusimenis i : [E1.1 Ty
Trd. eQL.ty tNote 121 . . s 2.7 9, 180
Total liabllities and sguity ) S1MS, 729 Lle4 9&T
GERERAEN EA@EE AN

er Lo Consw.idated Financi.s. S5tatements
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GENERAL lI-IE!. CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. AND c‘mm AFFILIATES

Statemant of Cash Flows

For the years endecd December 31
iin millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET QBFRLNGE s csrsssramssasrarsmamrssnnwnsns e ———

Adjuscments for discontinued opcrntxnns ......................

Adiustments to reconcile net earninge to cash pr901d-d from
operating activities:

Provapion for losses on financing receivables......... e s
Increasé A0 insurance liabllities. reserves and crnu:ty
g 3 A S S AL A
.ncrtalc in deferred income CAXES....:vicisrsvasnnnns
Depreciation and amorcization of buildings and -qulpmﬂnt
and eguipment on operating leases........... Wasem g an s
increase (decrease) in accounts payable... .......... B
DERBF==N8% . - s vs st assssssasapemras s s s e i s s @ sdinsiondeess s e
Cast: frof OPETAtING BCEIVIEL@B...ccivusareroraanamunnis Swh

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net .ncrease in financing receivables (Note 19) . .....iinvinuin
Bulod:ir and equipae/.i and equipment on operating leases
- - 4 T R I T e TR T P S S S
cr O BPOBE T LR R e e s s n e ne s wwe wd EEE P e
Payrenza ‘oz pr:nc:pn: busin ¢ purchased. net of cash
o TR Y o DR R R Gt A R e T S L i C PP A T S T T B A T p—

CaBl. “Ned 07 LAVEBting CLiVIEI@E.. i e vaas srssEEsEE AN T AR A

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
het CRAnge .7 DOTTOWings (maturii.es %0 days or less). -
lea., .fif.02 cdeb: (maturities longer than %0 cays) (Note 19)...

Wopa ety arc oiner reductions (maturities longer than 90

:-J: n-:.rg ‘c:-v ties 1Kot r.iﬂl
fro= TLRAnELIRG ACTIVIILIEE
A%’ .sen f0f discontinued operazions (Note 191............
INCREASE (DECREASE| IN CASH AMD EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR.
CABH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR i
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT END OF TEAR : aanlatealdaivedlas

e fiLten T “onsGlidated Financia. Statemsnts
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t11.309)

fd,616)
1.504

15.400)
3,910

[ ——

(23,737

14,5101
36,778

117, 045
(.09
259

§ !?t

L4,525)

15,7491
2,420

12.031)
176

|1l 7081

sssssss

12 2611
27.473
+1.699)
18041
a2

- :719:
12000

P p—

1302
52
B 1,218

1993

-

12401

t4. 164

13,.13%)
. 084

(2.090)
16.793)

(2RT)
. 807

£ 1.520
TEAREES




GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL EERVICES, INC. AND CEIHD&IanIJ'I'rILIIS!I
Notes tO Consolidated rinancial Statements
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

consclidation--GE Capital Services (the *Corporation®] owns all of the commen
stock of General Electric Capital Corporation ("GE capital®) and GE Global
T1nsurance Holding Corporation ("GE Global Insurance”). The consolidated
¢:nancial statements represent the adding together of GE Capital Services and
al. majority-owned and controlled affiliates (~consolidated affiliates”),
-ncluding GE Capital and GE Global Insurance.

Al: significant rransactions among the Corporation and consolidated
affiliates have been eliminated. other affiliates, generally companies in
Wwhich the Corporation owns 20 to 50 percent of the voting rights {*non-
consolidated affiliates”), are jncluded in other assets and valued at the
appropriate share of equity plus loans and advances, Certain prior period data
nave beer reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

The prepa ation of financial statements in conformity with generally
acceprec Aaccoun-ing principles requires management LO make estimates and
assumptions that affect reporced amounts and related disclosures. Actual
results could differ ¢rom those estimates.

Cash !quiv-lnntl--Certlficate: and other time deposits are treated as
casr egquivalents

Methods of Recording Earned Income--lncome on all loans is recognized on

~he Lnseres: mernod. Accrual of interest income is suspended at the earlier of
rme Time at WhiCh collection of an account becomes doubtful or the account
pecomer Y0 days de!l inguent. interest income oOn impaired loans ig re-ognized

cscr 18 collected or on & Cost recovery basis as conditions warrant.

r.o-aro.Lng Lease lncome .5 recorded on the interest me....u 8O as to
e o .eve. yield on éunds not yet recovered, Estimated unguaranteed
va.ues of leased assels are based primarily on periodic independent
3 15 of tne values of leased assets remaining at expiration of the lease
T erms Operating lease income iS5 recognized on a straight-line basis over the
-erme of zne underlying leases.

origination, commiiment and other nonrefundable fees related to fundings

are deterrec and recorded in earned income on cthe interest method. Commitment
‘e -c.aed To loans not expected to be funded and line-of-credit fees are
de . ans recorded in earned income on a straight-line basis over the period

+ne tees relate. syndication fees are recorded in earned income at
sne related services are per formed unless significant contingencies

W ort
= e

ex.il

Premiume NN LNSUTance contracts are reported as earned income OVer the
rerms of the related reinsurance Lreaties Or insurance policies. In general.
earned premiums are calculated on & pro-rata basis o©or are determined based on
reports received from reinsureds. Premium adjustments under rectrospectively
rared assumed reinsuran.e contLracts are recorded based on estimated losses and
loss expenses, including both case and incurrad-but-not-repor:ed reserves.
prem:ums received under annuity contracts that do not nave significant
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mortality or morb.:y risk are not reported :"wonuos but as annuity
benefits - a liabilicry - and are adjusted according to the terms of the
respective policies.

Allowance for Losses on Financing Receivables and Investments--CI Capital
maintains an allowance for losses on financing receivables at an amount tha: it
believes is sufficient to provide adequate protection against future losses in
the portfolio. For small-balance receivables, the allowance for losses is
determined principally on the basis of actual experience during the preceding
three years. Further allowances are also provided to reflect managemen:'s
judgment of additional loss potential. For other financing receivables,
principally the larger loans and leases, the allowance for losses is determined
primarily on the basis of management's judgment of net loss potential,
including specific allowances for known troubled accounts.

All accounts or portions ther=of deemed to be uncollectible or to require
an excessive collection cost are written off te the allowance for losses.
Generally, small-balance accounts are progressively written down (from 10% when
more than three months delinguent to 100% when nine to ctwelve months
delinguent) to record the balances at estimated realizable value. However, :f
t any time during that period an account is judged to be uncollectible, such
as in the case of a bankruptcy, the uncollectiblie balance is written off
Large-balance accounts are reviewed at least gquarterly, and those accounts wit
ampunts that are judged to be uncollectible are written down to estimated
realizable value.

h

Wher collateral is repossessed in satisfaction of a loan, the receivable
ie written down against the allowance for losses to estimated fair value less
~osts to sell, transferred to other assets and subseguently carried at the
.ower of cos:t or estimated fair value less costs to sell, This accounting
mezhod has been employed principally for specialized financing transactions.

Investment Securities--The Corporation has designated its investments in
gept securities and marketable equity securities as available-{or-sale. Those
secur.zies are reported at fair wvalue, with net unrealiied gains and losses
Lno.uges in equity, nerl of applicable taxes. Unrealized losses Lhat are other

Tndrn terporary are recognized in earnings.

Equipment on Operating Leases--Egquipment is amortized, principally on a
stra.ght-line basis, to escimated nev salvage value over the lease term or the
estimazed economic life of the egquipment.

Buildings and Equipment--Depreciation is recorded on either a
sum-cf-tne-years digits tormula or a straight-line basis over the lives of the

Goodwill--Goodwill is amorcized over its estimated period of benefit on a

straignt-line basis. No amort.zation period exceeds 310 years. Goodwill in
excess of associated expected operating cash flows is considered to be impaired
anc 15 written down to fair value.

Deferrsd Insurance Acquisition Coste--For the property and ca.ualty
businesses, deferred insurance acguisition costs are amortized pro-rata over
the contract periods in which the related premiums are earned. For the life
insurance businesses, these costs are amortized over the premium-paying periods

the contracts in proportion either to anticipated premium incomes or LC Qross
rofit, as appropriate. For certain annuity contracts, 8Such CcoOBLs are




amortized on the hu.af anticipated gross pra!.ﬂ:. For other lines of
business, acquisition costs are amortized over the life of the related
insurance contracts, Deferred insurance acquisition costs are reviewed for
recoverability; anticipated investment income is considered in rmaking
recoverability evaluations.

Insurance Liabilities and Reserves--The estimated liability for insurance
losses ancd loss expenses consists of both case and incurred-but-not-reported
reserves. Where experience is not sufficient to determine reserves, industry
averages are used. Estimated amounts of salvage and subrogation recoverable on
paid and unpaid losses are deducted from outstanding losses.

The liability for future policyholder benefits of the life insurance
affiliates has been computed mainly by a net-level-premium method based con
assumptions for investment yields, mortality and terminations that were
appropriate at date of purchase or at the time the policies wer: developed,
including provisions for adverse deviations.

Intarest Rate and Currency Risk Management--As a matter of policy. the
Corporation does not engage in derivatives trading, market-making eor other
speculative activities. Any instrument designated but inefrective as a hedge
is marked to market and recognized in operations immediately. The Corporation
uses swaps primarily to optimize funding costs. To a lesser degree, and in
combination with options and limit contracts., the Ceorporation uses swaps to
stabilize cash flows from mortgage-related assets.

Interest rate and currency sSwaps that modify borrowings or designated
assets, including swaps associated with forecasted commercial paper renewals,
re accounted for on an accrual basis. The Corporation reguires all other
swaps, as well as options and forwards, to be designated and accounted for as
nedges of specific assets, liabilities or committed transactions: resulting
payments and receipts are recognized contemporaneously with effects of hedged
Lransacrions. A payment or receipt arising from early te:smination of an
effective hedge is accounted for as an adjustment to the basis of the hedged
Lransaction.

NOTE 2. DISBCONTINUED OFERATIONS

.. Novemper 1994, the Corporation elected to terminate the operations of
¥.iddez, Peabody Group, Inc. (*Kidder, Feabody"), ite securities broker-dealer,
Dy initiating an orderly ligquidation of its assets and liabilities. As part of
tne J:guidation plan, the Corporation received securities of Paine Webber Group
‘nc. values at S$657 million in exchange for certain broker-dealer assets and

pu"a i0ns. Summary operating results of the discontinued operations are as
SOwWE .
tin millionsy 1994 1993
REeVENUEeS. . v vvesss PP E S Tl . ThL 17 .| 54,861
Tarnings (loss) before income taxes.......ccii anunanss (551) 43.
Income tax benefit (provision).......... 230 {199)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations....... A (3211 240
irovigion for loss, net of income tax benefit of 5266 {B68) -
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations........... $(1,189) 5240
EEEEADE SEEEERED
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The 1994 prc.iun of SB68B million after t.-. shown in the summary

above, related to exit costs associated with liquidation of Kidder, Peabody.
This liquidation was substantially complete as of December 311, 1965,
NOTE 3. INVESTHMENT SECURITIES
A summary of investment securities follows:
tIn millionsi Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized fair
December 31, 1995 cost gains losses valus
Corporate and other......... §12,312 5 463 £ (63) §12.713
tate and municipal......... 9,460 570 {11} 10,019
Mortgage-backed. .. .....c ... 5.991 255 {65) 6,181
Hom=1 8 i vt i a s e s sie 6,887 213 {37) 7,063
GO, inTie s e r e 2,843 412 {59) 3,196
u government and federal
AGEAACY s - wnr w b8 wis b e 1,817 77 (3 1.891
£39,311 $ 1,990 5 (238) 541,063
EEEEEEE EFaEESE EEEEEES ANEEEEw
December 31, 1994
‘orporate and other........ 510,883 H 4 $ (763) 510,124
rate and municipal........ 9,193 146 (382) 6,947
Mor:gape-backed. .......... 4,927 a2 (2201 4,789
113 e o PRI Ry R A 3,892 20 (76) 3,836
By S e TR e R 2,147 201 (180) 2.,16E
.2 government and federal
T T T o, 1,185 - (177) 1,008
§32,227 s 453 S(1,808) £30,872
EEErEED ESEEsas ESEEEREE AEEEEEES
nntrastual maturities of deb:t securities at December 31, 1995, other
mortosage-backed securities, are shown below.
Estimated
Amortized fair
ooomI sl Ions cost valus
L TR 5 2,359 5 2,386
B L Rt 1 1 o 4 9,753 9.982
4 | 1 A 6,821 7.129
U ANG LATET ... ernaanara 11,544 12,189
. expecLed that actual maturities will differ from contractual
raturities because Dorrowers have the right to call or prepay certain

cpligations, sometimes without call
saies of investment securities in
$5.821 million and 36,112 millien,
- orn, 5281 million and $173 million,

-
- o

1995,

W r

3l

or prepayment penalties.
1994 and 1993 were 511,017 million,
respectively; gross realized gains were 5503
respectively; and gross realized losses
57 million, §112 million and $34 million, respectively.

Proceeds

f.om



NOTE 4. FINANCING Il!lltll&ll

Financing receivables at December 11,

1995 and 1994 are shown below.

{ln millions) 1995 1994
Time sales and loans:
Consumer services.............. AT A 533,430 £25,906
Specialized financing............... TR L e e 18,230 17.988
Mid-market financing........ L e e 8,795 5,916
EQUipment MANAGEMENT .« s s svecnseasnnossnnns S 1,371 1,516
Specialty iNnSUraANCE......vevsress=ss e e el lg9 -
62,015 51,326
Deferred income. ..........s T | = P ——— %, " (2,424) {1,305)
Time sales and loans--net of deferred income......... 59,591 50,021
Investment in financing leases:
Direct financing leases.......-c:icuevavennsninasas 33,291 25,916
Leveraged leRB@B. . iiee s iss i iliaeesiasiaieseaaad 2,909 2,482
Investment in financing leases................ 36,200 28,398
95,791 78,419
Less allowance for losBes [NOte 5)......cvivavnssasna (2,519 12,062)
£93,272 £76,357

T:me sales and
cime sales,

loans represent

transactions in a wvariety
revolving charge and credit arrangemente.

of forms,
mortgages,

instaz loans, intermediate-term loans and revolving loan. secured Dy
tusines: assets. The portfolio includes time sales and loans carried at the
prirmcipa. amount on which finance charges are billed periodi-ally, and time
ca.er anc lopane carried at gross book value, which includes finance charges.
At vear-end 1995 and 1994, specialized financing and consumer services loans
inc.uded $13.405 million and S$13,282 million, respectively, for commercial real
e51ate LOans. Note 6 conzains information on commercial airline loans and

.eare:

At December 31, 1995,

,543 million in 1996,

contractual maturities for time sales and loans
£11.933 million in 1997,

56.63% million in 1998,

L 05D mLiiion in 1999, $4,424 million in 2000 and $9.42B million thereaftar,
aggregaz:ng 562.015 million. Experience of the Corporation has shown that a
supstaniia. portion of receivables will be paid prior to contractual maturity.
Accordingly. the contractual maturities of time sales and loans are not to be
regarded as torecasts of future cash collections.

‘rvestment in financing leases consists of direct financing and leveraged

i€ases ol aircrafy, railroad rolling BLOCK,

automobi les

and other

transportation equipment, data processing equipment, medical equipment, as well

as other manufacturing,
fac:lities.

power generation.

mining and commercial equipment and

As the sole owner of assers under Airect financing leases and as the

equity participant in leveraged leases, the Corporation is taxed on total lease
payments received and is entitled to tax deductions based on the cost of leased
assets and tax deductions f.r interest paid to cthird-party participante. The

iz




Corporation is al‘mrully entitled to any r-li.l value of leased assers
and to any investment tax credit on leased equipment.

Investments in direct financing and leveraged leases represent unpaid
rentals and estimated unguaranteed residual values of leased eguipment, les:s
related deferred income. Because the Corporation has no general “oligation for
principal and interest on notes and other instruments represencing third-party
participation related to leveraged leases, such notes and other instruments
have not been included in liabilities but have been offser against the related
rentals receivable. The Corporation's share of rentals receivable on leveraged
leases is subordinate to the share of the other participants who also have
security interests in the leased equipment.

The Corporation's net investment in f{inancing leases at December 31, 1995
and 1994, is shown below.

Direct Total
financing leasas Leveraged leases fioancing leasas
Iin millizonsl 1998 1954 1995 1994 1995 1954
Tota, WinLmMUr lease payments receivable.. 537.434 530,338 S$12.62% $%.630 $50.05% S53%. 9&F
LSS Principa. and INieres: on
third-party nosirecourss Oebs .. . ian i - - 19.32%) 17,1031 232" {(7.103)
Ne: rentals receivable........ . 17.434 10.338 1,296 2.5217 40.730 L 1
Estar 110 whguaranteed residua. value
c! .oasec ABBELE..... A T $.630 1.767 1.138 1,322 5. 768 . B89
Lons deferred INCOME. ccocoivsssaannnnesis (E.773)  (8.18%) (1.%25%) (L1.167) 110.298) 1%, 1%6)
investment ir {inancing leases........... 31,291 2%.916 2,909 2.482 1¢.200 28,398
~E8Y
h.lowance for loEB@B........couu... 166%) 14711 76} 19%) 1745) 15700
Deferred Caxes ATiS!DG from
f:nanc.ng leaser mon iy e . 12.9%%) i2.4701 (2. 7TRT) 12.605) 15.746) 15.07%)
et snvessirent in finsncing leapem......-. £29,663 22.97% 8 1] $1222)y  $29.70% §22.7%)
BEEEREN aRwEvEN SRERERE LAY L L] LEL L L Etaaves

At December 1311, 1895, contractual maturicties for finance lease rentals
receivanle were S8,780 million in 1996, 510.418 million in 1997, S$6,837 million
» te8E £3,631 million in 1999, 52,126 million in 2000 and SB,.938 million

nereatter aggregating 540,730 million. As with time sales and loans,
experience has shown that a portion of receivables will be paid prior to
contractual maturity and these amounts should not be regarded as forecasts of

y 'S
LATuUre cash L1lOWE.

.n connection with the sales of f{inancing receivables with recourse, GE
Cap.ta. received proceeds of 52,139 million in 1995, $1.239 million in 1994 and

S..-0% misiion in 1993, GE Capital’'s exposure under such recourse provisions
tt .ncluded in *credit and liquidity support - securicizacions* in note 20.

Nonearning consumer receivables, primarily private-label credit c‘'rd
receivables, amounted to 5671 million and 5422 million at December 31, 1995 and
1994, respectively. A majority of these receivables were subject to various
.oss-sharing arrangements that provide {full or partial recourse to the
erig:nating private-label entity. Nonearning and reduced earning receivables
other than consumer receivables were £464 million and 5346 million at year-ends
1995 and 1994, respectively.

O January 1, 1995, the Corporation adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 114. Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
a4 Loan. and the related SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
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a Loan--Income Rmﬂ.‘n and Disclosures. These Stl.u\tl do not apply to.

among other things, leases or large groups of smaller-balance, homogenecus
loans, and therefore are principally relevant to commercial loans. There was
no effect of adopting the Statements on 1995 results of operations or financial
position because the allowance for losses established under the previous
accounting policy continued to be appropriate following the accounting change.
The Statements require disclosures of impaired loans--loans for which it is
probable that the lender will be unable to collect all amounts due according te
original contractual terms of the loan agreement, based on current information
and events. At December 31, 1995, loans that required disclosure as impaired
amounted to 5867 million, principally commercial real estate loans. For $647
million of such loans, the required allowance for losses was $285 million. The
remaining 5220 million of loans represents the recorded investment in loans
that are fully recoverable, but only because the recorded investment had been
reduced through charge-offs or deferral of income recognition. These loans
must be disclosed under the Statements® technical definition of “impaired-”
because the Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
original contractual terms of the loan agreement. Under the Statements. such
loans do not require an allowance for losses. The average investment 1in
impaired loans requiring disclosure under the Statements was $51.037 millien
during 1995, with revenue of 549 million recognized, principally on the cash

basis.
NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES ON FINANCING RECEIVARLES

The al.wance for losses on financing receivables represented :=.63% of total
financing receivables at year-end 1995 and 1994. The table below shows the
ar=ivisy in the allowance for losses on financing receivables during each of
thé past three years.

(I millions) 1995 1994 1593
Ba.ance at January I........-.. a e §2,062 §1.730 51,607
Prov.si:ons charged to operations......... 1,117 872 987
le® tranpfers related to companies
ATHuL e G B L e e S R e G 217 199 126
Amounts writtern Off-<nBt e siie s {877 {740} (9904
Ba.ance ar December Il....... P R £2.519 2,062 £1.730
EETESET (3 F F 3 F EEEESE
NOTE 6. EQUIPHMENT ON OPERATING LEASES
Eq.ipmen: or. operating leases by type of equipment and accumulated amortization
a: December 11, 199% and 1994, are shown below.
tIr milllons) 1995 19954
rigina. Cost
Arrcrals . e e €5,682 54,601
B I - - 4,948 4,542
Marine shipping containers.......ccoueee 3,253 3,333
Ka:lroad rolling stock. ... ...ccvcivaivnnnnn 1,811 1.605
B T . coinsin i m om0 TR L T R R 2,769 2,807
18,463 16, 8BB
ACcumulated amortization..... e T e SRR (4,670} (4,029)
£13,793 $12,859
EEESREES EEEEEE -
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Amortization .aquipnnnr. on operating luln.s $1,702 million, $1,435
million and 51,395 million in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Noncancelable
future rentals due from customers for equipment on operating leases at year-end
1995 totaled 58,412 million and are due as follows: $2,501 million in 1996,
£1,657 million in 1997, 51,119 million in 1998, S$732 millien 4in 1999, 5450
million in 2000, and 51,953 million thereafrer,

The Corporation acts as a lender and lessor to the commercial airline
industry. At December 31, 1995 and 1994, the balance of such loans, leases and
equipment leased to others was §8,337 million and $7.571 million, respectively.
In addition. the Corporation had issued financial guarantees and funding
commitments of S409 million at December 31, 1995 (5506 million at year-end
1994) and had conditional commitments to purchase aircraft at a cost of 5141
million (581 million at year-end 1994). Included in the C(orporation’'s
equipment leased to others at year-end 1995 was $101 million of commercial
aircraf: off-lease (5226 million at the end of 1994).

NOTE 7. BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and equipment include office buildings, satellite communications
egu.pment, data processing equipment, vehicles, furniture and office eguipment.
Depreciation expense was 5311 million for 1995, 5227 million for 1994 and 5197
mi.lion for 1993,

NOTE 8. OTHER ASSETS

Ocher assets at December 31, 1995 and 1994, are shown in the table below.

{In milligns) 1995 1554
Assets acquired for resale.......cccvunuan i T O S 3,998 s 3,867
Goodwill oo enimeeas o T AT R T R R 3,984 2,513
investments .1 and advances to nonconsolidated
A LR BE o o e e R e REE e e e TR T 31,566 2,098
Misce.laneous INVeSCMeNLE. ... .cveiamcassasssaaass 2,072 1,652
Rea. ESTALE VENLUTES . & u i e inenensiodesasassesises 1,564 1.400
MorTgage SerVICING TIgRLE o i idiiee s S i e wanii i.688 £.351
ODelerred LNSUranCeE ACQUISITION COBLE.....iciruosnes 1,336 1,290
Orher rtangtbles i ol se wiiatin e el e p a e w e 1,027 1,173
O B s S i e e e e e e e T R e e e ate 1,B68 1,224
$21,103 516,568
EzmEsmes asos=m=z=o
Goodwil., mortgage servicing rights and other intangibles are shown net

of accumulated amortization of 51,494 million at December 31, 1995 and 59BB

m:llion at December 31, 1994.
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Toral short-term borrowings at December 31, 1995 and 1994 consisted of tne
following:

1895 1954
Average Average

(Dollars in millions) Amount rate Amount rate
Commercial paper - U.S........... 537,432 5.82% 541,759 S.88%
Commercial paper - Nen-U.S5....... 3,796 6.33 1,938 6.27
Current portion of long-term
debt....0s R R AT 15,719 9,695
O TR i a oo R BE 7 W o R 5,861 3,695

562,808 £57,087

EsZEEZES EEEEEEE

Toral long-term borrowings at December 31, 1995 and 1994, were as
follows:

Weighted
average :
interest
iDo.lars in millions) rate (&) Maturities 1995 1994
Senior notes..... SR (e Y 6.56% 1997-2055 547,754 $33,615
subordinated notes (bl....... 7.88 2006-2035 996 697
544,790 $34,312
BE.EEEESE EESEzaw
tal Includes the effects of associated interest rate »- currency Swaps.

b Guaranteed by GE Company.

interest rate and currency swaps are employed to achieve the lowest cost
¢! fundes for a particular funding strategy. The Corporation enters into
.nterest rate swaps and currency swaps (including non-U.S5. currency and cross-
currency interest rate swaps) to meodify interest rates and/or currencies of
spec:fic debt instruments. For example, to fund U.S. operations, OE Capital
may 1ssue fixed-rate debt denominated in a currency other than the U.5. dollar
and s:multaneously enter into a currency swap (o create synthetic fixed-rate

.5. dollar debr with a lower yield than could be achieved directly. Such
interesr rate and currency swaps have been designated as modifying interest
rates. currencies or both. The Corporation does not engage in derivatives

rrad:ng. market-making or other speculative activities.

The Corporation used a portion of this interest rate swap portfolio to
convert interest rate exposure on short-term and floating rate long-term
porrowings te interest rates that are fixed over the terms of the relaced
SWADS ! interest rate basis swaps also are employed to manage short-term
financing facters--for example, toc convert commercial paper-based interest
costs "o prime rate-based costs. At December 31, 1995 and 1994, such swaps
were outstanding for principal amounts equivalent to 511,451 million and 59,301
mitlion with maturities from 1996 te 2029 and weighted average interest rates
of 6.86% and 6.80%, respectively.
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At Decmher. 1995, long-term borrowing .r.unr.ien. including the
current portion of long-term debt, were 515,719 million in 1996, §14,012
million in 1997, $11,517 million in 1998, 55,480 million in 1999, and S54.,49%4&
million in 2000. Additional information about borrowings, as well as
associated swaps, is provided in note 20.

At December 31, 1995, GE Capital had committed lines of credic
aggregating 520.4 billion with 128 banks, including $9%9.5 billion of revolving
credit agreements pursuant to which GE Capital has the right to borrow funds
for periods exceeding one year. A total of $2.5 billion and $1.5 billion of
these lines were also available for use by GE Capital Services and GE Company,
respectively. In addition, at December 11, 1995, approximately 5108 million of
committed lines of credit were directly available to a non-U.5. affiliate of GE
Capital. Also, at December 31, 1995, substantially all of the approximately
$3.1 billion of GE Company‘'t credit lines were available for use by GE Capital
and GE Capital Services. During 1995, GE Capital, GE Capital Services and GE
Company did not borrow under any of these credit lines. The Corporation
compensates banks for credit facilities in the form of fees which were
insignificant in each of the past three years.

NOTE 10. INSURANCE LIABILITIES, RESERVES AND ANNUITY BENEFITS

insurance .iabilities, reserves and annuity benefits comprises policyholders®
venef:ts, unearned premiums and provisions for policy losses and benefics
relating Lo insurance and annuity businesses. The related balances at December
31, 1995 and 1994. follow:

(I millians) 1995 1994
Annuity benefits....... N O, $11,994 £.3.186
Other policyholder benefits.......... i 11,781 6.569
Property ant CASUAITY Ir@BeIVEB....:-s:.0:oss e 11,386 6,186
Financia. and mortgage QUATanty IreServes.......... 731 725
Unparfies DremilmE. :...e.... 3,807 2,712
£39,699 529.438
EESERES sEaEzSa

T .iap;lity tor future policy benefits of the life insurance
AL iares included in other policyholder benefits above. has been computed
suing average yields of 2.0% to 9.0% in 1995 and 4.0% to 9.1% in 1994.
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Activity in the llliw for unpaid claims and c.u adjustment expenses
is summarized as follows for the past three years.

(In millions) 1985 1994 1993
Balance at January 1 - Qross.......... s 7.022 56,405 55,484
Less reinsurance recoverables......... {1,084) (1,1421 {1.191)
Balance at January 1 - net............ 5,948 5,263 4,293
Claims and expenses incurred
CUTTFeNT YeAr .. ...:.ceansrassnnnanas 3,268 2,016 2,051
Prlor Y@ars........oc0n00cucansusasss 492 558 359
Claims and expenses paid
CUrrent YeaAr.......vssesssssansasns 1706) (543) (378)
Prior years.......... o R e (1,908) (1,432} (1.048)
Claim reserves related to acquired
COMPIIILEE (v 500 F0 8 W 0L 50w 3,696 49 -
BT e s w a bk ) o T T T 19 17 114)
Balance at December 3! - net.......... 10,809 5.948 5,263
Add reinsurance recoverables.......... 1,853 1,084 1,142
Balance at December 31 - gross........ S 12,662 £7.032 56,405
EEECDgseaETE FEEEEEE EEEETSEEN

Financial guarantees of insurance affiliates as of December 31, 1995 and
1994, are summarized below.

IIn miliionsl 1995 1994
Guarantees, principally on municipal
bonus and structured finance issBues..... 5119,406 §106,726
Marsgage 1nsurance risk in force......... 32,599 31,463
rediy Lile insurance risk in force...... 13,670 13.7..
“ner : M T R R R R 110 147
SESE YRIABUNARCRLG T i s e e e e a e W 121,749) (19,426)
5144,036 $132,62)
aAaEanaEID L2 1 2 3 F 3 3 )

Tne Corporaticn's Specialty Insurance businesses are involved
s.gn.f:cant.y in the reinsurance business, ceding reinsurance on both a pro-
ratéa anc an excess basis. Winen the Corporation cedes business to third
parties 18 not relieved of itg primary obligation (o policyholders and
reinsureds. Consequently. the Corporation establishes allowances for amounts
deemec unco.lectible due tc the failure of reinsurers to honor their
gbLigations The Corporation monitors both the financial condition of
individual reinsurers and risk concentrations arising from similar geographic
regiont activities and economic characteristics of reinsurers. The maximum

ok

amoun’® individual life insurance retained on any one life is 52.5 million.
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The effecrs .’.insurmce on premiums Wittﬁ‘lﬂ earned were as follows
for the past three years.

Written premiums Earned premiums
In millions) 1995 1994 1993 1985 1954 1983
DoT@et i ae vaia v aie . 52,984 $1.816 1,639 £2,604 1,787 51,480
Assumed. . .....o0... 3,978 2,696 2,540 .41 2.596 2.424
Ceded .ol (6804) (550) (223) (786) (5581 (207)
Net Premiums...... $6,158 53,962 53,956 $6,232 $3.825 $3,6497
ERmEwE & 5 & & 33 L2 8 3 F 44 EEEEaE EEEEEE R 5 2 3 3

Reinsurance recoveries recognized as a reduction of insurance losses and
policyholder and annuity benefits amounted to 5459 million, 5434 million and
£304 million for the periods ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993,

respectively.
NOTE 11. MINORITY INTEREST

Minerity interest in eguity of consolidated GE Capital Services affiliates
includes preferred stock issued by GE Capital and by a subsidiary of GE
Capital. The preferred stock pays cumulative dividends ar variable rates. The
liguidetion preference of the preferred shares at December 31, 199% and 1994,

is summarized below.

(In millions) 1985 1954
GE Caplal iy i e Wieisa e s aes s aieew duanssiaess $1,800 § B75
GE Capital subsidiary..... cvesnsevcscsvniesa 360 240

Dividend rates on the preferred stock ranged from 4.2% o 5.2% during
ror 2.3% o 4.9% during 1994 and from 2.3% to 2.8% during 1993.
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NOTE 12. EQUITY . .

Changes in equity for each of the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 19%2
are as follows:

Unresalized Forsiga
Cusulatiwve Addicional gains (lossss) currency
praferred Common paid-in Retained on investmsnt Erans-
stock  stock capital sarnings securities lations Total

(In malilone) =000z =seeeces = mmmmea- L sessmss sessmssm=s  e==sss
Balance at January 1, 1993.... § - $ 1 & 1.877 $ 7.01§ 5 16 £ 45 58 BRS
Net unrealized gains on

investment BeCurities........ - - - - 716 - TTE
Currency trans.ation

E LT = T - - - - - (£ 13
KoL SBINAIAGE : - v s mawsuinnssassas - - - 1,807 - - . 807
Dividends declared:

Common BLOCK. .ivvuncsavenans - - - (6101 - - (610)
Balance at December 31, 19%93.. - 1 1.877 B, 212 Bl2 191y 10,809
Capiia. contributions......... - - 187 - - - 187
e: inrea..ced losEes on

Jnvessiment securities. .. . - - - - i2.630 = (2.8
Corsercy Trans.ation
at JuRiments [ aa & - - - - = a5 L]
Me: eATTIINGE. .. .. ) b . - - 113 - - [ 313
hvicends dec.ared:

ciecs d.v.dend " . 10 - - {101 - - -

Comrorn BIOCK - - - 1903} - - 15903

Freferrec stocm, . . = - 13 - - il
Ba.asce at Decermber 11, 1943 10 1 2,064 B,.194 18211 (68 4,180
Cag.ta,. romilib.tlOnE = - 250 - - = 250
he «Sfea..I8C QaiNE O

JTWPLITeN. Recuriiies, e - = = - 1.810 - 1.010
- e TEET SrANL.AT AT

AC SELTenlE - . - - - 10 10

- . - 2.815 - 2. 41%

SErE grices i . . - (L. 0800 - - 13,0901
Te Ty TI@ [ A4 ol of': - - - fad = - Peld
4 Lecempe: 31, 1995 £ 0 8 D205 .58 § 98% £ %81 §1I.774
FTRREES SAEFREEN FPrERARER SEEREES LLE R RN AaEsasEw LR R

GE Capital Services' cutstanding preferred stock amounted to $510 millien
at Decemper 11, 1995, all of which was held by consclidated affiliates with the
exceprion of 510 million of such shares, which were dividended to GE Company in
1994 A.l other equity is owned entirely by GE Company. In 1995, GE Company
conzributed to the Corporation certain assets of Caribe GE Products, Inc. and
Fee For Service, which increased the Corporation’s additional paid-in capital
oy 5250 million. In 1994. GE Company contributed to the Corporation the net
assets of Corsoclidated Insurance Group, which increased the Corporation’s
add.ti:onal paid-in capital by $51B7 million.
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Changes in f.vulua of investment nmriti.‘! reflected, net of rtax,
in equity. The changes from year to year were primarily accributable to the
effects of changes in year-end market interest rates on the fair vaiue of the
securities.

At December 31, 1995 and 1994, the statutory capital and surplus of the
Corporation's insurance affiliates totaled 57,678 million and $§5,657 million,
respectively, and amounts available for the payment of dividends without the
approval of the insurance regulators totaled 5479 millien and 5413 million,
respectively.

NOTE 13. EARNED INCOME

Time sales, lean, investment and other income includes the Corporation's share
of earnings from equity investees of approximately 5116 million, $169 million
and 5106 million for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Incliuded in earned income from financing leases “or 1995, 1994 and 1993
were gaine on the sale of equipment at lease completion of 5191 millien. S180
m:llion and 5145 million, respectively.

NOTE 14. OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employees and retirees of the Corporation and its affiliates are covered under
a4 number of pension, health and life insurance plans. The principal pension
plan is the GE Company Pension Plan, a defined benefit plan, while employees of
cerza:: affiliates, including ERC, are covered under separate plans, The
Corporazion provides health and life insurance benefits to certain of its
ret:red employees, principally through GE Company's benefit program, as well as
tnrough plans sponsored by ERC and other affiliates. The annual cost to the
Corporation of providing these benefits is not material.

GE Company adopted SFAS No. 112, Employers' Accounting for Postewmployment
Eemefirs, in the second guarter of 1993. The Corporation adopted this standard
1 ~-unciion with its parent. This Statement regquires that enployers expense
-ne costs of postemployment benefits (as distinct from postretirement pension,
res.ca. and iife insurance benefits) over the working lives of their employees.
Tr.r r~nange principally affects the Corporation's accuunting for severance
LT wnich previously were expensed when the severance event occurred.
transition obligation related to the Corporation's employee:z covered
Company postemployment benefit plans is not separately determinable
= ror ne GE Company plans as a whole. The net transition obligation for
erp . ovees covered under separate plans is not material.

Fernza. expense relating to equipment the Corporation leases from others
purposes of subleasing was 5273 million in 1995, 5262 million in 1994
e million in 1993, Ocher rental expense was 5251 million in 1995, $206
Ta..-0n in 1994 and S17¢ million in 1993, principally for the rental of office
space ang data processing eguipment. Minimum future rental commitments under
noncance.able leases at December 31, 1995, are 5434 million in 1996, S384
m.o..ton in 1997, 6345 million in 1998, 5320 million in 1999, 3288 million in
2000 and S1,348 millien thereafter, The Corporation, as a lessee, has "o
mater.a. lease agreements classified as capital leases.




Amortization o.dcferz'd insurance ncquinr.. costs charged to
operations in 1995, 1994 and 1993 was 51,319 million, $945 million and $B817
million, respectively.

NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is summarized in the following table.

(In millions) 1985 1994 1993
Estimated amounts payable....... PRI OIS U, - & | | 5 447 5 221
Deferred tax expense from temporary

differences. ... G e e R R e 678 431 42E
Invesument tax credit amortized - net.......... (7) (14) (7)

51,105 5 B64 $ 642

=Eras=e Zsmenm EEassE

Estimated amounts payable includes amounts applicable to non-U.S.
jurisdictions of 5172 million, $224 million and 5138 million in 1995, 1994 and
1991, regpectively.

GE Company files a consclidated U.S. federal income tax return which
ir-ludes GE Capital Services. The provisions for estimated taxes payable
ir:lude the effect of the Corporation and its affiliates on the consolidated

o ppa
returrmn.

Except for certain earnings that GE Capital Services intends to reinvest
indefinitely, provision has been made for the escimated U.S. federal income tax
liablilities applicable to undistributed earnings of affiliates and associated
companies.

4 reconcilliation of the U.S. federal statutory rate to the actual income
tax rate follows.

1995 1954 1993
Sratdioery U.S5. federal income tax rate......... 35.0% 35.0% 15.0%
-nfrease |reauction) in rate resulting from:
Fate increase - deferred taxes............... - - s P
Amortization of goodwill...... e NN 1.1 1.0 1.2
Tayx-exempt iNCOME. .......... T (5.8) (6.9} (B.3)
Uividends received, not fully taxable........ (0.8) (0.8) 1.2}
Flee OLNBE = =M v vt vie se s s mam st tie s s s o omsissas 1.9 1.0 {2.8)
ACTUAL LNICOMB EBX TBRE@. o« oo oums s sesisssssness 31.4% 29.3% 29.1%
EEEEE= EEEEE aEmEz
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Principal cc.nlnt:s of the net deferred . liability balances a

December 31, 1995 and 1954

({In millions)

ASSeLs
Allowance for lOBSe@E......0v.cvesasrasnnas
Net unrealized losses on invesctment

BECUTItIBE . - s - aanngim s
Insurance reserves......
othar. . ... R P S S e

Toial geferred tax assets.

wiabl.itlies

w1
] bt

a. deterred tax liebilities........ . .00..

nancing leases........

Cperating leases........
Ne: unrealized gains on investment

-

BECUTLCI®E.. v ss s s s ive s dam ias s aiavewiaesssne

B! o

deferred tax liasbility

are as follows:

..................

&% B % @ & B B 8 3 B F S E B E

..................

= ® 8T EEETE R YRS EEEE
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1995

$ (852)

(497)
{B34)

(2,1B3)

1994

$ (B76)

(468)
1460)
(Big)




S WA @

Industry segment operating data and identifiable assets for continuing
operations are shown below. Corporate level expenses principally include
interes: expense related to acquisition debt and other unallocated expenses.

{In millions} 1995 1994 1993

- - - -

Earned income:

Consumey Services................ e 5 7.5B6 5 5,508 § 4,061
Specialized Financing................ 3,098 2,640 2,543
Egquipment Management............. e 6,173 5,209 4,323
Mid-Market Financing.......cososveeas 2,184 1,575 1.472
Specialty INBUFANCE. .vavrssnnvsrrneas 7,444 4,928 4,862
26,4B¢ 19,858 17,261

O DO B e e yip v raimr s, s b 6 17 15
Total earned ANCOME. ... s wassaoeensses $ 26,492 § 19,875 § 17.27¢
EEREEasES Es=sssmar EsEsEmEREE

Segment operating profic:

Consumer Services...... g & e § 1,030 $ 1,067 3 709
Specialized Financing..... R R 673 536 166
Eguipment Management.........ceeuvuen 897 624 246
Mic-Market Financing.....voiuvervncns 445 415 406
Specialty Insurance......... R 1,020 589 770
Total segment coperating profic...... P 4,065 3,251 2,497
COT PO AL, 4 v v vsnsssssmespsnansosssasn {545) {302) {2B8)

Earnings from continuing operations before
ATUTOTHE CRREE o r v e vnn o o e o o M a4 67 ST § 3,520 & 2,949 5 2,209

Es==sszZ= SEEzzmEEE rAaEESEE®R

iderz:f.able assers at December 31:

Concumer: SarVIoeE . oo valsiaiee saiis s S 73,076 $ 54,171 £ 45,771
tpecialized Flnancing..-..eeeeoen g 310,297 £8,183 27,102
Egoipment MANAOEMEBNT . . ..o v veenoansa 25,145 23,250 19,968
Mid-Marke:r EIRADCIRg . oo st 21.544 16,362 14.011
Specialty INBUTANCE. i oser et s v sanes 34,795 22,058 18,915
Corporale. st assaransas e e R T 872 943 BEH
O BESEEE . o es wiaa sammn e e # v e $185,729 5144 ,967 £126.637
SEESsEIST EEEEz=ET FEE=s==o
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NOTE 17. ﬂﬂll!ll‘llltﬂllcllb DATA (unaudited) "I'

Summarized quarterly financial data are as follows:

First guarter Second guartsr Third guarter Fourth guarter

1998 1994 1995 1954 1995 1994 1955 1994
1s millions sesse  mmsss  sesss  sesss  s=sss  ssass ssees  ceses
Earned :ncome 55,754 54.19) $6.415 54.730 $7.09% §5.097 £7,224 £5.655
Expenses’
EE T2 1o | L s PP it | 3 | 3700+ e | 1.67° 1.0m3 1.728 1,228 1.73% 1,303
Uprerating and adminiscrative...... 1.736 i.oeal P | .. 500 .93 . JBE s 206 A i
Insurance LceEses and
policyholder and annuity
BRI T B v v v iaie i oo T SR B A [ERERI N | 692 P-4 | k) B 1 1 .. CB% M M 46
Provision for losses on
financing receivables........... 7% iTo 275 251 152 186 407 266
Depreciation and amortization of
puildings and equipment and
equipment on operating leases, .. 4§52 3es 451 183 LM 26 579 AhR
M.onmEL1, sNTEFESt LN REt SATRLNDE
ot conso.:cated affi.iates........ 17 a4 26 50 29 - L1 &0
‘ror CORtinULARgG
+ belfore income Laxes. ... Bl6 (1) sie GBS L, 04F 857 LK el 40
te iRCOMe CAXEE .. ... t2671 187 (246} (18%) 1337 =424 i25%) (2461
b fro= cOntinuing
Ta%lOnE A B AR e L49 [1.H 572 495 711 [ $4-] 573 94
Earnirngs (.os2l !roe discontinued
CDOTEL iOBE . (e st naanadsiona B [F138] - 1321 - (L1 1] - 217
Net earsn.nae Ll0B8) .. ... ... ceeexes B B%9 05 310 6 572 6 483 5 TLL 8 526 % 573 & (42))
EeEEEN EEEREN AREEAN EEREAw BEEREAEn szmEes Anamnn LA L L.

NOTE 18. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS OF AFFILIATES

certai.n consolidated affiliates are restricted from remitting funds to the
Corporaz:on in the form of dividends or loans by a variety of regulations, the
rpose of wnich is to protect affected insurance policyhi.uers., depositors or

Lnvestors, At year-end 1995, ne: assets of the Corporation’'s regulated
asi...ates amounted to 514.7 billion, of which 512.5 billion was restricted,

NOTE 19. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

-Ctner-net operating activities® in the Statement of Cash Flows consists
principally of adjustments to current and noncurrent accruals of costs and
expenses, amortization of premium and discount on debt, and adjustments to

assets such as amortization of goodwill and intangibles.
Tne Statement of Cash Flows excludes certain noncash transactions that

nat no significant effect on the investing or financing activities of the
Corporation.
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Certain ;uppl:m.nl information related to tl‘u.rporatian's cash flows
is shown below.

For zhe years ended December 11 19895 1994 1993

[Zn milaione) - - -

uu.nnl.u receivables

neresse in loans TO CUBTOMEIE. . .....,.:ccononnoes . f145,154) $137.059) $130,002)
l-'.-.'m: pal collections from customers. T g vl 44,840 1.264 21,571
nvestment in equipment for fi m:mg i |u.>,... 117.182) (10,520 (T.204)
i*nnr::pl'- collections on financing leases......... B.821 B.461 6,051z
Ner change in credi: card receivables............. 13.770) (2.902) 116451
Sales of financing receivables with recourse...... 2.133% 1.23% 1.10%
SE2..30% $ 18 825 5 8. 1681
ARssEmEw TERERE ST FARAEEED
All other imvesting sctivitiaes
Purchases of securities by insurance and annuity
DUBLROEBER, - vr s rnsrans E(14,452) $ (B,66)) SIL0.488)
D.spositions and mturl ties of securities
Py insurance and ARnuity DusSinesses.............. 12,460 €.338 T.69F
Proceeds from principal business dispositions..... 57 - T
3 5 T L R AR e e AT e e ATars s by o o B BYh e (2.4961 2,501 i€.00%,
£ 1,010 H 17 £ i6,79))
EEEEEEE R EEEEaIEAR ALAaEEmES
Mewly issusd debt baving maturities looger
than ‘0 daywe
SHort=curm F95 C0 J65 BBWE ) .o e iaiiieres s aiins se 5 2.%4% s 3.214 $§ £.21%
SOng-terr [ LOonger TRAN ON® YeRT!.....:..is:.s §omn s 32.%07 19,228 10,885
ROSYeRIT BUDOFCIOBINd. . e e e Vaa 298 - -
F.ornnc: -- nonrecourse. leveraged lease debrt.. . .. L.428 ki § 1 53
5 )6, 778 $ 21.47) 5 15,25
EESEEFEN EREIseaAw EERpesEERP
Repaymants and other reductions of debt having
maturities looger than $0 days
Eriopscogrr 18, o J6Y days) P P 5116.075) $110, .60 £ 19,008
p-sgir= SR LRAT. DA YBRET .. cuiieenie e sves = (ET7B) 9300 (2061
. TAYTOATTE v= RGN eCOGrBE LW.?.UN
aEe 2Ot - [ IS - 12921 1109 [ Bl
$117. 045 5111.699) 19,526
idssanng TEEFnEEa [ 2 ITI TR T
All other financing activities
vezr fro” seses o investmen: and annuity
ConiIacls TR TR S P i s S el $ 1.754 $ 1.207 - 509
feferres silgce .ssued by CE Cap.ia. and
" dated affiliate el e ey . D45 240
el 0 ! inventmen: ant anno.iy conLtrac:s 2. 5400 la,264] (5781
4 25% 5 i8] H 6%
SaErsasen ArAREsEN EETEIEE
Caskh from iused for) discontinusd opsrations
it Iro” joseo for) GECE broxer-cea.e:
Pesal .he At T % 4l< 5 615 § (:.91C
iy Trom lLmEd I CECE proWer-dea.ef
MR LD ACT Wi e e 92 3y 1o
'} - -ged lori o~ GECS Drosér-ded.er
GANCING ACTIVITEEE. (. i cvuauenan T (1.5%06)1 12,169 2,857
- (2001 -
AsgEmEEN SEFERENS dhdmEmdn
Cunh recoversd iuld) dur. at the year for:
nLerest elare RO P <% $ 16,177 § 14,1501 § 13.28)
:’Fﬂﬁf LaAXEE R wlie b e 168 13211 (89 1 3]
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Changes in o;‘tinu assers and liabilities .net of acquisitions and
dispositions of businesses.

*payments for principal businesses purchased® in the Statement of Cash
Flows is net of cash acquired and includes debr assumed and immediately repaid
in acquisicions. In conjunction with the acquisitions, liabilities were
assumed as follows.

1995 1594 1991
Fair value cf assets acquired........... ... $23.534 g£20.297 $15,37%
Cash PBId. (ccusuisnenororanssste st inasbraens {%.9080) {.225) 2,908
LLAABIILTINE ABBUMBE. . u s e e $17.5%¢ § T.952 $ic.E°

EEEEEEE EEAEEEL EEEEEEE

NOTE 20. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note contains estimated fair values of certain financial instruments to
which the Corporation is a party. Apart from the Corporation’s own borrowings
and certain marketable securities, relatively few of these instruments are
actively traded. Thus, fair values must often be determined using one or more
models that indicate value based on estimates of guantifiable characteristics
as of a particular date. Because this undertaking is. by its nature, difficult
and higily Judgmenctal, for a limited number of instruments, alternative
valuarion techniques may have produced disclosed values different from those
that couli have bcen realized at December 31, 1995 or 1994. Moreover, the
disclosed wvalues are representative of fair values only as of the dates
indicated. Assets that, as a matter of accounting policy, are reflected in the
accompanying £financial statements at fair wvalue are not included in the
following disclosures; such assets include cash and eguivalents, investment
securicies, and other receivables.

Values are estimated as follows.

Time sales and loans. Based on quoted market prices, recent transactions
anct o duescounted future cash flows, using rates at which simi’ar loans would
nawve pee: made To similar borrowers.

Borrowings. Based on qQuotled marke: prices or market comparables. Fair values
e .nteres: rate and currency swaps on borrowings are based on quoted market
icen ang include the effectes of counterparty creditworthiness.

g

i

-

Annuity openefits. Based on expected future cash flows. discounted at
current.y offered discount rates for immediate annuity contracts or cash
surrender value for single premium deferred annuities.

Financial guarantess. Based on future cash flows, considering expected renewal
premiums, claims, refunds and servicing costs, discounted at a market rate.

All other instruments. Based on comparable transactions, market comparables,
duscounted future cash flows, quoted market prices, and/or estimates of the
cust Lo Lerminate or otherwise settle obligations to counterparties.




Information a.bc.!inm:ial instruments that ». not carried a: ‘fai:
value at December 31, 1995 and 1994, is shown below.

19y
hasets (lisbilitissl bhasats (liabilivies)
Estimated falr Eatimated fair
walus Carrylng valus
Notiosal aEOURE --sssssssaanas Motionsl  amcust sesessmananns
W inst) Migh Low amouRt ek ) Mi Low
At Dwcembe: J! iIn millions) s ss e, m-——— B — i sssssess ssssssss rrmeme -
Assers
Tise sales and loans........ ceeaes 3 lar BSTBIT O SSD LS 5B 2904 % sa S4B L29 S4% 496 $4F BiC
Integrated interest rate lulpl 4,70} . h 195 i.16} : fs "4
Furchaped options. .. . ...,... -4 a4 H ‘s 162 - :
Mosigage- reiated positicns
Hartgage purchase commitments i H. 1 1+ 49 Ha 204 4 A
Horigage Bale commitmants I 5T ) - 114 il 1,792 - - E
Memo mortgeges held for sals (b, fal N TS 1.88) 1.88) Y P 1] 1,764 Y]
Oprions. including “lfloors™. .... 18,522 & 144 H T . - -
Interest Tate BwADS. .. e 1.9%%0 - 1 31 58 . X i=%y
Ctheyr cask {inancial I.nlcn-mr.n .an e ial 1.814 1.9¢7 L. 70% Ial HY L b =, 03¢ H
Lisbilizies
borrowings and related inatruments
Borrowings iciid v ‘ ia PLZL.9WEE 0103.10% iL13.i0%) T L] L] ikw TeT s Ta
Intereat TALS® SwapA. . . 41,88} 163 i6301 21,98 = ] o
LI FONCY FWADE. . . ... . as. 342 - 1= [ T 1i. 6% &s &
Fuihased cptions, 4.751 né i3 ai 130 b B - 1
oLher. .. ats . . 51% - 8% 6% - - -
Annuity bun-!..a » ; ey (LI 9M4y il T2M0 11.72M0 ial P13, 1080 012, TEE (I, eE
insurance -- financiael ﬂuﬁtiﬂt.ll
and credit lile ie° L0 LT 1832 9330 132.42) 13,562 1137 (LA
Credit and liguidity support--
BEZUTALIZATIONE. ... 7018 58 8% 6% LW [ 33 taa) 122
Fertormanis Quarantiees -- Princ: p.l..,
setters of credit s [ELY Ul 1] TR T (R4 1 i P
Utner -- prancipally .Lqu:ua:r
£ AR T LS . 3,984 1 el 4% 3. 168 - 4 1]
“1rr 11 cme L Tmant s
LafT® for=ards and opticns G L - i3 (4] 3.172 - is 12
Lofie feaps JRG - N i 488 [FY ihi
FaLn Couthe of Dusiness .ending
[ 9% Fd | - 1601 QN 6, 68 * (5C 1500
ving credit lines
J.asd -. %80 3
principally credi:
18.71 482
" T afif.aCab.e
"f.4083 LR OLhEr CaBn fiMARCLIAl INEITUMEents
note 9.
= J0eF (NRErESt rate anad CulTency swaps

rowe L0
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Additional i.ﬂ:inn about certain tinlnci.inltrumnts in the above
cable follows.

Curreacy Zforwards and options are employed by the Corporation to manage
exposures to changes in currency exchange rates associated with commercial
purchase and sale transactions. These f{inancial instruments generally are used
to fix the local currency cost of purchased goods or services or selling prices
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. Currency
exposures that result from net investments in affiliates are managed
principally by funding assets denominated in local currency with deb:
denominated in those same currencies. In certain circumstances, net investment
exposures are managed using currency forwards and currency swaps.

Options other than currency options. The Corporation is exposed to prepayment
risk in certain of its business activities, such as in its mortgags servicing
and annuities activities. In order to hedge those exposures, the Corporation
uses one-sided financial instruments containing option features. These
instruments generally behave based on limits (*caps.* *floors* or *coliars*) on
interest rate movement.

Interest rate and currency swaps are used by the Corporation to optimize
borrowing costs for a particular funding strategy (see note 9) and to establish
specific hedges of mortgage-related assets and to manage net investmen:
eXpoOSUres., Such swaps are evaluated by management under the credit criteria
se: forth below. In addition, as part of ite ongoing customer activities, the
C tion may enter into swaps that are integrated with investments in or
i0ans to particular customers and do not involve assumption of third-parcty
credit risk. Such integrated swaps are evaluated and monitored like their
asso-iated investments or loans, and are not therefore subject to the same
ad,: criteria that would apply to a stand-alone swap.

Counterparty credic risk. Given the ways in which the Corporation uses swaps,
purcrnased opiions and forwards, the principal risk is credit risk--risk tha:
counterparzies will be financially unable to make payments in uiccurdance with
INE ASYeements Associatec market risk i1s meaningful only as .t relates to how

.7 marrker va.ue affect credit exposure to individual counterparties.
: as notec above for positions that are integrated in"o financings. all
swaps purcnased options and forwards are carried out «ithin the following
crecii polliCy constraints:

Jnce a counterparty reaches a credit exposure limit (see table below), neo
add."iona. Transactions are permitted until the exposure with thalt counterparty
.2 reauced to an amount that is within the established limit. Open contracte
rema.n. inn force.

‘ounterparty credit criteria Credit rating
Moody's Standard & Poor's

Term ¢! Lransaction

Five years o le@88......ccuivrerrnronannns Aal AA-

Greater than five years.......... e haa AAA
Credit exposure limits

Up to 50 millionm. .. ovivnnvnns 1 ) Aal AA-

Up to $7T5 millien.....oovvun i T Aaa ARR
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- All swaps are ‘cut.d under master swap aqr.cm:s containing mutual
credit downgrade provisions that provide the ability to require assignment or
termination in the event either party is downgraded below Al or A-.

Because of their lower risk, more credit latitude is permitted for original
maturities shorter than one year.

HOTE 21. GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENT INFORMATION

Ceographic segment operating data and total assets are as follows.

Earned income Operating profit
{In miilliens) 19985 1994 1993 1995 1994 1993
Uniced States.... $18.374 515,213 $13.722 $ 2,752 § 2,413 $1.970
Eurcpe....... aara 4,974 2,457 1,838 469 252 10
Global-including
other areas of
the world....... 3,144 2,205 1,716 299 284 229
Total....ou.. 526,492 £19,875 517.276 $ 31,520 5 2,949 § 2,209
EEEEEIE EEESEEE EaESREy EEaEEED FESsEmEN EEESAES

Total assets

iIn millionsi 1995 1954 1993
Unite¢ States.... 5132,415 $114.069 $104,717
Europe i e R 33,462 14.378 8,250
z.0pac-incleding
cLner areas of
the werid.. o 19,852 16,520 13,670
TOTa «« 51B5,72 $144,967 5126,637
SEZzsEEze= SEEEEEsEE ESEa=Ezen

‘ .t oo presentatiion of geographic segment information was re-' .ed in 199%

rec.assifc the results of certain business activities within GECS that are
--% global :r nature tc “Global-including other areas of the world.-"
a4: amounts nave been restated to ceonform te the current year
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Item

Item

Item

Item

Item

Item

(a})

(a)

10.

11.

13.

Ch.ng-l'l’-nd Disagreamants with Aacaun‘l.u an Accounting and
Fipnancial Disclosure.

Not applicable

PART III
Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Omitted

Executive Campensation.

Omitted
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.
Omitted
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.
Oomitted
PART IV
Exhibite, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form B8-K.

Financial Statemants
Included in Part II of this report:
Independent Auditors® Report
Statement of Current and Retained Earnings for eac'. ol the years
in the three-year period ended December 11, 199¢
Statement of Financial Position at December 31, .995 and 199%4
Statement of Cash Flows for each of the years ir. the three-year
period ended December 31, 199%
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Incorporated by reference:
The consoclidated {inancial statements of General Electric
Company. sei forth in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of General
Electric Company (S.E.C. File No. 001-00035) for the year ended
December J1, 1995 (pages F-1 through F-40) and Exhibit 12 (Ratio
of Earnings to Fixed Charges) of General Electric Company.

Financial Statement Schedules
I. Condensed financial information of registrant.

V. Supplemental information <concerning property and casualt)
insurance operations.

All other schedules are omitted because of the absence of

conditions under which they are required or because the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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e o) @

(a) 3.
The exhibits listed below., as part of Form 10-K, are numbered in
conformity with the numbering used in Item 601 of Regulation S-K of
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Exhibit Number Description

3 (i) A complete copy of the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation as last amended on February 10, 1993, &~d
currently in effect. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3(i) of the Corporation’'s Form 10-K Report for the year ended
December 31, 1993.)

3 iy A complete copy of the By-Lawe of the Corporation as last
amended on June 30, 1994, and currently in effect.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) =f the
Corporation’s Form 10-K Report for the year ended December
31, 1994.)

& iil) Agreement to furnish to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon request a copy of instruments defining the
rights of holders of certain long-term debt of the registrant
and all subsidiaries for which consolicdated or unconsolidated
financial statements are reguired tc be filed.

12 ial Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.

12 (b} Computation of ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges
and preferred stock dividends.

R S Consent of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP.

“a Power of Attorney.

¥ Financial Data Schedule (filed electronically herewith).

o lal Income Maintenance Agreement dated Marc* 28, 1991, betweern
General Electiric Company and General Electric Capital
Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 28 cf the
Corporation’'s Form 1l0-¥ Report for the year ended December
31, 199%2).

%9 1b) The consolidated ({inancial statements of Gensral Electric
Company. set forth in the Annual Report on Form 10-F of
General Elec:iric Company (5.E.C. File No. 001-00025%) for the
year ended December 131, 1995, (pages F-1 through F-40) and
Exhibit 12 (Ratic of Earnings to Fixed Charges) of General
Electric Company.

2% icl Item 1. Business - Property and Casualty Reserves tor Unpaid

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses, set forth in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of GE Global Insurance Holding
Corporation (5.E.C. File No. 0-2739§) for Lhe year ended
December 31, 1995 (Pages 7 through 12).




Exhibit Number . n-uﬁp‘

- - -

oG {d) Letter, dated June 29, 1995, f{from Dennis D. Dammerman of
General Electric Company to Gary C. Wendt of General Electric
Capital Corporation pursuant to which General Electric
Company agrees Lo provide addicional equity rto General
Electric Capital Ceorporation in conjunction with certain
redemptions by General Electric Capital Corporation of shares
of its Variable Cumulative Preferred Stock. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99(g) to General Elec:iric Capital
Corporation‘’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, File No.
33-61257)

(I Reports on Form B-K
None.
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GENERAL m‘l'm BERVICES, INC. AND CJ'-DIM AFFILIATES

SCHEDULE I--COMDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CURRENT AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For the years ended December 11 1598 1994 1991
Inmillions) —m——— —m—— S
Earned ({mcoOMe. . . c.uriusssasssnssssosisssgaasasabaassansns < - H 2 -

Expenses

interes: e A i e A e e el e e e et 195 132 L ]
Cperating and AdTiniscrative...... B b e e E e e 291 L12B 2i2

Loss belore income taxes and equity in earnings of

aff.liatesn, (4B8) 2600 13021
¢ tax Der - 1l Ho

.= earnings {rom continuing operations of
efl.iintes 2,793 2,205 -
Nes earsinge froF CORILAUVAING OPETACIONS. ......csccssinas 2.415 =.08% 1%
fett .inge 1.086) frofr discontinued OPErations..,..... . (L.:80%) 280
Hes earsin B e e e e R R b R e 2.41% Bhe 1,807
Davadend Bl n e e ) I A R R 2.091) 19141 1610
rPLasnes earni: 8 4t January i. e PR P e P E.194 7.015%
Fetainec earn:ngs 4t December Jl........ccsccesivensinas $9.518 $8.212
SEEEAAR fREEEE

Lee Totes * Zondensed Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULE I--CONDENMSED FIMANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT--(Continued)

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES,

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL POSITION

At Decembper 11

I3n me..i0nsl

ABEETS

CagEr ang egIiVA.BNLE. .. .su a0

investmen: securities T A R T T T AT TR o
Pece:vables=--net ErssE A EEEE YRR AW e P RN R
irvesiment in and advances to affilimces. . ... .o iiitiiiiariaiaenanas

Tota. assecs.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

A ‘ers DOSrOWLTIOE. .
5 €IT DOrIowings

paysb.e

v el e abilh]

S, J.80...Ti@E

Sesative preferred swtock, 5i0.000 par value (80.000 shares

1., 1995 and 19941

4. paid-.n capliia.

FUla.sec eAln . ngs

2. 000 par va.ue

5..000 snares issued and held primarily by affiliates

(101 shares authorized and

LO83€8! Of LMAVesLMmEn: securities held by

rea s al a4
atTHE b - R o A R R A L
i TLTTETCY LTATNE.ALION adlustments
L a L PRy
€ T roenses Financia. Statements
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GENERAL m:‘r:m SERVICES, INC. AND CCAM AFFILIATEE
SCHEEDULE I--CONDENSED FIMANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT--(Continued)
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAFPITAL SERVICES, INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 11 1998 1994 199)
IIn millions) —— semas ———ee
CASH FROM COPERATING ACTIVITIES........ R R AL L AP G P . £722 $54Y 8sl2

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Change in investment and advances to affilisces.. .............. 19621 . i ".'
Met change in IAVeSCEMENT SECUFSTI®B. ... ... iouciatansanaiunnin (5%} »9? (200
te: cnange Ln receivables....,. N L L B 672 (ls1 26
CASH IUSED FOR) PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES. o aine e 1345%) g2 1561
CASH 5 FROM FIHANCING ACTIVITIES

he: change in borrowings (less than 90-day Maturitiesi........ LRL 1 151
New,, .nsued debt-=long-terr subordinated. e TR E e 29E x

.3erds pald - s - B P a o e R A i ST = (1.0%%0 904 i6.0
CASE USED FOR FINANCIRG ACTIVITIES . ... ccvesscvncunas AT S L 13554 {746 1259

“NCREASE (DECREASE: IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

R THE WERR . oot b e s b o b e a5 e a e e o b e o W e e 23 1951 87
TAaS AT EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIMNING OF YEAR. . ... ..cu.-n SEE W aaE 5 100 3
CASY AND EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR. ... ..vcuvsainns Wi CaEa e $ 27 £ 5 5100

aREs mees aER"

See lotes ro Condensed Financia: Statements.
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GENERAL C CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. AND U!!!LLIDI!ID AFFILIATES

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT--(Concluded)
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Income taxes
GE Company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax re:turr

includes GE Capital Services. Income tax benefit includes the effec:
Capital Services on the consolidated return

Dividends from affiliates

I 1995 and 1994, GE Capital Services received dividends of 5124 m:illiorn
and 5150 million, respectively, from GE Global Insurance and S$1.5BFE milil:on ang
5575 million, respectively, from GE Caplital. The 1995 dividend from GE Cap.tal
included certain assets that were subsegquently sold. The proceeds on the sale
were invested back into GE Capital.

Discontinued operations

in November 1994, GE Capital Services elected to terminate the cperations
of HKidder, Peabody Group Inc. by initiating an orderly liquidation of its
assets and liabilities. As part of the liquidation plan, GE Capital Services
received securities of Paine Webber Group Inc. valued at 5657 million 1in
exchange for certain broker-dealer assets and operations. The liguidation was
substantially complete as of December 11. 1995,




GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

SCHEDULE V - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS

fin millions)

Claims and claim

Reserves for Discount adjustmant sxpenses

Deferced unpald claims deducted from lncurred relsted to Amortization rald claime

policy and claims unpald losses Nat sesmssssssssssnsnnan of deferred aad clals
acguisition sadjustment and loss Unsarnesd Earned invetment Current rrior policy scqguisitiom adjustmant Premiums
coats sxpensss axpanses premiums premiuss income Tear Tears colts expenseas written
1995 L3 B2 12,117 s 12 % l.0n S N LR ¢ LIl 5 3.0V} % 168 s 227 $ 2,467 s 4.976
t 4 £3 TEEE v nE ETT"AIERE T

1904 1 LR § 6,911 ] 5 2.1 L AL ] 121 1.885% 1 558 5 (111 § 1.946 £ 1.5

- : : - TEIEDa [
1993 5 401 $ 6. 405 5 $ 1.63% 5 ), %0 5 594 $ 2,040 5 159 s§ 5% § 1,42% $ 1.547
i PR 2 | ERETRAE L =¥ ExEN rEENETES EEFAEEN
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. . Exhibit d4(iid)

March 26, 1996

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifch Street, N.W.
Washington., D.C. 20549

Subject: General Electric Capital Services, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995--File No. 0-1480<

Dear Sirs:

Neither General Electric Capital Services, Inc. (the "Corporation®) nor
any of its subsidiaries has outstanding any instrument with respect to its
long-term debt under which the total amount of securities authorized exceeds
10 of the total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. 1In accordance with paragraph (b)(4)(iii) of Ivem &0. of
Kegulation S-K (17 CFR §5229.601), the Corporation hereby agrees to furnish to
the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon request, a copy of each instrumen:
whicn defines the rights of holders of such long-term debt.

Very truly yours,
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.
By: /8/ J. A. Parke

J. A, Parke,
Senior Vice President, Finance
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GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES,

AND CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(Dollar amounts in millions)

Earnings from continuing
operations
Provision for income CaXe8........-.. '
Minority interest.......
Cumulative effect to January 1,
1991, of accounting change for
post retirement benefits other
than pensions...

.......... R R R R

R R e

...............

Earnings before income taxes,
minority interest and accounting
ChARGE. ST S i e e e o b i ee e et w e e e

Fixed charges:

Interest

Total fixed charges.......cocvuuiuen miaihe

nec of

Less :nterest capitalized,

AmorLiTatioN. o e e

before income taxes,
interest and accountin
plus fixed charges...

Farnings

Fat . L
cnarges

earnings to fixec

Exhibit 12 (a)
m.
Years ended December 31,
1985 1994 1993 1892 1991

§ 2,415
1,105
140

510,545

1.53

60

$ 2,0855 1,567

BG4 642
139 134
3, oB8 2,343

156 138
4,754 3,723

ne
-

£ 7.B31s% F

ESTEESEZE EEFZEEED

1.65 1.63

SESZSEESS EXSoEEE

$ 1,331¢% 1,215
404 17

40 i3

- 6
1,79% 1.571
3,780 4,413

2 316

3,872 i 449

6 7

5 55,6418 6,013
EEmEsEE EETSCOES
1.46 1.35




GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.
AND CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

Exhibit 12 (b)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock

Dividends

1995

{Dollar amounts in millions)

Earnings from continuing operations.... $ 2,415
Provision for income taxes............. 1,105
Minority interest.....c.cssves . 140

Cumulative effect to January 1, 1991,
of accounting change for post
retirement benefits other than
Densions. ... .. R TR -

Earnings before income taxes,
minority interest and accounting
GHARGE.. o 5.cn bt a8 v 5ae N o B 3,660

Fixed charges:

T L BT "Bl v v vt v tesssenssssamensssnnanas 6,731

Cne-third of rentals....c.ccvvevsciasa 175
Tobtai: Tixed CRATGEE . v a i v o vwa e 6.906
Les:z .nterest capitalized, net of

amtr sl AT 0N i e A e e e e e e 21
Earrn.ror Delore Lncome taxes,

=inoriTy InTeres:t and accounting

crange. p.us fixed charges........... 510,545

EFEEREE

treferreg stock dividend requirements.. S 1
Raii:c of earnings from continuing

operatz.ons before provisions for

NCome Laxes Lo earnings sTom

CONLiNGing OPBIALIONS . . v v vv v s eunonsas 1.46
Prelerrec stock dividend factor on

Pre-tax DASEIE. v v a s an o 1
FaX®0 SHATYTBSE v wavi s i e wsisie brasisinee 6,906

tta. f:xed charges and preferred
stock dividend requirements.......... 5 6,907

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed

cnarges and preferred stock
drvidends .o Eil e e LR e e AT 1.53
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Years eanded December 31,

Bl e T R

1994 1993

$2,085 51,567
864 642
139 134

j,oee 2,343
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$ 7,B335 6,062
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$ 4,7558 3,723
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1992 1991
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$1,331 $1.215

404 317
40 33
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$ 5,6415 6.013
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S 3,872 5 4,449
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. . Exhibit 23(414)

To the Board of Directors
General Electric Capital Services, Inc.

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement
(No. 33-734B) on Form S-3 of General Electric Capital Services, Inc.. and in
the Registration Statement (No. 33-61029) on Form S-3 jointly filed by General
Electric Capital Services, Inc. and General Electric Company. of our report
dated February 9, 1996, relating te the statement of financial position of
General Electric Capital Services, Inc. and consolidated affiliates as of
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and the related statements of current and retained
earnings and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 1995, and related schedules which report appears in the December
11, 1995 annual report on Form 10-K of General Electric Capital Services, Inc.

s ¥FPMG Peat Marwick LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
March 28, 1996
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KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS. that each of the undersigned. being
directors and/or officers of General Electric Capital Services, Inc.. a
Delaware corporation (the *Corporacicn®), hereby constitutes and appoints Gary
C. Wendt, James A. Parke, Joan C. Amble and Nancy E. Barton and each of them.
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution
and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead in any and all
capacities, to sign one or more Annual Reports for the Corporation's fiscal
vear ended December 31, 1995, on Form 10-¥ under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or such other form as such attorney-in-fact may deem
necessary or desirable, any amendments theretc, and all additional amendments
therete in such form as they or any one of them may approve, and to file the
same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact
and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each
and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done to the end that such
Annual Report or Annual Reports shall comply with the Securities Exchange Act
of 1234, as amended., and the -pplicable Rules and Regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission adopted or issued pursuant thereto, as fully and zo all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confiirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their
or his substitute or resubstitute, may lawfully do or cause toc be done by
virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereuntc set his hand this
2éch day of March, 1996.

Gary C. Wendt /s/ James A. Parke
Gary C. Wendt, James A. Parke,
‘rna.rman of the Board. Senior Vice President. Finance
brep.aent and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Financial Officer|

i'rincipa. Execurive Officer)

/8 Joan C. Amble

Joar C. Amble,
Vice Presidgent and Controller
{Principa. Accounting Officer)

(Page 1 of 2}
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/s/ Kaj Ahlmann

Kaj Ahlmann,
Director

's/ Nigel D.T. Andrews

Nigel D.T. Andrews,
Director

/8/ James R. Bunt

e

James F. Bunt.
Director

S SR ———

A MASJOFITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e e

Benjamin W. Heineman, Jr.,
Director

Hugh J. Murphy.
Director

/8/ Denis J. Nayden

Denis J. Nayden,
Director

/8/ Michael A. Neal

Michael A. Neal,
Director

Director
/s/ Edward D. Stewart

Edward D. Stewart,
Director

-

John F. Welch, Jr..
Director

(Page 2 of 2}




SIGATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.

March 26, 19396 By: /s8/ Gary C. Wendt
(Gary C. Wendt)
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of cthe
registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. -

Signature Title Date

_________ D - =

s Gary C. Wendt
TR R SRS e S e P -- Chairman of the Board, March 26, 1996
(Gary C. Wondt) President and Chief
Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

& James A. Parke
-------------- B Senior Vice President, Finance March 26, 1996
(lames A. Parke) {(Principal Financial Officer)
jcan C. Amble =
T T Vice President and Controller March 26, 1996
‘ar CT. Amble) {Principal Accounting Officer)
AR MANI Director
% . ANDREWS® Director
BUNT" Director
DAMMERMAN* Director
NAYDEN® Director
. h. NEAL" Director
> L. STEWART* Direcror
WELCH. JR." Director

A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

IS oo o e e B March 26, 1996
(Joan C. Amble)
Attorney-in-fact
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EXHIBIT 2

Managerial Capability




MANAGERIAL QUALIFICATIONS

Gregg L. Haddad -- Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and General
Manager of GE Capital Communication Services Corp.; President
1G { Mait f GE Capital C ial Di

Mr. Haddad has been President and General Manager of GE Capital Communication
Services/GE EXCHANGE?® since October 1994 and President and General Manager of GE
Capital Commercial Direct since January 1996. Prior to joining GE Capital Communication
Services, he held a variety of management and executive positions with GE Capital Corp. and its
subsidiaries for six years, starting in July of 1988. From that date until April 1989, Mr. Haddad
was a Finance Projects Manager at GE Capital Corp.'s headquarters at Stamford, Connecticut.
He then served a year as Vice President, Sales Projects for GE Capital Mortgage Insurance in
Raleigh, North Carolina, and then was a Manager, Marketing/Business Strategy at GE Capital
Vendor Financial Services in Danbury, Connecticut from June 1990 to December of 1992. In
January 1993 Mr. Haddad became Vice President and Operations Manager at GE Capital Vendor
Services EKCC in Rochester, New York, an assignment which he performed until his current
assignment. From 1983 to 1986 Mr, Haddad was a Senior Accountant at Peat, Marwick, Mitchell
& Co. in Toledo, Ohio. Mr. Haddad is a graduate of the University of Chicago Graduate School
of Business and of the University of Michigan, and is a Certified Public Accountant in the state
of Ohio.

Albin Galonczyk, Jr. — Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Member of
Board of Directors of GE Capital Communication Segrvices
Corporation

Mr. Galonczyk is Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic.r and a Member of the
Board of Directors of the GE Capital Communication Services Corporation, and has served in this
capacity since January 1995. Mr. Galonczyk has over 17 years of experience in financial
management with the General Electric Company and its subsidiaries. For over six years he was
part of the Power Generation Services division of General Electric, beginning in January 1988 as
a Business Analysis Manager in Schenectady, New York. He continued from October 1990 until
March 1994 as Finance Manager for the Southern Region in Atlanta, Georgia. Mr. Galonczyk
is a graduate of the State University of New York in Saratoga.




David M. Krew -- Executive Vice President, Product Management, of GE Capital
Communication Services Corporation

Mr. Krew is Executive Vice President, Product Management of GE Capital Commercial
Direct. Mr. Krew specializes in telecommunications marketing, where he has developed pricing
plans, new products, distribution strategies and conducted market research for GE Capital in the
area of long-distance services since January 1995. Prior to his employment with GE, he was a
Product Manager for Progressive Corporation from 1988 to 1995, after his graduation from the
University of Chicago Graduate School of Business. From 1983 to 1986, Mr. Krew was an
engineer with the Standard Oil Company.

Daniel E. Rabin -- Executive Vice President, Operations, of GE Capital
Communication Services Corporation

Mr. Rabin has been Vice President, Communication and Resale Products Operations, of
GE Commercial Direct in Atlanta, Georgia, since May 1995, and was previously Operations
Manager for GE Capital Communication Services from July 1993. He has been responsible for
operations, overall operational performance measurements, facilities, and customer support for
a start-up long distance reseller. During the start-up enterprise, he has been responsible for over
200 sales and 50 operations personnel. Mr. Rabin has been with GE for over 22 years, with
management and supervisory experience in General Electric Company divisions, including
Ordnance Systems in Pittsfield, Massachusetts and GE Drive Systems in Salem, Virginia, and
culminating in his successful tenure as Mid-Atlantic Region Service Manager for GE Medical
Systems in Hanover, Maryland, from October 1989 to July 1993, He has a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Massachusetts in Amherst.

Timothy P. Dowd -- Executive Vice President, Customer Development, of GE Capital
Communication Services Corporation

After simultaneously pursuing (and receiving) degrees in both Economics and Industrial
Engineering from two separate institutions in 1985 and 1986, Mr, Dowd proceeded to attain a
solid background in telecommunications and financial services while rising to his current position
of Senior Vice President, Indirect Sales, of GE Capital Commercial Direct, which he held until
January 1996 when he assumed his current position. In that position he has mainained a 350-
person telesales team, and supported a GE company-wide cross selling program. Prior to that
assignment, he held vice presidencies at both GE Capital Business Services ana GE Capital
Communication Services in the areas of sales and distribution, starting in February 1994,




Cary J. Claiborne — Senior Vice President, Wholesale Operations, of GE Capital
Communication Services Corporation

Mr. Claiborne has been Senior Vice President, Finance, of GE Capital Business Services
since May of 1994, where he has provided strategic leadership for a high-performance financial
organization. Since 1982 he has served in a variety of General Electric divisions (including Power
Systems, Space Systems, the Aerospace Business Group, Government Services, Military & Data
Systems, and Simulation & Control Systems) with a progressive level of responsibility for
sophisticated financial analysis and planning, culminating in his penultimate assignment as
Manager, Operations Analysis, of GE Capital Services from May 1992 to May 1994. He holds
an M.B.A.from Villanova University.

Meredith H. Gifford -- Assistant Vice President, Regulatory Affairs, and Assistant

Secretary of GE Capital Communication Services Corporation

Ms. Gifford has been Assistant Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Assistant Secretary
of GE Capital Commercial Direct since 1996. She has also practiced law as an attorney
specializing in venture capital and securities activities in New York City from 1986 to 1990, Ms.
Gifford has also been an Assistant Counsel for Confederation Life Insurance Company in Atlanta,
Georgia from 1990 to 1992, and as a Senior Attorney for the Resolution Trust Company
beginning in 1993, In the last of these positions she was responsible for nearly all primary and
ancillary legal aspects of the stock sale of a $12 million company. She is admitted to practice law
in five states (Georgia, New York, Rhode Island, Massachusetts and Pennsylvania) and clerked
for the Supreme Court of Rhode Island following her graduation from the Catholic University
School of Law in 1984.

Michael R. LaBlanc -- Senior Vice President, Information Management, and Chiefl
Information Officer of GE Capital Corporation -~ Commercial
Direct

Mr. LaBlanc has been Senior Vice President, Information Management, and Chief
Information Officer of GE Capital Corporation -- Commercial Direct since 1995, where he has
had responsibility for strategic planning and vision as well as tactical hardware infrastructure
support. Together with a Master's Degree in Computer Management Systems and four years in
the United States Marine Corps, since 1984 Mr. LaBlanc has served in a number of technical
leadership positions with several General Electric operations. From 1992 to 1994 he was
Technical Leader for a start-up business, GE Capital Corporation’s Insurance Services Group
(ISG), an enterprise that required the conception and realization of an entirely new information
technology infrastructure. Mr. LaBlanc has command of nearly every major technical
environment currently extant, including Sun/UNIX and MS/\Vindow« PC clients, Token Ring and
Ethernet network archutectures with ail varieties of protocols, and various database servers.
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Karen K. Davis -- Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Since May 1995 the Human Resources Manager for GE Capital Business Services, Ms.
Davis has successfully overhauled and staffed the GE Capital Communication Services
Corporation, and implemented innovative training and reward/recognition programs for its
employees. She initially joined the General Electric family of companies in June 1993 as a
Human Resources Program Leader for GE Exchange, where she was responsible for staffing,
training, outside contracting and hiring matters. Ms. Davis holds an Master of Science ¢ gree
in Industrial Relations from the London School of Economics, awarded to her in 1984. irom
1985 to 1989 she was employed by the Ford Motor Company at its world headquarters in Detroit,
Michigan, in industrial relations, personnel and labor relations capacities. From 1989 to 1993 she
was a Human Resources Manager at The Pillsbury Company's headquarters in Minncapolis,
Minnesota, where she had extensive experience in performance management, training and
compensation matters for up to 550 employees. Ms. Davis is also a graduate of Mt. Holyoke
College and has had graduate studies at Wayne State University.

Nancy L. Williams -- Senior Vice President, Technology

Ms. Williams is Information Systems Leader for the GE Exchange division of GE Capital
Corporation in Atlanta, Georgia, a position she has held since July 1994, In this capacity she has
provided overall technical leadership to the Information Management organization, and has
therefore been critical to the vision and strategy of a team with over 50 employees and a $2.4
million budget. Prior to that responsibility, Ms. Williams was successively a Consultant and a
Technical Manger with GE Information Services in Rockville, Maryland from 1989 to 1994. In
1988 and 1989 she was Vice President and Manager (Eastern Region) of T<imar Information
Services, where she directed $2 million of production and distribution of advertising media
planning and buying software, and from 1986 to 1988 she was Vice Preside it, Client Services and
Technical Marketing, for R.D. Percy & Co., a start-up television raungs firm in New York City.
Ms. Davis graduated with a B.S. in Computer Science from Washington University in St. Louis,
Missouri.

Kelly K. Sturdivant -- Senior Vice President, Quality

Currently the Senior Vice President, Quality, of GE Capital Corporation’s Commercial
Direct division, Ms. Sturdivant was from 1988 to 1996 with the Westinghouse Productivity &
Quality Center, first as a Senior Consultant, and then as a Director, where she led a large staff
of consultants and engineers to consult Westinghouse and other organizations on achieving
superior performance in areas as diverse as R&D, technology transfer, and corporate
reengineering. From 1985 to 1988 she was a Consultant at Management Analysis, Inc, lcading
project teams and developing new business in addition to providing consulting services to federal
agencies. From 1979 to 1983 Ms. Sturdivant was an Industrial Engineer with Babcock & Wilcox,
providing all support for an $80 million plant expansion. She holds an M.B.A. from the Darden
Graduate School of Business Administration at the University of Virginia, and a dual major
Bachelor's degree from Carnegie Mellon University.
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Victor A. Allums - Senior Vice President and General Counsel of GE Capital
Commercial Direct

Mr. Allums joined GE Capital Commercial Direct as Senior Vice President and General
Counsel in June 1996. Prior to joining GE Capital Commercial Direct, Mr. Allums was Assistant
Division Counsel of the information of ALLTEL Corporation and its predecessors (since January
1989) where he was responsible for all aspects in-house representation of the business. From
1985 to 1988 he was an associate at the Atlanta, Georgia law firm of Troutman Sanders LLP,
where he specialized in general corporate matters, including mergers and acquisitions, and
software licensing and trademarks. He holds both a law degrec and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Emory University in Atlanta, and is also a graduate of Auburn
University. He is admitted to practice law in the state of Georgia.
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GE Capital Communication Services Corporation
d/b/a GE EXCHANGE®
d/b/a GE Residential Communications, d/b/a GE Commercial Shopping Network
and d/b/a GE Capital Commercial Direct

Technical Qualifications

As is indicated by the Commission’s approval of GECCS’s interexchange application,
GECCS is technically and managerially qualified to provide local exchange resale services
within Florida. Applicant has the financing and capital necessary to conduct its
telecommunications operations as specified in this Application. More particularly, GECCS has
been a long distance service provider in Florida since August 1993. See Order No, PSC-93-
1188- ‘OF-TI. GECCS will rely upon its existing financial, personnel and technological
resources for planning, marketing, network and legal/regulatory assistance in providing local
exchange services in the State. Accordingly, no additional investment will be needed to offer
the proposed services. In addition, GECCS is authorized to provide resold long distance
telecommunications services on an intrastate basis in every state except Ala<ka and Hawaii,
pursuant to certification, registration, or (where appropriate) on a de egulated basis. The
successful provision of telecommunications services in Florida and throughout the country is

proof in the first instance of GECCS's technical qualifications.
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